Public Document Pack

cv':ﬁm .
e i1y Flint
i i Contact Officer:
!i!!ﬂ!ﬁbﬂl re Nicola Gittins 01352 702345

nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

To: Clir Aaron Shotton (Leader)

Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Helen Brown, Derek Butler,
Christine Jones, Kevin Jones and Billy Mullin

13 April 2016
Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet which will be held at 9.30 am on
Tuesday, 19th April, 2016 in the Clwyd Committee Room, County Hall, Mold CH7
6NA to consider the following items

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 14)
Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting.

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING REPORTS

STRATEGIC REPORTS

4  THE IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2016-17 (Pages 15 - 88)

Report of Chief Executive - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

Purpose: To review and agree the draft Improvement Plan prior to
contributions for the final version in June from Overview and
Scrutiny Committees.



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2016/17 - 2018/19 AND THE
COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2017/18 (Pages 89 - 98)

Report of Chief Executive, Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the
Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

Purpose: To provide the outline strategy for Business Plans and
Corporate Financing as part of the revision of the Medium
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and 2017/18 Council Fund
Budget.

INDEPENDENT COMMISSION ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE IN
WALES (Pages 99 - 120)

Report of Chief Executive - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

Purpose: To the Independent Commission through debate and Support
the Welsh Local Government Association in advocating that
the new Welsh Government adopt the recommendations as a
priority post-election.

PROPOSED REVIEW OF THE WASTE COLLECTION AND HOUSEHOLD
RECYCLING CENTRE SERVICES (Pages 121 - 126)

Report of Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) - Cabinet Member for
Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure

Purpose: To seek Cabinet approval to progress the revised Waste
Collection and Household Waste Recycling Centre Policy.

SCHOOL MODERNISATION - SCHOOL STANDARDS AND
REORGANISATION ACT 2013 - YSGOL LLANFYNYDD (Pages 127 - 182)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

Purpose: Determination of statutory proposal on school organisational
change: Ysgol Llanfynydd.

SCHOOL MODERNISATION - SCHOOL STANDARDS AND
REORGANISATION ACT 2013 - YSGOL MAES EDWIN (Pages 183 - 220)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

Purpose: Determination of statutory proposal on school organisational
change: Ysgol Maes Edwin.



10

11

OPERATIONAL REPORTS

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 10) (Pages 221 - 252)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

Purpose: To provide the latest revenue budget monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and expenditure as at month 10 and
projected forward to year-end based on the most up to date
information available.

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS (Pages 253 - 254)

Report of the Chief Executive enclosed.
Purpose: To provide details of actions taken under delegated powers.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT
AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

Yours faithfully

P

T

Peter Evans
Democracy & Governance Manager



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

CABINET
22n MARCH 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet of Flintshire County Council held in the Clwyd
Committee Room, County Hall, Mold on Tuesday, 22" March 2016

PRESENT: Councillor Aaron Shotton (Chair)
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Helen Brown, Derek Butler, Christine Jones
and Kevin Jones

APOLOGY:
Councillor: Billy Mullin

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise), Chief Officer (Education
and Youth), Chief Officer (Streetscene & Transportation), Chief Officer (Organisational
Change), Chief Officer (Organisational Change), Corporate Finance Manager, Deputy
Monitoring Officer and Team Manager - Committee Services

OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE:
Councillors: Dave Mackie and Carolyn Thomas

152. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

On agenda item number 11, School Admission Arrangements, the Deputy
Monitoring Officer explained that any Members who were a School Governor had a
personal interest. The interest was not prejudicial as the item was not relating to a
particular school. Councillors Bithell, Brown, Butler, Christine Jones, Kevin Jones and
Shotton declared personal interests.

On agenda item number 13, Appointment of an Independent Director to NEW
Homes, Councillor Attridge declared a personal and prejudicial interest as he was
Chair of the NEW Homes Board. In line with his dispensation granted by the Standards
Committee, he would speak on the item and leave the room before the vote.

On agenda item number 14, Alternative Delivery Models, Councillor Kevin
Jones declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the Day Care and Work
Opportunities element of the report as he was a parent of a service user.

153. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 16t February 2016 had been circulated with
the agenda.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

The Chair advised that an item of urgent business would be considered after agenda
item number 8 on the Meningitis B Vaccination Programme.

Page 5



154.

155.

COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFERS

Councillor Attridge introduced the report on Community Asset Transfers (CATSs),
explaining that to date the scheme had been successful so far in sustaining a number
of community assets and providing significant savings to the Council.

If the areas for improvement identified in the report were addressed then it was
anticipated that the number of CATs that could be completed in the next 12 months
could be up to 26. These potentially included Holywell Leisure Centre, Hope Library,
Saltney Library which as well as protecting the assets could save the Council over
£0.350m in revenue per annum.

A number of policy principles and areas for improvement were detailed in the
report.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the progress of the revised Community Asset Transfer Scheme be noted;

(b)  That the additional policy principles for Community Asset Transfers identified in
the report which have come through learning in the first 15 months be agreed;

and

(c)  That the areas for improvement identified in the report that need to be worked
upon over the next 12 months be agreed.

QUARTER 3 IMPROVEMENT PLAN MONITORING REPORT

The Chief Executive introduced the Quarter 3 Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report which showed positive levels of achievement. The majority of activities were
assessed as making good progress (76%) and likely to achieve the desired outcome
(79%). 73% of the performance indicators (Pls) met or exceeded targets for the
quarter. Risks were also being successfully managed with the majority being assessed
as moderate (73%) or minor (18%).

The report was an exception based report and therefore detail focussed on the
areas of under-performance with the report providing full details on the following areas:

e One red RAG status for outcome: - Modern and Efficient Council
(Improving Resource Management)

¢ 9 Pls which showed a red RAG status for quarter three

e The three major red risks

In conclusion the Policy and Performance Manager explained that overall the
position was positive with over 75% having a green or amber RAG status. Individual
priority reports would be submitted to the respective Overview and Scrutiny
Committees.

Page 6



156.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the levels of progress and confidence in the achievement of the high level
activities which seeks to deliver the impacts of the Improvement Plan; the
performance against improvement plan performance indicators, for the quarter;
the current risk levels for the risks identified in the Improvement Plan be noted
and accepted; and

(b)  That Cabinet be assured by the plans and actions to manage the delivery of the
2015/16 Improvement Plan and its intended impacts.

PLAY SUFFICIENCY ASSESSMENT 2016 INCLUDING FUTURE PROPOSALS
FOR SUMMER PLAY SCHEMES AND PLAY AREAS

Councillor Kevin Jones introduced the report on the Play Sufficiency
Assessment 2016 Including Future Proposals for Summer Play Schemes and Play
Areas. The Flintshire Play Sufficiency Assessment (PSA) 2016 and the subsequent
Action Plan 2016/17 needed to be reported to Welsh Government (WG) as a statutory
duty.

The report provided details of the summer play scheme programme 2015 and
details of the financial implications for the delivery of summer play schemes in 2016
and 2017. Details were also provided on the safeguarding of children’s equipped play
areas in the county.

The Chief Officer (Organisational Change) provided full details on each of the
three areas, highlighting the following:

e The requirement to provide WG with a Play Sufficiency Assessment to address
identified shortcomings and deficiencies

e Therisk of funding for the delivery of the summer play scheme programme: WG
funding would not be available to support the delivery of the summer play
scheme in 2016. However, the Council had committed to finding funding for
one year to ensure there were funds available for the summer of 2016. The
impact would have implications for the delivery of the summer 2017 programme

e Town and Community Councils had been informed that play delivery was at risk
and they had been asked to consider increasing their contribution and explore
alternative delivery models to sustain the provision of play schemes in their
areas

The report was being submitted to Overview and Scrutiny with a
recommendation to encourage contribution to consultation with Town and Community
Councils. A further report would then be submitted to Cabinet. An item would also be
placed on the agenda for the next County Forum meeting.

RESOLVED:
(a)  Thatthe Flintshire Play Sufficiency Assessment and Action Plan 2016 (Flintshire

County Council, Draft Play Sufficiency Assessment & Action Plan 2016) be
approved;

Page 7



157.

158.

159.

(b)  That the Flintshire Strategic Play Forum be reformed in 2016 to form a multi-
agency forum to guide and monitor the Play Sufficiency Assessment Action Plan
2016; and

(c)  That local town and community councils and other partner organisations be
consulted with on sustaining of children’s equipped play areas in the county.

BUSINESS CASE FOR SOLAR FARMS AT BROOKHILL AND STANDARD
LANDFILL SITES

Councillor Attridge introduced the report on the Business Case for Solar Farms
at Brookhill and Standard Landfill Sites in Buckley.

Planning permission for the two schemes had been approved and the projects
could proceed within the identified timescales.

The Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) added that the report was
considered at Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee the previous week
where questions had been raised on technical issues. A written response was being
provided and the report was recommended to Cabinet for approval.

Members welcomed the report which was an innovative approach to generating
a revenue stream and reducing the Councils carbon footprint and therefore carbon
taxation.

RESOLVED:

That the development of the two Solar Farms, and the high voltage connection of
Brookhill landfill site to Alltami Depot be approved.

REVIEW OF STRATEGIC HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT SCHEMES

Councillor Attridge introduced the report on the Review of Strategic Highway
Improvement Schemes and explained that following a refresh of the Local Transport
Plan (LTP) earlier in the year, a revision of the Strategic Highway Improvement
Schemes was also completed to ensure that the schemes supported and aligned with
the current priorities and transport strategies/plans within the revised LTP.

RESOLVED:
That the removal of the Highway Improvement schemes detailed in the report, which
no longer form part of the Councils Transport priorities as defined within the LTP, be

approved.

MENINGITIS B VACCINATION PROGRAMME

Councillor Christine Jones introduced the report on the Meningitis B Vaccination
Programme which was offered to babies as part of the routine National Health Service
(NHS) childhood vaccination programme which was introduced in September 2015.

Page 8



160.

Since that time public support had increased for the programme to be extended to
include all children up to the age of 11.

The Petitions Committee of Parliament was conducting an inquiry following
receipt of an e-petition signed by over 820,000 members of the public seeking an
extension to the programme within the UK.

Members welcomed the report, adding their support to that of the public for the
extension of the vaccination programme. Councillor Butler queried the cost of
extending the programme which he supported in the main but felt further details were
needed. Councillor Shotton explained that it was a one off programme and cost, as
any children born after September 2015 would be offered it routinely.

RESOLVED:

That Flintshire County Council commits its support for the extension of the vaccination
programme to all children up to the age of 11.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 9)

The Corporate Finance Manager introduced the Capital Programme Monitoring
2015/16 (Month 9) report, explaining that the Capital Programme had decreased by
£3.320m in the period due to the impact of the following:

e Reduction in year to the 215t Century Schools Programme (£5.724m) and Wales

Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) Improvements (£0.152m);

e Pre-approved Rollover into 2016/17 (£0.435m); and
e Other Aggregate Decreases (£0.052m).

Offset by:

e Additional Welsh Government (WG) Vibrant and Viable Places (VVP) grant
(£1.367m); Introduction of European Regional Development Fund (ERDF)
funding for Town Centre Regeneration (£0.561m);

Additional Funding for Waste Services (£0.358m);

Additional grant/contributions for Private Sector Renewal (£0.279m);
Introduction of funding for play areas (£0.220m); and

Other Aggregate Increases (£0.256m).

Resources available for funding future capital expenditure was c£2.986m.

As at Month 9, Early Identified Rollover (EIR) had been identified which reflected
reviewed spending plans across all programme areas; those committed amounts had
been identified as required to meet the cost of programme works in 2016/17.

Two pressure areas totalling £0.088m had been identified within the
Streetscene and Transportation portfolio which were:
1. Overspend on remediation works at Standard Landfill site due to the
presence of asbestos (£0.035m); and
2. Higher than expected contract price for the Queensferry roundabout
improvement works (£0.053m)

Page 9



161.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the report be approved;
(b)  That the rollover adjustments be approved; and
(c) That the request for additional resources be approved.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 9)

The Corporate Finance Manager introduced the Revenue Budget Monitoring
2015/16 (Month 9) report which provided details on the latest revenue budget
monitoring position for 2015/16 for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue
Account and reported that no specific issues had been raised when considered at the
recent Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting. The position
was based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 9 and projected to the year-
end. The projected year-end position, as estimated at Month 9 was as follows:

Council Fund

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.242m lower than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2016 of £4.878m

Housing Revenue Account

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.082m lower than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2016 of £1.319m

The report provided details on the programme of efficiencies, inflation,
unearmakred reserves and earmarked reserves.

The report also outlined details on a number of risk areas as follows:

e Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI)
e Recycling
e Car Parking
e Out of County Placements
e Former Euticals Site
RESOLVED:

(@)  That the overall report and the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at
31st March 2016 be noted; and

(b)  That the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account be
noted.

Page 10



162.

163.

164.

SCHOOL ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS 2017/18

Councillor Bithell introduced the report on School Admission Arrangements
2017/18, advising Members on the outcome of the statutory consultation exercise on
the admission arrangements for September 2017. He added that the admission
arrangements must be determined by 15 April each year.

No comments had been received during the consultation process.

There were no changes proposed to the current admission numbers for each
school or the current admissions policy or oversubscription criteria. Clarification of the
wording of the oversubscription criteria was detailed in the report.

RESOLVED:

That the proposed admission arrangements for 2017/18 be approved.

URDD NATIONAL EISTEDDFOD 2016

The Chief Executive introduced the report on the Urdd National Eisteddfod 2016
which provided details of the plan which was to be hosted in Flint between 30t May
and 4" June 2016, including the role Flintshire County Council was playing to support
the event and the organisers.

As host County, the Council was matching the sponsorship of Flint Town
Council to the level of £30,000 which had been set aside as a reserve. The cost of
promotional activity of £15,000 would be met by existing promotional budgets. The
Council would also need to provide additional financial support to the Streetscene
service of up to £10,000 for the daily collection and disposal of recyclable refuse from
the site. If a contribution to licence fees was required that would be pursued.

Members welcomed the report, commenting on the opportunity to celebrate
Welsh culture and language, competitions and tourism opportunities.

RESOLVED:

That the Council support the Urdd Eisteddfod as set out in the report and promotes the
County and its attractions with a presence on the Maes site.

APPOINTMENT OF AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR TO NEW HOMES

Councillor Attridge introduced the report on the Appointment of an Independent
Director to NEW Homes, providing an update on the recruitment process. An ideal
candidate had been found who could fully meet the additional skills required by the
Board. He had financial expertise having been a Section 151 Officer for a Local
Authority and had regeneration and housing development experience.

Members welcomed the report and the recommended appointment of Paul
Mcgrady.

Page 11



165.

166.

RESOLVED:

That the appointment of Paul Mcgrady as an Independent Director of NEW Homes be
approved.

Councillor Attridge left the room following his introduction of the report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 — TO CONSIDER
THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED:

That the press and public be excluded for the remainder of the meeting for the following
items by virtue of exempt information under paragraph 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY MODELS

The Chief Officer (Organisational Change) introduced the report on Alternative
Delivery Models (ADMs) which provided details of the final proposals including service
business and transition plans in relation to proposals for ADMs. They were:

e The establishment of a Local Authority Trading Company with TECKAL
exemption in Facility Management Services;
e That Day Care and Work Opportunities service delivery be commissioned from

a social organisation; and

e That Leisure and Libraries establish an Employee Led Mutual

Following a discussion on Leisure and Libraries, it was agreed that more
information would be provided on employee involvement and consultation and the
levels of confidence amongst the workforce over the workability of the model. All other
elements of the report were supported.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Facility Management Services establish a Local Authority Trading
Company (LATC) with a TEKAL exemption to trade and that this be subject to
a number of conditions as detailed in the report;

(b)  That the Day Care Service delivery and Work Opportunities Services delivery
be agreed to be commissioned from a social organisation and it be subject to a
number of conditions as detailed in the report;

(c) That an employee led mutual be adopted for Leisure and Libraries as the
preferred model for the future, subject to further information being provided on
employee involvement and consultation and the levels of confidence amongst
the workforce over the workability of the model. An update report to be brought
back to Cabinet by May with the invitation to Cabinet to reconsider the
recommendations of the report for the service in full;

Page 12



167.

168.

169.

170.

(d)  That full Implementation Plan be brought back to Cabinet prior to authority being
provided to enter into legal agreements for completion of any of the Alternative
Delivery Models; and

(e) That in finalising implementation plans for services the Council wide positions
detailed in Appendix D to the report be approved.

Councillor Kevin Jones left the room during discussion of the Day Care and
Work Opportunities.

HOUSING PROGRAMMES RESTRUCTURE

Councillor Brown introduced the report on Housing Programmes Restructure,
providing details on the staffing structure required to deliver the functions and
responsibilities associated with the Housing Programmes Team of the Community and
Enterprise portfolio.

RESOLVED:

That the staffing structure for the Housing Programmes team as set out in the report
be approved.

COUNCIL HOUSING SERVICE — HOUSING MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURE

Councillor Brown introduced the report on Council Housing Service — Housing
Management Restructure, providing details of the staffing structure required to deliver
the Housing Management function of the Community and Enterprise portfolio.

RESOLVED:

That the revised Housing Management staffing structure as set out in the report be
approved.

REVIEW OF THE POLICY AND PERFORMANCE AND COMMUNICATIONS TEAMS

The Chief Executive introduced the report on the Review of the Policy and
Performance and Communications Teams, providing details of the proposed
amalgamation of those Teams.

RESOLVED:

That the proposed amalgamation of the Policy and Performance and Communications
Teams be supported and implemented.

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press or public in attendance.

(The meeting commenced at 9.30am and ended at 11.23am)

Page 13



Page 14



Agenda Item 4

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%h.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 19 April 2016
Report Subject The Improvement Plan 2016-17
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Chief Executive
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Improvement Plan for 2016/17 has been refreshed and updated to reflect the
key priorities of the Council for next year. The structure of the plan is retained with
the eight priorities and the sub priorities. Five of the eight priorities continue with a
refresh of longer term projects or ambitions, whereas the remaining three have
been reviewed to reflect local circumstances and priorities.

There is also a new section within each sub priority which references national
issues which have the potential to impact upon achievement of the priorities.
These issues will also be referenced, where relevant, in the next refresh of the
Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2016-2020.

This first draft of the Improvement Plan is still in some places, work in progress, as
details are finalised. This is more apparent in the detailed ‘How we Measure’
document. Both documents are to be considered by the relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Committees prior to final consideration by Cabinet in June and
endorsement by County Council.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To approve the substantial content of the Improvement Plan and ‘How we
Measure’ document.

2 To agree any changes in the documents with Portfolio leads and members
prior to consideration by Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Page 15



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

1.01

It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the
Measure) to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement
Plan. It is a statutory requirement for the County Council to adopt the
Improvement Plan.

1.02

Improvement Objectives and an accompanying Improvement Plan were
first set and adopted by the Council in 2011. For 2013/14 the Council
thoroughly reviewed the priorities to streamline them and reset them with
clearer outcome based aims. A revised set of eight priorities supported by
a structure of sub-priorities was adopted.

1.03

The Plan presentation also changed providing detail for each of the
priorities which were to have the most impact during the year. This has
helped the organisation to concentrate on the outcomes where most
immediate attention was needed.

1.04

In recent years the Plan has been effective in setting priorities and
achieving outcomes. This has been validated by the Wales Audit Office
(WAOQ) as below.

1.05

The WAO in its Corporate Assessment report of March 2015 said that “the
Council has established a wide-ranging set of clearly-stated priorities that
have a broad base of support within the Council and among partners”.

In addition the report commented on: “The Council sets out its vision
clearly within its Improvement Plan, as required by the Local Government
Measure 2009 (the Measure). For 2014-15, the Council’s coherent set of
eight strategic priorities is underpinned by more detailed sub-priorities,
some of which are identified clearly as areas of particular focus during the
year. Though wide-ranging, the Council’s vision demonstrates a clear
commitment to continuous improvement, reflected by targets for improving
the efficiency and effectiveness of its services, particularly those
associated with its in-year Improvement Objectives.”

The format and content of the Plan was also commented upon: “The
Council has worked hard to improve the quality of this key plan and the
Improvement Plan for 2014-15 is a clear and accessible document that
sets out far more clearly than before what the Council plans to do and how
its success might be measured and evaluated.”

1.06

For 2016/17 a review of the current priorities and sub-priorities has been
undertaken to set: -

e priorities that continue into 2016/17 for sustained attention;
e priorities that can now be removed as completion of a time-limited
piece of work e.g. Universal Credit preparation, use of the National

Page 16




Procurement Service;

e priorities which could be broadened into more strategic issues e.g.
‘Creating jobs and growing the local economy’, the care home
market;

e priorities which could be merged e.g. Fuel Poverty and Maximising
Income;

e emerging priorities for 2016/17 e.g Improving chances for Looked
after Children, mental health.

Sub-priorities have also been set to take into account Cabinet and
Overview and Scrutiny priorities, priorities of partners, public views and
service demands and national policy and legislation.

1.07

For each sub-priority which continues to be high profile for 2016/17 there
has been a review based on: -

¢ the reasoning for the priority status;
¢ what we will do and how we will measure achievement; and
¢ the risks that will need to be managed.

In addition there is a section on national policy issues which may impact
our ability to deliver and achieve.

1.08

The Improvement Plan in totality is presented as 2 documents that are
inter-related; firstly the ‘public’ version of our statements of intent around
the 8 priorities (Appendix 1) and secondly the document that describes the
targets and milestones on which achievement will be measured (Appendix
2). This is the document that is used by Cabinet and Overview and
Scrutiny Committees to monitor progress during the year.

Appendix 1 is the core content of the 8 priorities; the final document will
have more contextual information plus information that is required to be in
the Plan as part of the Measure.

1.09

The working draft documents are to be considered by Members at each
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee during May (apart from
Education and Youth later in April). These Committees will also review
any additional targets for the statutory national performance indicators.

1.10

The final Improvement Plan will be available as a web-based document
published on the website before the end of June following endorsement by
County Council.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

Resource implications have been considered during preparation of the
Medium Term Financial Strategy and will continue to be monitored during
the regular budget monitoring and financial planning arrangements.

Page 17




3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | All Overview and Scrutiny Committees will have the opportunity to
consider and review the content of the Improvement Plan priorities
including the opportunity to scrutinise targets set for 2016/17.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Delivery of the plan objectives is risk managed as part of each of the sub
priorities of the Improvement Plan and is monitored and reported against
quarterly by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

4.02 | The risks to the statutory requirements of the Plan include: not publishing
the plan within statutory timescales (30 June) and not adhering to the
prerequisite content. Both these risks are managed through adherence to
well established procedures for i) publishing the Plan and ii) ensuring that
the content of the plan reflects the requirements of the Measure.

4.03 | An additional risk is that Members do not endorse the Plan; consultation
with Members both individually and as part of the Scrutiny process allows
for full engagement.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Draft Improvement Plan 2016/17
Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’ document

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong, Policy and Performance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702740
E-mail: karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of

the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Corporate Assessment: in 2013/14 the Wales Audit Office (WAO) began
a new four year cycle of Corporate Assessments of improvement
authorities in Wales. An in depth Corporate Assessment reports on the
Council’s track record of performance and outcomes as well as the key
arrangements necessary to underpin improvements in services and
functions. Flintshire’s first Corporate Assessment was conducted in late
2014 and the report on its outcomes was included in the Annual
Improvement Report reported to Cabinet in March 2015.

Page 18



mailto:karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

Medium Term Financial Strategy: a written strategy which gives a
forecast of the financial resources which will be available to a Council for a
given period, and sets out plans for how best to deploy those resources to
meet its priorities, duties and obligations.

Page 19




This page is intentionally left blank



Flintshire County Council

Draft Improvement Plan
2016/17

Page 21



Priority: Housing
Sub-Priority: Appropriate and Affordable Homes
Impact: Improving the choice and quality of local housing

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Prevent homelessness.
e Meet the diverse housing and accommodation needs of the local population.
e Develop more opportunities for people to access affordable rent and low cost home
ownership.

National Policy Issues:
e Capping of social rents to the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) levels.
e Local Authorities to be able to access grant funding to support new build affordable and
social housing.
e Sufficiency of resourcing to fulfil the new duties of the Wales Housing Act.

What we will do in 2016/17:
1) Deliver a proactive Housing Solutions service to prevent homelessness for as many
households as possible.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Number of housing enquiries resolved at first point of contact
e Maintaining the percentage of all potentially homeless households for whom
homelessness was prevented for at least 6 months

2) Stimulate the growth of affordable housing.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Increasing the numbers of new Council and affordable homes through the SHARP
programme

e Maximising the number of new affordable homes provided through the planning
system

e Increase the numbers of affordable homes provided through the Social Housing
Grant (SHG) programme (will include Extra Care provision)

Risks to manage:
e Homelessness will remain a growing area of demand due to the current economic
climate.
e The supply of affordable housing will continue to be the insufficient to meet community
need.

What we mean by:

SHARP — Strategic Housing and Regeneration Programme — programme to build 500 new
homes over the next four years.

Gypsy / Traveller Community — people with a cultural tradition of nomadism or who choose to
live in a caravan.

2|29
Page 22



Social Housing Grant (SHG) - funds housing schemes that meet local needs and priorities as
identified by local authorities including providing housing for rent or low cost home ownership
through new build or the use of existing buildings.

3|29

Page 23



Priority: Housing
Sub-Priority: Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes
Impact: Improving the choice and quality of local housing

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Provide good quality housing for residents and maximise funding to improve homes.
e Reduce the number of empty properties in the County.
e Meet the Welsh Government target for all social housing to be brought up to the Welsh
Housing Quality Standard (WHQS).

National Policy Issues:
e Maintain the funding of Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) so that the Council can meet
the WHQS standard by 2020
e Maintain current rent policy so that the Council can achieve WHQS by 2020

What we will do in 2016/17:
1) Deliver financial support to repair, improve and adapt private sector homes.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Repairing / improving 40 private sector dwellings through the Council’s capital
programme and Welsh Government’s national Home Improvement Loan
e Improving the timeliness of adaptations, particularly those delivered through
Disabled Facilities Grants

2) Reduce the number of long term vacant homes.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Bringing empty homes back into use for residential living through the Welsh
Government Houses into Homes Scheme

3) Deliver the six year asset management strategy to meet the Welsh Housing Quality
Standard (WHQS) for all Council homes.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Completing WHQS work schemes to a value of £21m, in line with the Housing
Asset Management Strategy

Risks to manage:
e The increased work programme to deliver the WHQS will not be met due to the scale of
the programme.
e Council funding for adaptations and home loans will not be sufficient to meet demand.
e Financial assistance available to repair homes is not taken up by residents.
e Customer expectations for the timeliness of adaptations undertaken through disabled
facilities grants will not be met due to competing demands on resources.

429

Page 24



What we mean by:

Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) — A grant paid to the 11 Local Housing Authorities who still
manage and maintain their council housing which must be used to meet the WHQS.

WHQS — Welsh Government’s physical quality standard for modern social housing.

Home Improvement Loan — a national loan scheme delivered by Local Authorities that enables
short to medium term loans to be provided to owners of sub-standard properties who meet the
affordability criteria.

Adaptations — changes to a person’s home to enable her/him to live as independently as
possible.

Disabled Facilities Grant — a grant available for larger adaptation to a person’s home.

Houses in to Homes Scheme — A Welsh Government scheme to provide loans to bring empty
houses or commercial buildings back into use as homes for sale or rent.

5129

Page 25



This is a priority this year because we need to:
o Help people to live independently as they get older.
e Support people with dementia.
e Develop a model of support for persons with a disability which enables independent
living.
e Support whole families to live independently.

National Issues:
¢ Implementation of the Social Services and Well- being Act.
e Living Wage Issues for care providers, Care Market fragility.
e Aging population locally and nationally.

What we will do in 2016/17:
1) Ensure Care Home Provision within Flintshire enables people to live well and have a
good quality of life.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Delivering the dementia awareness training programme to the care homes
workforce
o Working with Betsi Cadwaladwr University Health Board to develop an action
plan around supporting the quality and breadth of nursing provision
e Improving recruitment and retention in the care market.

2) Support greater independence for individuals with a frailty and / or disability, including
those at risk of isolation.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Establishing a baseline for the people offered advice and support through the
single point of access
e Ensuring that the workforce are equipped to provide person centred care in line
with the requirements of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act

3) Improve outcomes for looked after children.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Developing a unified Corporate Parenting Strategy

e Supporting children in stable, local placements

e Improving the stability of school placements and the transfer process where
moves are needed

e Strengthen partnership working with Health to ensure timely access to health
assessments.

Risks to manage
e Fragility and sustainability of the care home sector.
6|29

Page 26



e The quality of care home services will not meet required standards.

e Children and vulnerable families are not fully supported where multi-agency services
and partners do not move toward an early intervention and prevention approach
together.

e Demand and aspirations for independent living will not be met.

What we mean by:

Community Circles - A way for friends and family to support someone, through regular
meetings with a facilitator.

Social Enterprise — A business with primarily social objectives whose surpluses are mainly
reinvested for that purpose in the business or community.

Co-operative - A jointly owned enterprise engaging in the production or distribution of goods or
the supplying of services, operated by its members for their mutual benefit.

‘Age-Friendly’ Communities - encourage and enable older people to engage with their
surroundings and continue to engage socially within those communities, thereby maintaining
their health, independence and wellbeing.

“What Matters” Conversation - The new model of eligibility for social care is based on a
discussions with individuals about "what matters" to them.

7129

Page 27



This is a priority this year because we need to:

e Work with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop Health and
Social Care models for the future.

e Avoid unnecessary admissions to hospital and support early and successful hospital
discharges.

e Co-ordinate the provision of support for service users more effectively with BCUHB and
other providers.

e Work together with BCUHB to support people with dementia within the local
community.

National Issues:
¢ Implementation of the Social Services and Well- being Act.
e Living Wage Issues for care providers, Care Market fragility.
e Aging population locally and nationally

What we will do in 2016/17:
1) Ensure that effective services to support carers are in place as part of the integrated
social and health services.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Developing and implementing the action plan resulting from the review of the
carers’ strategy

2) Influence the use of Intermediate Care Funds to support effective discharge from
hospital and ensure a smoother transition between Health and Social Care services.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Agreeing the priorities and implementation plan for funding for 2016/17
e Maintaining the rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons

3) Work through the Children’s Services Forum and participation group to improve access
to CAMHS
Achievement will be measured through:
e Number and average waiting time for Looked After Children (LAC) to access
CAMHS

4) Further develop dementia awareness across the county
Achievement will be measured through:
e Number of events (and take-up) aimed at raising awareness of dementia across
the county

Risks to manage:

829

Page 28



e Funding between Health and the Council does not transfer smoothly e.g. CHC, ICF,
Primary Care Funds

e Service provision is not co-ordinated/integrated.

What we mean by:

Intermediate Care Funds — Funding from Welsh Government being used to support older
people to maintain their independence and remain in their own home for as long as possible.
Looked After Children — Children who are being looked after by their local authority, including
with foster parents, at home with their parents under the supervision of social services, in
residential children's homes or in other residential settings like schools or secure units.

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) — NHS-provided mental health services
for children, generally until school-leaving age, in the UK.

929

Page 29



This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Have a Council wide approach to safeguard and protect vulnerable people.
e Develop further awareness and support for the Council’s approach to safeguarding
including the prevention of human trafficking and child sexual exploitation.
e Comply with the new codes of practice for Safeguarding within the Social Services and
Wellbeing Act (Wales).

National Issues:
e Continuity of funding and collaboration with other partners.

What we will do in 2016/17:
1) Strengthen arrangements within all council portfolios to have clear responsibilities to
address safeguarding.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Developing a corporate safeguarding policy which operates as a framework for
each service within the Council
e Development of a performance framework and reporting cycle
e Review corporate and service policies and procedures to identify breadth and
depth of safeguarding coverage

2) Ensure that the workforce are trained in line with the new Codes of Practice for
Safeguarding.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Carrying out a training needs analysis across the Council
e Referral rates from services other than Social Services

3) Ensure that our response rates to referrals remain within statutory targets
Achievement will be measured through:
e Statutory procedural targets for child and adult protection

Risks to manage:
e Safeguarding arrangements do not meet the requirements of the SSWB Act.

What we mean by:

Child sexual exploitation (CSE): a type of sexual abuse in which children are sexually exploited
for money, power or status. Children or young people may be tricked into believing they're in a
loving, consensual relationship. They might be invited to parties and given drugs and alcohol.
They may also be groomed online.

Social Services and Well Being (SSWB) Act 2014 - An Act to reform social services law to make
provision about improving well-being outcomes.

10 | 29

Page 30



Adult at Risk - A person over the age of 18 who is (a) experiencing or is at risk of abuse or
neglect, (b) has needs for care and support (whether or not the authority is meeting any of
those needs), and (c) as a result of those needs is unable to protect himself or herself against
the abuse or neglect or the risk of it.

1129

Page 31



Priority: Economy and Enterprise
Sub-Priority: Business Sector Growth & Regeneration
Impact: Growing the economy and creating jobs

This is a priority this year because we need to:

e Grow the local and regional economy, with a target to increase Flintshire’s Gross Value
Added (GVA) to the UK average (currently 88%) by 2030.

e Secure the infrastructure investment needed to facilitate growth both regionally and
locally.

e Build upon the success of the advanced manufacturing sector in Flintshire and facilitate
business innovation, adaptability and supply chain development.

e Protect the economic viability of our town centres and rural areas.

e Work collaboratively to achieve key priorities for major infrastructure projects which
will support economic growth objectives

National Policy Issues:

e Recognition that Flintshire is part of the Northern Powerhouse and a key player in the
delivery of the Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Growth deal
for the Mersey Dee area and for North Wales.

e Devolution of powers to support economic growth in North Wales (opportunity and
possible threat if powers are insufficient and do not match those in England).

e Infrastructure investment to create the platform for advancing economic growth.

e Change from national to local control of business rates.

What we will do in 2016/17:
1) Strategic / Regional positioning in readiness for future accelerated growth (Northern
Powerhouse, LEP)
Achievement will be measured through:
e Contributing to the development and delivery of a clear cross border economic
growth strategy for Flintshire
e Success in gaining approval and/or funding for programmes which will support
economic growth

2) Maximise the economic value of transformation projects (DEZ / SHARP / Northern
Gateway / Warren Hall, V&VP)
Achievement will be measured through:
e Monitoring and supporting the implementation of the transformation projects
e Supporting supply chain development
e Converting business enquiries to investment within Flintshire

3) Facilitate the creation of jobs
Achievement will be measured through:
e Creating jobs within Flintshire
e Creating jobs within Flintshire through our large scale capital programmes
(WHQS and SHARP)

12| 29

Page 32



4) Strengthen the economic benefits of town centres and the visitor economy
Achievement will be measured through:
e Supporting the development and management of visitor facilities in key urban
areas and along the Dee coastline.
e Facilitating private sector investment in town centres.
e Expanding the North East Wales Ambassadors programme in Flintshire.

Risks to manage:

e The Northern Powerhouse and LEP could pose risks to the growth of the Flintshire
economy if there is not devolution of powers and freedoms to match those being
developed in England.

e Infrastructure investment does not keep pace with needs and business is lost to the
economy.

e Support for businesses in Flintshire doesn’t meet their needs and fails to encourage
investment.

What we mean by:

Gross Value Added (GVA) - Measures the contribution to the economy of each individual
producer, industry or sector.

Northern Powerhouse — A collaboration concerned with redressing the North-South economic
imbalance, aiming to attract investment into northern cities and towns.

Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) - Welsh Government’s physical quality standard for
modern social housing.

Strategic Housing and Regeneration Programme (SHARP) - Programme to build 500 new
homes over the next five years.

North East Wales Ambassadors programme - a network committed to encouraging visitors to
the region, projecting a positive image and generating more business for local suppliers.

13| 29

Page 33



Priority: Skills and Learning
Sub-Priority: Apprenticeships and Training
Impact: Improving learning provision and opportunities to achieve better learner outcomes

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Extend and improve the available education, employment and training opportunities
e Improve the employment prospects of local people to meet the needs of local
employers
e Help young people take the step from education to employment
e Reduce barriers to engagement, ensure equality of access and participation
opportunities for all children and young people

National Policy Issues:
e Delays of the European Social Fund (ESF) Programmes affecting delivery of local targets.

e Apprenticeship levy (Full wording TBC)

What we will do in 2016/17:
1) Work with the public, private and voluntary sectors to maximize the number of

apprenticeships, traineeships and work experience opportunities.

2) Increase training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks Flintshire
Apprenticeship Academy and major capital programmes.

3) Support the Young Entrepreneur Programme with the Flintshire Business
Entrepreneurship Network (BEN).

4) Further develop the Youth Engagement and Progression work programme for learners
in danger of disengaging through:

e Targeting vocational and employability skills

e Enhancing personal support, including coaching, mentoring and help with
transition

e Realise the benefits of regional European Social Fund (ESF) programmes (Trac,
Adtrac, Opus, Communities 4 Work)

e Increasing the use of release on temporary licence (ROTL) for young people in
the youth justice service; to better engage with post-custody education, training
and employment prior to release.

Achievement will be measured through:

e Increasing the numbers of training and apprenticeship opportunities

e Increasing training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks
Flintshire Apprenticeship Academy and major capital programmes

e The number of entrepreneurs supported through the Flintshire BEN

e Improving the local skills base to improve employability and earning prospects
through improved qualifications

e Increasing the numbers of learners achieving the Level 1 Threshold

14 | 29

Page 34



e Maintaining levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training above
benchmark position

e Reducing the number of 18 — 24 year olds claiming Jobseekers Allowance

e Rolling out ROTL to new institutions/partners

e Meeting ESF programme targets

Risks to manage:
e Local employers and learning providers do not work closely enough to identify and meet
the skills based needs of the future
e Training places will not match current and future employer aspirations and needs
e Timescales of ESF programmes will not meet local targets and requirements.

What we mean by:

European Social Fund (ESF) Programmes: To increase the employability of local people (aged
25 and over) who have complex barriers to employment.

Young Entrepreneur Programme: an opportunity for young people to work with mentors on
their business ideas.

Flintshire Business Entrepreneurship Network (BEN): employers working together to support
Entrepreneurship Programmes.

Construction and Retail Academies: construction and retail training to meet the current needs
of the labour market.

Youth Engagement and Progression Framework: aims to reduce the number of young people
not in education, employment or training (NEET).

Youth Justice Service: aims to prevent children and young people under 18 from offending or
re-offending.

Level 1 Threshold: 16 year old learners achieve five or more A*-G grades at GCSE or equivalent.

15| 29

Page 35



Priority: Skills and Learning
Sub-Priority: Modernised and High Performing Education
Impact: Improving learning provision and opportunities to achieve better learner outcomes

This is a priority this year because we need to:

e Utilise resources effectively to achieve the best possible educational outcomes

e Support the national Welsh Government priorities to improve literacy and numeracy
outcomes and reduce the impact of poverty on educational attainment

e Improve digital literacy and skills to enable access to modern employment and
economic development opportunities

e Work collaboratively to develop national reforms to curriculum, assessment and
professional development models

e Work effectively with partners across the region to secure efficiency and improved
outcomes from educational improvement programmes

e Make more efficient use of education resources through School Modernisation

National Policy Issues:
e Sustainable multi-year funding strategy for education funding following the National
Assembly for Wales elections in May
e Rationalisation of the provision, planning and accountability processes for education
related specific grants.
e Affordability of the 21st Century Schools programme new phases
e Simplification of the process for school place planning and provision

What we will do in 2016/17:
Make a difference through our Education & Youth Improvement and Modernisation Strategy by
raising standards through:-
1) Working effectively with the Regional School Improvement Service (GWE) to:
e Develop leadership capacity in schools through school modernisation and
regional working;
e Share best teaching practice and resources across schools most in need;
e Identify and target support for those schools most in need;
e Develop the capacity of schools to respond to national initiatives and curriculum
reforms; and
e Improve skills in digital literacy, literacy and numeracy
2) Reducing the impact of poverty and disadvantage through the national school
improvement priority, Families First Programme (2015-17) and Flintshire’s Integrated
Youth Services Strategy (2014-18), “Delivering Together”.
3) Improving outcomes for Looked After Children and young people exiting the Youth
Justice System.
4) Continuing to implement Band A of the 215t Century Schools Programme.
5) Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation,
through the 21t Century School (Band B) programme.
6) Securing a sustainable strategy for repairs and maintenance of school buildings.
7) Securing a sustainable set of transport policies and efficient delivery practices.

16 | 29

Page 36



8) Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms.

Achievement will be measured through:

= |mproving outcomes in Mathematics, English/Welsh 1st Language and Core Subject
Indicator at Foundation Phase and Key Stages 2 & 3

= Improving outcomes in Key Stage 4 including Level 2 Inclusive Threshold, Capped Points
Score and A*-A Threshold

= Raising standards achieved by learners who are entitled to free school meals

= |mproving the number of hours in education, training or employment that young people
in the youth justice system can access

=  Completing key milestones for the 21st Century School and School Modernisation
programmes

= Develop and implement a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through
the 21st Century School (Band B) programme.

= Maintaining levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training above the
Council's benchmark position

= Securing a sustainable strategy for repairs and maintenance of school buildings.

= Securing a sustainable set of transport policies and efficient delivery practices.

= Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms.

Risks to manage:
e Schools do not receive and/or make best use of the support they need from the Council
and GwE
e Numbers of school places not matching the changing demographics.
e Limited funding to address the backlog of known repair and maintenance works in
Education & Youth assets
e Leadership capacity does not match school needs

What we mean by:

Regional School Improvement Service (GWE): School Effectiveness and Improvement Service
for North Wales, works alongside and on behalf of the Local Authorities to develop excellent
schools across the region.

Youth Justice Service: aims to prevent children and young people under 18 from offending or
re-offending.

Core Subject Indicator: learners achieve the expected level in Mathematics, English or Welsh
1st language and Science.

Level 2 Inclusive Threshold: 16 year old learners achieve five or more A*-C grades at GCSE
including Mathematics and English/Welsh first Language.

Capped Points Score: 16 year old learners are awarded points for each grade they achieve. The
best eight subjects then make their Capped Points Score.

A*-A Threshold: 16 year old learners who achieve five or more A* or A grades at GCSE

21st Century Schools - a national programme of funding to improve school buildings and
environments.

School Modernisation: the process by which the Local Authority ensures there are a sufficient
number of high quality school places, of the right type in the right locations.

17 | 29

Page 37



Priority: Safe Communities
Sub-Priority: Community Safety
Impact: Keep people and communities safe

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Support victims of domestic abuse.
e Minimise the impact of substance misuse on the individuals, their families and
communities in the County.

e Understand the requirements of the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and
Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015.

National Issues:
e Sustainability of short-term grant funded schemes.

What we will do in 2016/17:
1) Develop a plan to deliver the key outcomes of the North Wales Safer Communities
Board (NWSCB) Community Safety Plan.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Reviewing the performance of the delivery framework of the NWSCB
e Flintshire Public Service Board (PSB) adopting and following the key priorities of
the regional Community Safety Plan

2) Contribute to the delivery of the North Wales Community Safety Plan priorities:
o Reducing the impact of domestic abuse on high risk repeat victims.
o Managing the impacts of substance misuse through improved service provision.
o Managing the impacts of the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual
Violence (Wales) Act 2015.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Addressing high risk repeat instances of domestic abuse
e Continuing to meet Welsh Government targets for ‘completed treatments’ and
waiting times for substance misuse services.
e Agreeing a coordinated response to meeting the requirements of the Act

3) Reduce the fear of crime by making best use of the latest technologies including closed
circuit television (CCTV).
Achievement will be measured through:
e Agreement of a forward plan for the resilience of the control room (location and
technology renewal)
e Agreement of a new business and funding plan for the future service
e Maintaining continuity of service during the service review
e Maintaining continuity of Council and Town and Community Council partnership
funding during the service review

18 | 29

Page 38



Risks to manage:
e Lack of sustainable funding to deliver nationally determined community safety
priorities.
e Retention of experienced and skilled staff due to the short term grant funding regime.

What we mean by:
e Substance Misuse — the continued use of drugs or alcohol despite negative
consequence to the individual using, their friends, family and the community.
e CCTV —to prevent and respond to crime and disorder.

19 | 29

Page 39



This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Support people to manage the ongoing impact of Welfare Reform.
e Help people claim the benefits they are entitled to.
e Help people manage their financial commitments.
e Reduce the risk of poverty for families, children and young people.
e Reduce the impact of rises in fuel costs.

National Policy Issues:
e UK Government welfare reforms are adversely affecting local people
e Sustainability of funding for fuel poverty measures.
e Delays of the European Social Fund (ESF) Programmes affecting delivery of local targets.

What we will do in 2016/17:
1) Provide advice and support services to help people protect their income.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Assisting Flintshire residents to claim additional Social Security and Tax Credits to
which they are entitled

e Assisting people with Welfare Reform changes through the effective application
of the Council’s DHP Policy

e Supporting Flintshire residents to better manage their financial commitments

e Monitoring the speed of processing of Housing Benefit claims: i) new claims ii)
change of circumstances

2) Helping people to get closer to work and / or be work ready through a range of
Government and European funded programmes.
Achievement will be measured through:
e The numbers of local people getting closer to work or becoming ready to enter
work having benefitted from accessing Government or European funded
programmes

3) Deliver energy efficiency measures to homes in Flintshire.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Reducing the overall annual fuel bill for residents
e The number of homes receiving energy efficiency measures
e Creating and launching a national energy efficiency materials and supplier
framework

Risks to manage:
e Demand for advice and support services will not be met.
e Debt levels will rise if tenants are unable to afford to pay their rent.
e The local economy will suffer if residents have less income to spend.

Page 40

20 | 29



e Residents do not take up the energy efficiency measures available.
e Available funding for energy efficiency measures falls short of public demand.

What we mean by:

Welfare Reform: a range of measures introduced by Central Government to reform the
Welfare Benefits system.

Discretionary Housing Policy: Aims to provide a fair and consistent approach to help customers
who require further financial assistance with their housing costs.

21| 29

Page 41



Priority: Environment
Sub-Priority: Transport Infrastructure and Services
Impact: Safely accessing employment, local services and facilities

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Maintain accessibility to and between employment, homes, leisure, health and social
activities.
e Support and enable safe and affordable travel services.
e Minimise congestion and delays on our highway network.

National Issues:
e Sufficiency of national funding and investment for infrastructure improvement projects
and transport services.

What we will do in 2016/17:
1) Use available grant funding to support Council priorities for accessing employment,
health, leisure and education.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Successfully delivering grant funded schemes:
i. Local Transport Fund (infrastructure)

ii. Active Travel (infrastructure)
iii. Rural and Community Development Fund (community transport)

2) Prioritise the Council’s road infrastructure for repairs and maintenance and implement
programmes of work within available funding in order to improve the resilience,
efficiency and reliability of the transport network.

Achievement will be measured through:
e Monitoring the condition of the highway’s infrastructure
e Undertaking inspections to ensure reinstatements meet the required standards
and raise the standard of works undertaken on Flintshire’s network
e Preparation of an integrated network map for “Active Travel”, setting out our
aspirations for improved walking and cycling infrastructure and facilities; having
a positive impact on the resilience of wider transport network

3) Use available funding to support the Council’s priorities to improve road safety on the
County’s highway network.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Delivering WG funded Grant Aided Safety Schemes to address collision trends
and concentration on the road network through the Welsh Government’s Grant
Aid Programme
e Delivering WG funded schemes identified as part of Safe Routes in Communities
e Delivering WG funded road safety initiatives to reduce the risk of collisions of
high risk groups (measures for older drivers, newly qualified young drivers and
motorcyclists)

22| 29
Page 42



4) Work closely with the communities to develop innovative and sustainable community
transport schemes.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Working with interested local communities to develop a Community Transport
Strategy
e Developing community transport schemes to compliment the core network of
bus services

e Development of community transport "hubs" within available funding

Risks to manage:
e Sufficient funding to ensure our highways infrastructure remains safe and capable of
supporting economic growth is not found.
e Sustainable transport options do not remain attractive to users.
e Sufficient funding will not be found to continue to provide subsidised bus services.

What we mean by:

Infrastructure: Facilities, systems, sites and networks that are necessary for the County to
function.

“Active Travel”: Walking or cycling as an alternative means to motorised transport for the
purpose of making every day journeys.

Community Transport: Passenger transport schemes which are owned and operated by local
community groups.

Commercial bus services: following changes made in the 1980s, the majority of local bus
services in Wales are commercially operated by bus companies.

23 | 29

Page 43



Priority: Environment
Sub-Priority: Sustainable Development & Environmental Management
Impact: Protecting our local environment

This is a priority this year because we need to:

Address the requirements of the sustainable development principles of the Wellbeing of
Future Generation Act and Environment Bill.

Balance the need for sustainable development with the protection of the natural
environment.

Continue to reduce our carbon emissions to meet Welsh Government targets and play
our part in helping to address the consequences of climate change.

National Issues:

Reduction of the Single Environment Grant whilst delivering the priority area of natural
resource management.

Reliance on external funding for large scale developments.

Government cap on financial support for solar farms.

Capacity and funding to address flood risks.

What we will do in 2016/17:

1)

2)

Establish an Environment working Group to ensure that the Council adopts an
integrated approach to service delivery which meets the aims and objectives of the
Single Environment Grant (SEG).
Achievement will be measured through:

e Gaining approval to the grant submission

e Establishing a Single Environment Group

e Monitoring progress and claiming the equivalent grant funding

Agree the Local Development Plan’s vision and objectives, and options to accommodate
growth.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Undertaking a renewable energy assessment for the LDP in partnership with
Wrexham Council which will inform the pre-deposit and later deposit plan
e Agree arevised timetable and delivery agreement with Welsh Government
leading to the pre-deposit plan
e Publicising the pre-deposit plan
e Completing the public consultation on the pre-deposit plan

3) Reducing our Carbon footprint.

Achievement will be measured through:
e Creating two solar farms on Flintshire County Council land
e Install an electricity link between Brook Hill Landfill site and Alltami Depot or
agree a virtual private network with Scottish Power to fully utilise the energy
generated and reduce costs

24| 29
Page 44



e Undertaking a heat mapping and master planning exercise in Flint to assess the
potential opportunity for a biomass centre

e Creating a waste transfer station in Greenfield

e Improving recycling performance

e Reducing our carbon emissions

4) Reviewing the Flood Risk Management Strategy.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Completing Flintshire’s Local Flood Risk Management Plans
e Developing a list of priority flood alleviation schemes based on transparent
criteria

5) Reducing the occurrence and impact of environmental crime.
Achievement will be measured through:
e |dentification of environmental crime hotspots from local intelligence and service
requests
e Targeted enforcement campaigns in hotspot areas

Risks to manage:

e Reduction of the Single Environment Grant.

e Recycling programmes are not supported by the public and employees.

e Limitations on suitable Council sites with sufficient area for larger scale renewables
schemes and suitable connections to the electric grid.

e Funding will not be secured for priority flood alleviation schemes.

e Customer expectations around the delivery of flood alleviation schemes are not
effectively managed.

e Environmental crime programmes are not supported by the public and employees.

What we mean by:

Single Environment Grant: a WG grant to support integrated delivery of natural resource
management, waste & resource efficiency and local environmental quality.

Renewable Energy Schemes: schemes designed to use energy from a source that is naturally
replenished e.g. sunlight.

Carbon Reduction Commitment: a mandatory scheme aimed at improving energy efficiency
and reducing emissions in large public sector and private organisation.

Energy Generation: generation of heat and electricity.

Biomass: biologically material derived from living of recently living organisms.

Waste Transfer Station: Facility to bulk and bale waste for onward transportation.
Environmental Crime: e.g. dog fouling, littering and fly tipping.

25 | 29

Page 45



Priority: Modern & Efficient Council
Sub-Priority: Developing Communities
Impact: Supporting communities to become more resilient

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Build on what has been completed in year one (2015/16) with support for local
communities. In year two this will be concentrated on:

o Developing the community and social sectors to support local communities to be
more self-sufficient.

o Creating alternative delivery models within the community and social sector to
sustain valued public services.

o Developing social enterprises, who are able to act for the benefit of local
communities and create both employment and economic opportunities.

o Realising social benefits in the community e.g. increasing volunteering and
training opportunities for young people; keeping local money in the community.

o Ensuring our Armed Forces Community and their families are recognised for
their commitment.

National Policy Issues:
e Lack of support programmes for the development of alternative delivery models.
e Role of Town and Community Councils in cooperative working and local governance as
detailed in the Local Government Bill 2015.
e Strengthening of the social sector to be more commercial and less reliant on grant
funding.

What we will do in 2016/17:

1) Develop the community and social sectors through developing and growing social
enterprises in Flintshire, in turn supporting and creating new forms of local business.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Monitoring the number of new social enterprises developed
e Monitoring the number of social enterprises supported to thrive and prosper
e Monitoring community benefits delivered by new social enterprises

2) Encourage volunteers and active citizens.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Monitoring the impact of the local volunteering policy

3) Ensure community benefit through our commissioning of goods and services and their
impact.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan
e Monitoring the percentage of community benefit clauses included in new
procurement contracts

26 | 29

Page 46



4) Design and implement alternative delivery models (ADMs) to sustain important services

5)

to meet future need.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Monitoring the level of efficiencies ADMs have supported

e Monitoring the number of services sustained through delivery via alternative
models

Empower communities to run and manage facilities in their locality through Community
Asset Transfers (CATs).
Achievement will be measured through:

e Monitoring the number of public assets safely transferred to the community

e Monitoring community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers

Risks to manage:

The capacity and appetite of the community and social sectors.

The willingness of the workforce and Trade Unions to embrace change.
Market conditions which the new alternative delivery models face.
Limitations on public funding to subsidise alternative models.

Procurement regulations stifling our ability to develop local community and third sector
markets

Newly established Social Enterprises fail in their early stages of development
Newly established Community Asset Transfers fail in their early stages of development

What we mean by:

Social Enterprise: businesses with primarily social objectives whose surpluses are mainly
reinvested for that purpose in the business or community.

Community Benefit Clauses: benefits to local communities from major procurements e.g.
training and employment opportunities, community facilities.

Alternative Delivery Models (ADMs): new approaches to service delivery designed to sustain
important services and meet future need.

Community Asset Transfers (CAT): the leasehold transfer of a Flintshire County Council asset to
an organisation with a social purpose who plans to use it for the benefit of the local community.

27 | 29

Page 47



Priority: Modern & Efficient Council
Sub-Priority: Improving Resource Management
Impact: Front line services are efficiently and effectively supported

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Manage with reducing resources.
e Continue to aim high despite reduced financial and people resources.
e Make the best use of our capability and capacity in challenging times.
e Have the right buildings in the right places for the right uses.
e Make our money go further through smarter purchasing.
e Achieve the highest possible standards of customer services.

National Policy Issues:
e Reduction in capital investment and resources.

What we will do in 2016/17:
1) Develop and implement a renewed three year financial plan that reflects anticipated
funding, costs and efficiencies to support strategic decision making.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Revising our plan to meet the £XXm funding gap for 2016-2019
e Matching our priorities with revenue and capital investment
e Achieving our efficiency targets

2) Implement the People Strategy to ensure the council has sufficient capability and
capacity to operate effectively as a smaller organisation.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Monitoring the impact of people performance management
e Monitoring the impact of the new Employee Development and Talent
Management scheme on retention of our capability
e Monitoring the impact of the People Strategy in service portfolios

3) Rationalise the Council’s use of corporate accommodation.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Reducing the floor space and costs of occupied office accommodation
e Increasing the number/percentage of employees who work in an agile way

4) Optimise purchasing efficiencies through the use of local, regional and national
procurement arrangements and through the increased use of electronic solutions.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Creating efficiencies through the use of local, regional and national procurement
arrangements

e Reducing the cost of procurement through the use of end to end electronic
purchasing

28 | 29

Page 48



5) Embrace digital channels as the default in service design where possible to provide
access to online services at a time and location convenient to the customer.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Increase the number of transactional services online and via the Flintshire App

e Increase the take-up of online services

e Respond to customer feedback ensuring information is accessed at first point of
contact online

Risks to manage:
e The scale of the financial challenge.
e The capacity and capability of the organisation to implement necessary changes.
e The pace of procurement collaborations and our limited control over their development.
e Public attitude to accessing services on-line.

What we mean by:

Employee Development and Talent Management scheme: our scheme that seeks to
encourage employee engagement, talent management, behaviour and competencies
development, learning and skills development.

Procurement Collaborations: ways of purchasing goods and services within agreed terms and
conditions.

Digital Channels: Alternative channels of communication e.g. e-mail, social media, text
messaging.

Transactional Services: Council services for which customers pay.

29 | 29

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



TG obed

Appendix 2

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2016/17

How achievement will be measured -
Supporting milestones and measures

1138



Appendix 2

Appropriate &

Affordable
Homes

Housing

What we will do in 2016/17:

Improving the choice and quality of local housing

1. Deliver a proactive Housing Solutions service to prevent homelessness for as many households as possible.

Achievement will be measured through:
o Number of housing enquiries resolved at first point of contact

O

Maintaining the percentage of all potentially homeless households for whom homelessness was prevented for at least 6 months

sWwhom homelessness was prevented for at least 6 months (HHA/013)

\J

Achievement will be measured through:

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
o Development of the Flint Extra Care provision by Autumn 2017

o Increasing the numbers of new Council and affordable homes through the SHARP programme

o Maximising the number of new affordable homes provided through the planning system.
o Increase the numbers of affordable homes provided through the Social Housing Grant (SHG) programme (will include Extra Care Provision)

. 201718
. Lead Baseline 2016/17 L
Achievement Measures Officer Data (2015/16) Target Aspirational
Target
;H\Iumber of housing enquiries resolved at first point of contact Chief Officer — tbc XXX XXX
intaini i Community and
Maintaining the percentage of all potentially homeless households for Enterpri)ge toe 87% 92%
(
I

2. Stimulate the growth of affordable housing.

Achievement Measures SR seecllmn: I As?)(:::tlilial
Officer Data (2015/16) Target
Target
The number of new Council and affordable homes through the Chief Offlcer - tbe XXX XXX
SHARP programme Community and
Enterprise

Page 238



Appendix 2

The number of new affordable homes provided through the planning
system.

The number of affordable homes provided through the Social Housing
Grant (SHG) programme (will include Extra Care Provision)

tbc

XXX

XXX

tbc

XXX

XXX

G abed

Page 31|38



Appendix 2

Modern, Efficient
and Adapted
Homes

Housing

What we will do in 2016/17:

Improving the choice and quality of local housing

1. Deliver financial support to repair, improve and adapt private sector homes.

Achievement will be measured through:

Improvement Loan

o Improving the timeliness of adaptations, particularly those delivered through Disabled Facilities Grants

o Repairing / improving 40 private sector dwellings through the Council’s capital programme and Welsh Government’s national Home

Disabled Facilities Grant for adults.

Lead 2015/16 2017/18
0 Achievement Measures Officer Baseline 2016/17 Target | Aspirational
@ Data Target
CDRepair/ improve 40 private sector dwellings through the Council’s capital
d ; . tbc XXX XXX
rogramme and Welsh Government’s national Home Improvement Loan.
: Chief Officer —
PSR/OOQa - Thg average numb_er of calendar days taken to deliver a Community the XXX XXX
Disabled Facilities Grant for children and young people. ;
and Enterprise
PSR/009b - The average number of calendar days taken to deliver a tbe XXX XXX

2. Reduce the number of long term vacant homes.

Achievement will be measured through:

o Bringing empty homes back into use for residential living through the Welsh Government Houses into Homes Scheme

Achievement Measures

Lead
Officer

2015/16
Baseline
Data

2016/17 Target

2017/18
Aspirational
Target

Page 4138



Appendix 2

. Chief Officer —
The number of empty. homes brought back into use the Welsh Community and the XXX XXX
Government Houses into Homes Scheme Enterprise

3. Deliver the six year asset management strategy to meet the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) for all Council homes.

YD)

o>

Achievement will be measured through:
o Completing WHQS work schemes to a value of £21M, in line with the Housing Asset Management Strategy
Lead 2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures Officer Baseline 2016/17 Target | Aspirational
Data Target
Capital Works Target — Roofs & Associated Components tbc 209 658
Capital Works Target — Windows tbc 209 287
Capital Works Target — External Doors tbc 209 287
pyCapital Works Target — Kitchen replacements Chief Officer — tbc 1030 1048
) Community and
aCapital Works Target — Bathrooms Enterprise tbc 1398 1488
apital Works Target — Central Heating tbc 190 206
Capital Works Target — Electrical Systems tbc 50 50
Capital Works Target — Smoke Detectors tbc 500 500

Page 5138



Appendix 2

Priority Sub-Priority Impact
Living Well Indi?‘z:gent Enabling more people to live independently and well at home

What we will do in 2016/17:

1. Ensure Care Home provision within Flintshire enables people to live well and have a good quality of life.
Achievements will be measured through:
o Delivering the dementia awareness training programme to the care homes workforce
¢ Working with Betsi Cadwaladwr University Health Board to develop an action plan around supporting the quality and breadth of nursing
provision
e Improving recruitment and retention in the care market

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
¢ Implement joint monitoring tools to support the quality of nursing care by October 2016
Recruit coordinators for Community Circles April 2016 and evaluate the project September 2016

0
@ °
@ ¢ Reduce and streamline paperwork to free up staff September 2016
2?1 e Agree local, regional and national priorities arising from the review of residential care, and develop action plan by September 2016
o
2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures Le_ad Baseline AUy Aspirational
Officer Target
Data Target
Monitoring numbers of agency staff used N/A New Management Management
. , . Measure Information Information
Chief Officer — Social
Numbers of homes which are a ‘service of concern’ Care tbe 3 3
Numbers of homes in ‘escalating concerns’ tbc 2 2

2. Support greater independence for individuals with a frailty and / or disability.

Achievements will be measured through
o Establishing a baseline for the people offered advice and support through the single point of access
o Ensuring that the workforce are equipped to provide person centred care in line with the requirements of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act

6|38



Appendix 2

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
» Loneliness and isolation adopted as part of the “what matters” conversation by October 2016

2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures Ol}zizr Baseline 219a1r612;l Aspirational
Data 9 Target
Number of adults who received advice or assistance from the TBC once
information, advice and assistance service during the year and have not N/A Establish Baseline
contacted the service again (New National Outcomes Framework for Baseline Established
Social Services)
Number of adults who received a service provided through a social TBC once
enterprise, co-operative, user led service or third sector organisation Chief Officer — N/A Establish Baseline
during the year (New National Outcomes Framework for Social Social Care Baseline Established
Services)
. TBC once
-UA\chievement of outcomes for people with a learning disability 2/;232 EBZt:ebllilr?g Baseline
o) Established
T he number of communities committed to becoming ‘Age-Friendly’ tbc XXX XXX
ol

3. Improve outcomes for looked after children
Achievements will be measured through:
o Developing a Corporate Parenting Strategy
o Supporting children in stable, local placements
o Improving the stability of school placements and the transfer process where moves are needed
o Strengthen partnership working with Health to ensure timely access to health assessments.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= Developing a unified Corporate Parenting Strategy by October 2016

2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures Le_ad Baseline AV sy Aspirational
Officer Target
Data Target
SCC/002 Stability of School placements Chief Officer — Social | tbc - Education XX% XX%
Services

7|38



Appendix 2

Timeliness of health assessments (formerly SCC\039 - last measured o o o
nationally 2013/14) Chief Officer — tbe % 81% 85%
SCC/037 Educational attainment of looked after children Education & Youth tbc - Education XX% XX%
Priority Sub-Priority Impact
- Integrated Community . -
Living Well Social and Health Services Enabling more people to live independently and well at home
What we will do in 2016/17:
1. Ensure that effective services to support carers are in place as part of the integrated social and health services.
Achievements will be measured through
o Developing and implementing the action plan resulting from the review of the carers’ strategy
CAchievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
> o Developing the action plan resulting from the review of the carers’ strategy by June 2016
D o Implementing the action plan resulting from the review of the carers’ strategy by October 2016
)1
2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures Le_ad Baseline Ay Aspirational
Officer Target
Data Target
The percentage of identified carers of adult service users who were
assessed or reassessed in their own right during the year who were _ o 080 o
provided with a service (formerly SCA/018¢c — no longer collected ] _ Q3 =89.9% 92 - 98% 98%
nationally) Chief Officer —
: — - Social Services
The percentage of identified carers of adult service users who access Establish TBC once
the ‘Bridging the Gap’ respite and report it having a positive impact on N/A . Baseline
. ) Baseline .
their caring role Established

Health and Social Care services.

2. Influence the use of Intermediate Care Funds to support effective discharge from hospital and ensure a smoother transition between

Achievements will be measured through

0 Agreeing the priorities and implementation plan for funding for 2016/17

8|38




Appendix 2

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

o Maintaining the rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons

o Agreeing the priorities and implementation plan for funding for 2016/17 by October 2016

2015/16 201718
Achievement Measures Le.ad Baseline Ay Aspirational
Officer Target
Data Target
SCA/001 Monitoring the rate of delayed transfers of care for social Chief Officer — Social _
. Q3 =3.03 2 1.4
care reasons (rate per 1000) Services
3. Work through the Children’s Services Forum and participation group to improve access to CAMHS
Achievements will be measured through
o Number of Looked After Children (LAC) waiting to access CAMHS
e Average waiting time for Looked After Children (LAC) accessing CAMHS
0
g
@ 2015/16 2017/18
© Achievement Measures Le_ad Baseline AV Ly Aspirational
n Officer D Target
A ata Target
. TBC once
Number of Looked After Children (LAC) waiting to access CAMHS N/A New EStabI.'Sh Baseline
Measure Baseline .
Chief Officer — Social Established
Services : TBC once
Average waiting time for Looked After Children (LAC) accessing CAMHS N/A New EStabI.'Sh Baseline
Measure Baseline .
Established
4. Further develop dementia awareness across the county
Achievements will be measured through
¢ Number of events (and take-up) aimed at raising awareness of dementia across the county
Achievement Measures Lead 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Officer Baseline Target Aspirational

9|38



Appendix 2

Data Target
Number events aimed at raising awareness of dementia across the Chief Officer — Social
. tbc XX XX
county Services
Priority Sub-Priority Impact
Living Well Safeguarding Ensuring adults, young people and children are safeguarded
What we will do in 2016/17:
1. Strengthen arrangements within all council portfolios to have clear responsibilities to address safeguarding.
Achievements will be measured through
o ° Developing a corporate safeguarding policy which operates as a framework for each service within the Council.
@ * Development of a performance framework and reporting cycle
(fg ¢ Review corporate and service policies and procedures to identify breadth and depth of safeguarding coverage.
3
Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Developing, endorsing and introducing a corporate safeguarding policy by October 2016
¢ Developing a performance management framework and reporting cycle by September 2016
¢ lIdentification of corporate and service policies needing review to include safeguarding by December 2016
¢ Developing training programme for implementation across the workforce September 2016
2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures Le_ad Baseline e Aspirational
Officer Target
Data Target
Empgddmg _safegqardlng awareness and procedures within appropriate 0 259, 100%
policies (policy reviews)
Chief Officer — Social Management | Management
Increased referral rates from services other than Social Services (TBC) Services tbc % gem gem
Information Information
SCA/019 — Adult protection referrals where the risk was managed Q3 =98.82% 98-100% 98-100%

10 | 38



Appendix 2

SCC/014 - Inltla'l child protection conferences held within 15 days of the 93% the 95% 98%
strategy discussion
SCC/034 — Child protection reviews completed in time 98% tbc 98% 100%

Economy and Business Sector Growth

Enterprise & Regeneration Growing the economy and creating jobs

What we will do in 2016/17:

. Strategic / Regional positioning in readiness for future accelerated growth

Achievements will be measured through
¢ Contributing to the development and delivery of a clear cross border economic growth strategy for Flintshire

J e Success in gaining approval and/or funding for programmes which will support economic growth
DQuarterly summary progress monitoring:

o ¢ Contributing to the development and delivery of a clear cross border economic growth strategy for Flintshire
e Success in gaining approval and/or funding for programmes which will support economic growth

2. Maximise the economic value of transformation projects

Achievements will be measured through
¢ Monitoring and supporting the implementation of the transformation projects
e Supporting supply chain development
e Converting business enquiries to investment within Flintshire

Quarterly summary progress monitoring:
e DEZ project
e SHARP project
¢ Northern Gateway project
o Warren Hall project

Page 11 38



Appendix 2

¢ Vibrant and Viable Places project

2015/16 2017/18

Achievement Measures Le_ad Baseline ALY Aspirational
Officer Target
Data Target
Delivery of supply chain development events Chief Officer — kl/l/?aguer\g 3 3
Community & M M

Number of business enquiries converted to investment within Flintshire Enterprise 74% Ir?fgarr%eartri]sr?t Ir?frc])?rgnzr’:i]c?:t

3. Facilitate the creation of jobs

Achievements will be measured through
o Creating jobs within Flintshire

o ° Creating jobs within Flintshire through our large scale capital programmes (WHQS and SHARP)

«

® . Lead Zieals 2016/17 At

Achievement Measures . Baseline Aspirational

(0)] Officer Target

¢ Data Target
Number of new jobs in Flintshire Chief Officer — 2,139 2,150 2,150
Number of new jobs through large scale capital programmes (WHQS) Community & 43 32 40
Number of new jobs through large scale capital programmes (SHARP) Enterprise tbc XX XX

4. Strengthen the economic benefits of town centres and the visitor economy

Achievements will be measured through

o Supporting the development and management of visitor facilities in key urban areas and along the Dee coastline
o Facilitating private sector investment in town centres
o Expanding the North East Wales Ambassadors programme in Flintshire

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
Implement the Coastal Community Fund programme investments in Flintshire's coastal tourism infrastructure by 31st March 2017
Complete the Town Action Plan improvement project to St Mary's Church Square in Flint by 315t Dec 2016

Page 12|38



Appendix 2

e Develop a plan to increase the coverage of brown and white visitor signs in Flintshire by 31st March 2017
e Implement parking improvements in Talacre by end 30" June 2016
e Support the development of community-led visitor facilities (quarterly summary progress monitoring)

2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures OLffeiizr Baseline 219;6/;;, Aspirational
Data 9 Target
Number of town centre private sector investment proposals supported Chief Officer — tbc 3 tbc XX
_ Community & 15 15
Number of new Ambassadors recruited Enterprise 20 (additional) (additional)

g abed

13 | 38



Appendix 2

Skills and Apprenticeships

Learning and Training Improving learning provision and opportunities to achieve better learner outcomes

. Work with the public, private and voluntary sectors to maximize the number of apprenticeships, traineeships and work experience
opportunities.
Increase training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks Flintshire Apprenticeship Academy and major capital
programmes

Support the Young Entrepreneur Programme with the Flintshire Business Entrepreneurship Network

Further develop the Youth Engagement and Progression work programme for learners in danger of disengaging through:

o Targeting vocational and employability skills

¢ Enhancing personal support, including coaching, mentoring and help with transition

¢ Realise the benefits of regional European Social Fund programmes

¢ Increasing the use of release on temporary licence (ROTL) for young people in the youth justice service; to better engage with
post-custody education, training and employment prior to release.

q

PAchievements will be measured through

o Increasing the numbers of training and apprenticeship opportunities

o Increasing training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks Flintshire Apprenticeship Academy and major capital
programmes

The number of entrepreneurs supported through the Flintshire BEN

Improving the local skills base to improve employability and earning prospects through improved qualifications
Increasing the numbers of learners achieving the Level 1 Threshold

Maintaining levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training above benchmark position

Reducing the number of 18 — 24 year olds claiming Jobseekers Allowance

Rolling out ROTL to new institutions/partners

Meeting ESF programme targets

O O O O O O O

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= Participation in ROTL by new institutions/partners by XX/XX/XX

Page 14| 38



Appendix 2

Improved local skills base to improve employability and earning
prospects through improved qualifications:

¢ Number of Flintshire residents qualified to NVQ 2 level

e Number of Flintshire residents qualified to NVQ 3 level

Lead Baseline 2016/17 Target Aszg:a?tlilsnal
Achievement Measures . Data (Summer P
Ll (Summer 2015) 2016) U
(Summer 2017)
Source:
https://statswales.wales.gov.uk/Catalogue/Education-
Increased numbers of training and apprenticeship opportunities: and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Further-
Education-and-Work-Based-Learning/Learners/Work-
Based-Learning/uniquelearnersworkbasedlearning-by-
programmetype-domicile
e Apprenticeshios 2,300 (2013/14 Management Management
PP P Academic Year) Information Information
e Traineeshios 235 (2013/14 Management Management
- P Academic Year) Information Information
églncrease number of training and apprenticeship opportunities through
Futureworks Flintshire Apprenticeships Academy and our major capital
oprogrammes:
QT
e Futureworks Flintshire Apprenticeships Academy (does this . ,
include WHQS and SHARP already?) Chief Officer - xX xX XX
Education &
e WHQS (Welsh Housing Quality Standard) contracts Youth 10 3 4
(overall target for the programme is 20 apprenticeships — 2020)
SHARP (Strateqic Housi dR tion P Chief Officer —
. t t( rategic Housing and Regeneration Programme) Community & XX 4 the XX
contracts Enterprise
The number of entrepreneurs supported through the Flintshire BEN XX XX XX

Source: Annual Labour Force Survey:
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/Imp/la/19461573
87/report.aspx?town=flintshire#tabquals

70.2% Management Management
(Dec 2014) Information Information

51% Management Management
(Dec 2014) Information Information

Page 15| 38



Appendix 2

o
¢ Number of Flintshire residents qualified to NVQ 4 level & above (Dei82/8 14) '\f:fg?rgnzrt?s:t I\f:fr;?r%:]?g:t
Increased numbers of learners achieving the Level 1 Threshold* XX% 96.2% tbc XX%
Securing high levels of 16 years olds in education, employment and o o o
training** XX% 98.9% tbc XX%
Reducing the percentage of 18 — 24 year olds claiming Jobseekers XX 4.9% the XX
Allowance ° e 0

*Education targets are based on knowledge of cohort abilities and therefore do not show consistent increases year on year.

**Target may be subject to a mid-year review due to recently raised enquiries about the methodology and subsequent calculation. We do, however, want
to keep this target aspirational.

-DMeeting European Social Fund programme targets:

o Lead 2015/16 2017/18
D Achievement Measures Offi Baseline 2016/17 Target Aspirational
icer D
o) ata Target
uropean Social Fund (Trac):
¢ Number of people gaining a qualification or work relevant N/A New XX XX
certification Measure ° °
¢ Number of people completing a work experience placement or Chief Officer - N/A New XX XX
volunteering opportunity Community & Measure ° °
European Social Fund (Adtrac): Enterprise
¢ Number of people gaining a qualification or work relevant Chief Officer — N/A New XX XX
certification Education & Measure ° °
¢ Number of people completing a work experience placement or Youth N/A New XX XX
volunteering opportunity Chief Officer — Measure ¢ °
European Social Fund (Opus): Social Services
¢ Number of people gaining a qualification or work relevant N/A New 379 399
certification Measure ° °
¢ Number of people completing a work experience placement or N/A New 37% 31%

16 | 38



Appendix 2

volunteering opportunity

Communities 4 Work:

Number of people gaining a qualification or work relevant
certification

Number of people completing a work experience placement or
volunteering opportunity

Measure
XX% XX% XX%
XX% XX% XX%

]9 abed

Page 17| 38



Appendix 2

Skills Modernised and

and High Performing Improving learning provision and opportunities to achieve better learner outcomes
Learning Education

What we will do in 2016/17:

Make a difference through our Education & Youth Improvement and Modernisation Strategy by raising standards through: -
1. Working effectively with the Regional School Improvement Service (GwE) to:
Develop leadership capacity in schools through school modernisation and regional working;
Share best teaching practice and resources across schools most in need,;
Identify and target support for those schools most in need;
Develop the capacity of schools to respond to national initiatives and curriculum reforms; and
Improve skills in digital literacy, literacy and numeracy
Reducing the impact of poverty and disadvantage through the national school improvement priority, Families First Programme (2015-
17) and Flintshire’s Integrated Youth Services Strategy (2014-18), “Delivering Together”.
Improving outcomes for Looked After Children and young people exiting the Youth Justice System.
Continuing to implement Band A of the 21st Century Schools Programme.
Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 21st Century School (Band B)
programme.
Securing a sustainable strategy for repairs and maintenance of school buildings.
Securing a sustainable set of transport policies and efficient delivery practices.
Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms.

Achievements will be measured through
* Improving outcomes in Mathematics, English/Welsh 1st Language and Core Subject Indicator at Foundation Phase and Key Stages 2 & 3
Improving outcomes in Key Stage 4 including Level 2 Inclusive Threshold, Capped Points Score and A*-A Threshold
Raising standards achieved by learners who are entitled to free school meals
Improving the number of hours in education, training or employment that young people in the youth justice can access
Completing key milestones for the 21st Century School and School Modernisation programmes
Develop and implement a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 21st Century School (Band B) programme.
Maintaining levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training above the Council's benchmark position
Securing a sustainable strategy for repairs and maintenance of school buildings.
Securing a sustainable set of transport policies and efficient delivery practices.
Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms.

Page 18| 38



Appendix 2

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= Completion of 21st Century Schools (Band A) milestones in line with target dates:
o Holywell Campus Project Phase 1 (buildings) by August 2016
o Holywell Campus Project Phase 2 (external and pitches) by February 2017
o Deeside 6th, Coleg Cambria by August 2017
o Remainder of Band A Programme to be complete by March 2019
= Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms by XX/XX/XX.
Quarterly summary progress monitoring:
» Develop and implement a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 21st Century School (Band B) programme
= Securing a sustainable strategy for repairs and maintenance of school buildings
» Securing a sustainable set of transport policies and efficient delivery practices
Baseline 2015/16 Aspirational
Achievement Measures X 2ELE) VG araes
Officer (Summer (Summer (Summer
2015) 2016) 2017)
g Outcomes in Mathematics, English/Welsh 15t Language and Core Subject Indicator at all Key Stages
 The percentage of learners achieving the Foundation Phase Indicator XX% 87.2% tbc XX%
ig Improved Outcomes in Mathematics at:
o Key Stage 4 XX% 76.3% tbc XX%
o Key Stage 3 XX% 91.8% tbhc XX%
o Key Stage 2 XX% 91.7% tbc XX%
o Foundation Phase XX% 90.9% tbc XX%
. : : _ Chief Officer
Improved Outcomes in English at: Education and Youth
o Key Stage 4 XX% 77.8% tbc XX%
o Key Stage 3 XX% 91.8% tbc XX%
o Key Stage 2 XX% 91.1% tbc XX%
o Foundation Phase XX% 88.9% tbc XX%
* Improved Outcomes in Welsh (first language) at:
o Key Stage 4 XX% 74.3% tbc XX%

19 | 38



Appendix 2

inclusive of Mathematics and English and/or Welsh 1st Language

o Key Stage 3 XX% 89.0% tbc XX%
o Key Stage 2 XX% 90.0% tbc XX%
o Foundation Phase XX% 91.7% tbc XX%
ED_U/OO3 - The percentage of learners achieving the Core Subject XX% 88.8% the XX%
Indicator at Key Stage 2
ED_U/004 - The percentage of learners achieving the Core Subject XX% 88.1% the XX%
Indicator at Key Stage 3
Percentage of learners achieving 5 or more A* to C passes at GCSE or the vocational equivalent
!mprovgment of ogtcomes*ln Capped Wider Points score, including an XX points 362.7 points XX points
increasing proportion of A* and A grades Chief Officer tbc
- ievi Education and Youth
EDU/017 - The percentage of learners achieving the Level 2 Threshold XX% 70.4% tbe XX%

ORaising standards achieved by learners who are entitled to free scho

ol meals, "Looked Afte

r" or are otherwise identified as vulnerable

glmprove performance of cohort of learners entitled to Free School Meals
P (FSM) in achieving the Level 1 Indicator (Five GCSE passes A* to C or
Nvocational equivalent including Mathematics and English and/or Welsh
D1 st Language)

Nl aBp 1

Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled to Free School Meals
(FSM) in achieving the Level 2+ Indicator (Five GCSE passes A* to C or
vocational equivalent including Mathematics and English and/or Welsh
1st Language)

Chief Officer

Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled to Free School Meals
(FSM) in The Capped Points Score indicator. (Points achieved in best
eight course outcomes)

Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled to Free School Meals
(FSM) in achievement of the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 3

XX%

96.1% tbc

XX%

Education and Youth

XX%

62.7% tbc

XX%

XX points

338.7 points
tbc

XX points

XX%

79.9% tbc

XX%

Access to education, training or employment for young people in the Youth Justice System

The number of hours ETE that are offered to those young people of
school age in the youth justice system.

Chief Officer

e 25 hours

Education and Youth

XX%

60% tbc

XX%

Page 20| 38



Appendix 2

e 16+ hours XX% 65% tbc XX%
Maintaining levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training above the Council's benchmark position
ﬁ:;{:ﬂgﬂ high levels of 16 years olds in education, employment and XX% 98.9% the XX%

* Key Stage Definitions:
e Key Stage 4 = achieving A*-C at GCSE
e Key Stage 3 = achieving Level 5 or above
e Key Stage 2 = achieving Level 4 or above

Education targets are based on knowledge of cohort abilities and therefore do not show consistent increases year on year.

d

to keep this target aspirational.

|2

T/ °b

**Target may be subject to a mid-year review due to recently raised enquiries about the methodology and subsequent calculation. We do, however, want

2138



Appendix 2

Priority

Sub-Priority

Impact

Safe

Communities

Community
Safety

Keep people and communities safe

What we will do in 2016/17:

1. Develop a plan to deliver the key outcomes of the North Wales Safer Communities Board (NWSCB) Community Safety Plan.

Achievement will be measured through:
o Reviewing the performance of the delivery framework by the NWSCB
o Flintshire Public Services Board (PSB) adopting and following the key priorities of the regional Community Safety Plan

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= Reviewing of a delivery framework by the NWSCB by 01/10/2016
= Flintshire Public Services Board (PSB) adoption of the key priorities of the regional Community Safety Plan by 31/12/2016

Y

QO

M 2. Contribute to the delivery of the North Wales Community Safety Plan priorities:
.l::)l ¢ Reduce the impact of domestic abuse on high risk repeat victims

e Manage the impacts of substance misuse through improved service provision
¢ Managing the impacts of the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015.

Achievement will be measured through:
o Addressing high risk repeat instances of domestic abuse
o Continuing to meet Welsh Government targets for ‘Completed treatments’ and waiting times for substance misuse services
o Agreeing a coordinated response to meeting the requirements of the Act.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= Agreeing a coordinated response to meeting the requirements of the Act by XX/XX/XX.

2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures Le.ad Baseline S Aspirational
Officer Target
Data Target
The percentage of high risk repeat victims of domestic abuse referred to Chief Officer — XX 289 289
the Flintshire MARAC (target is set in line with the Home Office target) Planning and ° ° °
Environment

2138



Appendix 2

Achieving a waiting time of less than 20 days from referral to treatment XX% 80% 80%
(KPI12) ° (WG target) (WG target)
Achieving the Welsh Government target for the percentage of completed XX 80% 80%
substance misuse treatments (80%) (KPI 6) ° (WG target) (WG target)

3. Reduce fear of crime by making best use of the latest technologies including closed circuit television (CCTV).

c) abprd

J
)
)
)
N
D

Achievement will be measured through:
= Agreement of a forward plan for the resilience of the control room (location and technology renewal)
= Agreement of a new business and funding plan for the future service
= Maintaining continuity of service during the service review
= Maintaining continuity of Council and Town and Community Council partnership funding during the service review

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= Agreement of a forward plan for the resilience of the control room (location and technology renewal) by 31/03/17 tbc
= Agreement of a new business and funding plan for the future service by 31/03/17 tbc

Quarterly summary progress monitoring:
= Maintaining continuity of service during the service review
= Maintaining continuity of Council and Town and Community Council funding during the service review

22| 38



Appendix 2

What we will do in 2016/17:

Achievement will be measured through:
o Assisting Flintshire residents to claim additional Social Security and Tax Credits to which they are entitled
o Assisting people with Welfare Reform changes through the effective application of the Council’s DHP Policy
o Supporting Flintshire residents to better manage their financial commitments
o Monitoring the speed of processing of Housing Benefit claims: i) new claims ii) change of circumstances
2015/16 2017/18
U Achievement Measures Le_ad Baseline by Aspirational
Q Officer Target
Q Data Target
-yAmount of additional Social Security and Tax Credits paid to Flintshire
Ixresidents as a result of the work undertaken by FCC (WEL/001) EXXX EXXX EXXX
Amount of discretionary housing payment (DHP) paid to support people £XXX Management | Management
to adjust to Welfare Reform changes Information Information
Number of residents supported to better manage their financial CC hief Offltcer _d XX Management Management
commitments ommunity an Information Information
Enterprise
Speed of processing of Housing Benefit claims (days):
* new claims 20 days 20 days 19 days
» change of circumstances 7 days 8 days 17 days

Achievement will be measured through:
o The numbers of local people getting closer to work or becoming ready to enter work having benefitted from accessing Government and / or
European funded programmes.

Page 23|38




Appendix 2

c ) abpr 4

volunteering opportunity

Supporting People: (monitored half yearly)

2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures Le_ad Baseline Ay Aspirational
Officer Target
Data Target
European Social Fund:
¢ Number of people entering employment XX XX XX
. Nurr.1.ber.of people gaining a qualification or work relevant XX XX XX
certification
e Number o_f people completing a work experience placement or XX XX XX
volunteering opportunity
Families First: (baseline data based on Q1-3 of 2015/16)
¢ Number of people gaining a qualification or work relevant 133 (108 150 150
certification practitioners, 25
5 Chief Officer - | Service users)
; e Number of people completing a work experience placement or Commun.ity & 15 30 30
s volunteering opportunity Enterprise
NFlying Start: Chief Officer —
e Number of people entering employment Education & Youth XX XX XX
o Numper'of people gaining a qualification or work relevant Chi.ef Ofﬁcer - XX XX XX
certification Social Services
» Number of people completing a work experience placement or XX XX XX
volunteering opportunity
Communities First:
o Number of people entering employment XX XX XX
° Numper_of people gaining a qualification or work relevant XX XX XX
certification
o Number of people completing a work experience placement or XX XX XX

Page 24| 38



Appendix 2

¢ Number of people recording a positive outcome under the outcome

] apbpr

p o . e XX XX XX
measure "Engaging in education and learning
e Number of people recording a positive outcome under the outcome
" S . e XX XX XX
measure "Engaging in employment/volunteering opportunities
3. Deliver energy efficiency measures to homes in Flintshire.
Achievement will be measured through:
o Reducing the overall annual fuel bill for residents
o The number of homes receiving energy efficiency measures
o Creating and launching a national energy efficiency materials and supplier framework
Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= Creating and launching a national energy efficiency materials and supplier framework by XX/XX/XX
)
2015/16 2017/18
)
) Achievement Measures Le.ad Baseline 2016/17 Aspirational
Officer Target
N Data Target
’ The following indicators are provided for information and monitoring only and are not suitable for setting targets against
Overall annual fuel bill reduction for residents*® Chief Officer — £XXX £XXX £XXX
- . Community and
The number of homes receiving energy efficiency measures Enterprise XXX XXX XXX

*The figures for fuel bill reductions and carbon emissions do not exactly correlate as might be expected with the number of homes receiving

measures as this is dependent on the composition of measures.

25 | 38




Appendix 2

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Transport
Environment | Infrastructure | Safely accessing employment, local services and facilities
and Services

What we will do in 2016/17:

1. Use available funding to support Council priorities for accessing employment, health, leisure and education.

) ) abed

Achievement will be measured through:
o Successfully delivering grant funded schemes:
i. Local Transport Fund (infrastructure)
ii. Active Travel (infrastructure)
iii. Rural and Community Development Fund (community transport)

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
o Successfully delivering grant funded schemes:
i. Local Transport Fund (infrastructure) by 31/03/17
ii. Active Travel (infrastructure) by 31/03/17
iii. Rural and Community Development Fund (community transport) by 31/03/17

2. Prioritise the Council’s road infrastructure for repairs and maintenance and implement programmes of work within available funding in
order to improve the resilience, efficiency and reliability of the transport network.

Achievement will be measured through:
¢ Monitoring the condition of the highway'’s infrastructure

e Undertaking inspections to ensure reinstatements meet the required standards and raise the standard of works undertaken on Flintshire’s
network

e Preparation of an integrated network map for “Active Travel”, setting out our aspirations for improved walking and cycling infrastructure and
facilities; having a positive impact on the resilience of wider transport network

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

e Preparation of integrated network map for “Active Travel”......... ??, by 31/03/17 (milestone wording to be confirmed)
Achievement Measures Lead 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17
Officer Baseline Target Aspirational

26 | 38



Appendix 2

Data Target

THS/012 - The percentage of principal (A) roads, non-principal (B) roads 79 8% * 8% *
and non principal (C) roads that are in overall poor condition . . ° ? °

: : : Chief Officer —
Percentage of inspections undertaken to ensure reinstatements meet Transportation &
required standards so as to improve the standard of works undertaken Streetscene 40% 50% 50%
on Flintshire's network. (Results of these inspections are issued to ° ° °
promoters on a quarterly basis to promote best practice.)

*Due to reductions in funding the achievement of these reduced target still represents a very ambitious level of performance

3. Use available funding to support the Council’s priorities to improve road safety on the County’s highway network.

g, abed

Achievement will be measured through:
= Delivering WG funded Grant Aided Safety Schemes to address collision trends and concentration on the road network through the Welsh
Government’s Grant Aid Programme
= Delivering WG funded schemes identified as part of Safe Routes in Communities
= Delivering WG funded road safety initiatives to reduce the risk of collisions of high risk groups (measures for older drivers, newly qualified
young drivers and motorcyclists)

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= Delivering WG funded Grant Aided Safety Schemes to address collision trends and concentrations on the road network through Welsh
Governments Grant Aid Programme by 31/03/17
= Delivering schemes identified as part of WG funded Safe Routes in Communities by 31/03/17

2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures Le_ad Baseline I Aspirational
Officer Target
Data Target
Road safety initiatives to reduce the risk of collisions of high risk
groups:
. . - N/A will depend
e Older drivers undertaking a driving assessment Chief Officer — XX XX on funding
Transportation & /A wil d p
e Newly qualified young drivers participating in Pass Plus Streetscene XX XX Wil depen
on funding
e Motorcyclists attending Bike Safe / FBOS Courses / Scooter XX XX N/A will depend
Safe on funding

27 | 38



6/ abed

Appendix 2

4. Work closely with the communities to develop innovative and sustainable community transport schemes.

Achievement will be measured through:
= Working with interested local communities to develop a Community Transport Strategy
= Developing community transport schemes to compliment the core network of bus services
= Development of community transport "hubs" within available funding

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
»  Work with local communities to develop a Community Transport Strategy by 31/03/17
= Developing community transport schemes to compliment the core network of bus services by XX/XX/XX
=  Number of community transport "hubs" within available funding by XX/XX/XX

28 | 38



Appendix 2

Priority Sub-Priority Impact
Sustainable
Development &
Environmental
Management

Environment Protecting our local Environment

What we will do in 2016/17:

1. Establish an Environment working Group to ensure that the Council adopts an integrated approach to service delivery which meets the
aims and objectives of the Single Environment Grant (SEG).
Achievement will be measured through:

o Gaining approval to the grant submission

o Establishing a Single Environment Group

o Monitoring progress and claiming the equivalent grant funding

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
o Gaining approval to the grant submission by XX/XX/XX
o Establishing a Single Environment Group by XX/XX/XX
o Monitoring progress and claiming the equivalent grant funding by XX/XX/XX

08 abed

2. Agree the Local Development Plan’s vision and objectives, and options to accommodate growth.

Achievement will be measured through:
= Undertaking a renewable energy assessment for the LDP in partnership with Wrexham Council which will inform the pre-deposit and later
deposit plan
= Agree arevised timetable and delivery agreement with Welsh Government leading to the pre-deposit plan
= Publicising the pre-deposit plan
= Completing the public consultation on the pre-deposit plan

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= Undertaking a renewable energy assessment for the LDP in partnership with Wrexham Council which will inform the pre-deposit and later
deposit plan by XX/XX/XX
= Revisit the timetable and delivery agreement with Welsh Government by 31/03/17
= Publication of the pre-deposit plan by 31/03/17
= Completing the public consultation on the pre-deposit plan by XX/XX/XX

29 | 38



Appendix 2

3. Reducing our Carbon footprint.

T8 abed

Achievement will be measured through:
= Creating two solar farms on Flintshire County Council land
= |nstall an electricity link between Brook Hill Landfill site and Alltami Depot or agree a virtual private network with Scottish Power to fully
utilise the energy generated and reduce costs
= Undertaking a heat mapping and master planning exercise in Flint to assess the potential opportunity for a biomass centre

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= Two solar farms to be operational by 31/11/16
= |Install an electricity link between Brook Hill Landfill site and Alltami Depot or agree a virtual private network with Scottish Power to fully
utilise the energy generated and reduce costs by 31/03/17
= Undertaking a heat mapping and master planning exercise in Flint to assess the potential opportunity for a biomass centre by 31/12/16

2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures Le_ad Baseline U Aspirational
Officer Target
Data Target
XX% (reduction)
. , o
EEFLM1 - Carbon Reduction Commitment - Reduce our carbon Chief Ofﬁcer XX% (cumulative o 60 A’.
. . . Planning & . 4% cumulative
footprint through delivery of our Carbon Reduction Strategy (non- ; reduction : .
. : Environment reduction reduction
domestic portfolio) weather
by 2021
corrected)

4. Reviewing the Flood Risk Management Strategy

Achievement will be measured through:
o Completing Flintshire’s Local Flood Risk Management Plans
o Developing a list of priority flood alleviation schemes based on transparent criteria

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= Complete Flintshire’s Local Flood Risk Management Plans by 01/07/16
= Development of a list of priority flood alleviation schemes based on transparent criteria by 01/04/17

30 | 38



28 abed

Appendix 2

5. Reducing the occurrence and impact of environmental crime.

Achievement will be measured through:
= |dentification of environmental crime hotspots from local intelligence and service requests
= Targeted enforcement campaigns in hotspot areas

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
= |dentification of environmental crime hotspots from local intelligence and service requests by XX/XX/XX

Quarterly summary progress monitoring:
= Targeted enforcement campaigns in hotspot areas

3138



Appendix 2

Modern &

Developing

Efficient Communities

Council

Supporting communities to become more resilient

What we will do in 2016/17:

1. Develop the Community and Social Sector through developing and growing social enterprises in Flintshire, in turn supporting and

creating new forms of local business.

Achievement will be measured through:
o Monitoring the number of new social enterprises developed
o Monitoring the number of social enterprises supported to thrive and prosper
o Monitoring community benefits delivered by new social enterprises

Quarterly summary progress monitoring:

g)J o Monitoring community benefits delivered by new social enterprises based on the 8 Community Benefit Agreements drafted in 2015/16
«Q
@ 2015/16 2017/18
op Achievement Measures Le_ad Baseline A Aspirational
w Officer Data Target Target
The number of new social enterprises developed * Chief Officers — 3 3
] . ] Organisational
The number of social enterprises supported to thrive and prosper (support Change & Community 12 12
meetings held with Social Enterprises) & Enterprise

*Developed in 2015/16 - Cambrian Aquatics, Cafe Isa, Mancot Community Library, Connahs Quay Nomads & New Beginnings

Developed in 2016/17 - Trelogan?, Holywell Leisure Centre & Saltney Library

2. Encourage volunteers and active citizens

Achievement will be measured through:
o Monitoring the impact of the local volunteering policy

Achievement Measures

Lead
Officer

2015/16
Baseline

2016/17 Target

2017/18
Aspirational

Page 32|38



Appendix 2

Data Target
Number of volunteers directly placed into volunteering placements Chief Qﬁlqers N Management Management
, Organisational 541 : :
(Source: FLVC) Change Information Information

3. Ensure community benefit through our commissioning of goods and services and their impact.

Achievement will be measured through:

o Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan
o Monitoring the percentage of community benefit clauses included in new procurement contracts

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
o Establishment a Community Benefits Board by XX/XX/XX

+0 apbpr 4

Lead 2015/16 2017/18
J Achievement Measures . Baseline 2016/17 Target Aspirational
) Officer D
) ata Target
) . . . . . :
DPercentagg of cqmmunlty benefit clauses included in new procurement Chief Officer — XX% XX% XX%
L contracts (including those under £2m) Governance

4. Design and implement alternative delivery models (ADMs) to sustain important services to meet future need.

Achievement will be measured through:
o Monitoring the level of efficiencies ADMs have supported

o Monitoring the number of services sustained through delivery via alternative models

Lead 2015/16 201718
Achievement Measures Officer Baseline 2016/17 Target Aspirational
Data Target
Business Plans completed | Establish ADMs
The level of efficiencies ADMs have supported Chief Officers identifying £3m savings by 1st April £3m
- from 2017/18 2017
Organisational i
The number of services sustained through delivery via alternative gChan e 5 services in 3 ADMs from | EStaolish ADMs ,
g by 1st April 5 services
models 2017/18 2017

Page 33138



5. Empower communities to run and manage facilities in their locality through Community Asset Transfers (CATS).

Appendix 2

Achievement will be measured through:

o Monitoring the number of public assets safely transferred to the community
o Monitoring community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers

Quarterly summary progress monitoring:

o Monitoring community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers based on the 8 Community Benefit Agreements drafted in 2015/16

Lead 2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures . Baseline 2016/17 Target Aspirational
Officer
Data Target
Chief Officers — 8 transferred | 15 transferred or | 15 transferred
The number of public assets transferred to the community Organisational orin legal in legal orin legal
Change completion completion completion

Gg abed

Page 34|38



Appendix 2

Modern & Improving

Efficient Resource Front line services are efficiently and effectively supported
Council Management

What we will do in 2016/17:

1. Develop and implement a renewed three year financial plan that reflects anticipated funding, costs and efficiencies to support strategic

decision making.

Achievement will be measured through:
o Revising our plan to meet the £XXm funding gap for 2016-2019
o Matching our priorities with revenue and capital investment? (TBC)
o Achieving our efficiency targets

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

g)J * Produce a revised Medium Term Financial Strategy by XX/XX/XX
@ Lead 2015/16 2017/18
op Achievement Measures . Baseline 2016/17 Target Aspirational
D Officer
Data Target
Chief Officer —
Amount of efficiency targets achieved. People and £XXm £XXm £XXm
Resources

2. Implement the People Strategy to ensure the council has sufficient capability and capacity to operate effectively as a smaller

organisation.
Achievement will be measured through:
o Participation in Flintshire Academies Training and Development programmes
o Monitoring the impact of people performance management
o Monitoring the impact of the new Employee Development and Talent Management scheme on retention of our capability
o Monitoring the impact of the People Strategy in service portfolios

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Monitoring the impact of the People Strategy in service portfolios

Page 35|38



Appendix 2

Lead 2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures Officer Baseline 2016/17 Target Aspirational
Data Target
Number of participants in Flintshire Academy Training and Development XX XX XX
programme
Number of interventions being undertaken:
e Capability process (from the point of intervention from HR) Chief Officer — XX Management Management
« Disciplinary process People and XX Information Information
Resources
Percentage of employee turnover (excluding early retirement and XX XX XX
voluntary redundancy) ° ° °
(CHR/002) The number of working days per full time equivalent (FTE) o o o
local authority employee lost due to sickness absence. 10.38% 9.3% 8.8%

3. Rationalise the Council’s use of corporate accommodation.

()
@ Achievement will be measured through:
@ o Reducing the floor space and costs of occupied office accommodation
93 o Increasing the number/percentage of employees who work in an agile way
Lead 2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures . Baseline 2016/17 Target Aspirational
Officer
Data Target
The reduction in the floor space (m2) of office accommodation occupied XX% 30% tbc XX%
o,
Reduction in the running costs of corporate accommodation (County Chief Officer — 12%2 :/;/:c;fr
Hall, Flint Offices & Library Head Quarters — includes associated staffing Organisational XX% for -22% tbc -XX%
costs e.g. caretaking and security) Change 2 2015/16
Agile working — desk provision as a percentage of staff (County Hall) XX% 78% tbc XX%

4. Optimise purchasing efficiencies through the use of regional and national procurement collaborations and through the increased use of

electronic solutions.
Achievement will be measured through:

o Creating efficiencies through the use of the regional and national procurement collaborations

Page 36|38




Appendix 2

o Reducing the cost of procurement through the use of end to end electronic purchasing
Lead 2015/16 2017/18
Achievement Measures . Baseline 2016/17 Target Aspirational
Officer
Data Target
Achi.evement of efficiency savings achieved due to the use of National, EXXX XXX £600,000 thc EXXX XXX
Regional and Sectoral procurement frameworks Chief Officer —
icienci i i Governance
Elzf;glheansc:lr:a; achieved through the use of end to end electronic EXXX XXX £300,000 tbo EXXX XXX

5. Embrace digital channels as the default in service design where possible to provide access to online services at a time and location

convenient to the customer.

Achievement will be measured through:
o Increase the number of transactional services online and via the Flintshire App
o Increase the take-up of online services
o ° Respond to customer feedback ensuring information is accessed at first point of contact online
S Lert 2015/16 201718
Achievement Measures . Baseline 2016/17 Target Aspirational
oo Officer
o0 Data Target
::r}ic;:';erll?;tge number of transactional services online and via the XX XX XX
pp Chief Officer —
Increase the take-up of online services Community & XX XX XX
Respond to customer feedback ensuring information is accessed at first Enterprise
. : XX XX XX
point of contact online

Page 37|38



Agenda Iltem 5

Sir y Fflint
"E!m!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 19 April 2016
Report Subject Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016/17-2018/19 and
the Council Fund Revenue Budget 2017/18
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager and Chief Executive
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The next version of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) will be set for the
period 2016/17-2018/19. This is the first report to Cabinet which begins to review
the MTFS for re-approval and re-publication. Re-publication of the strategy for this
period will both meet the agreed three-year planning cycle and forward plan Council
financial strategy to 2019.

The original forecast for the 2017/18 financial year, the third and final year of the
current MTFS, set a likely ‘gap’ between the total spending requirement, and
anticipated income, of £13.7M. This forecast has been revised based on more
recent budget developments at a national and a local level.

The Council has adopted a three part strategy of addressing the financial ‘gap’ each
year:-

e Service Reform;
e Corporate Financial Stewardship; and
e Working with Welsh Government.

Cabinet is recommended to continue with this three part strategy.

The current version of the service portfolio business plans have been developed
with options for the period 2015/16-2017/18. Based on current work there are
supportable options with potential for a further round of annualised savings in the
region of £7.9M. The work continues on containing and where possible reducing
corporate overhead costs and commitments.

Page 89



Flintshire, as a low funded council, has made the case that it is particularly exposed
to the impacts of the significant annualised reductions in public sector funding to
meet current and new cost burdens. The risks to Council performance posed by the
financial position will be set out clearly before new Government Ministers once the
new Welsh Government is appointed following the National Assembly for Wales
elections in May.

A full budget setting process and timetable will be published by the Cabinet shortly.
The re-adoption of the MTFS, and endorsement of the proposals within the portfolio
business plans, is an important first step in the annual budget process.

The following tables are included within the report:-

Table 1: A Revised Forecast for 2017/18-2018/19

Table 2: Service Portfolio Business Plan Projections 2017/18

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Cabinet adopts the framework for the revision of the Medium Term Financial
Strategy 2016/17-2018/19; and

2 Cabinet endorses the developing portfolio business plans and corporate
financial stewardship plans for early consultation with the Overview and
Scrutiny Committees.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2016/17-2018/19

1.01 | The Council has set a cycle of reviewing its Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTFS) on an annual basis. Within this cycle the annually updated MTFS is to
be set for a three year period which combines the financial year in-hand with
the two financial years to follow. The first new style MTFS published in two
parts in mid and late 2015 was accordingly for the period 2015/16-2017/18.
The next version of the MTFS will be set for the period 2016/17-2018/19. This
is the first report to Cabinet which begins to review the MTFS for re-approval
and re-publication. Re-publication of the strategy for this period will both meet
the agreed three-year planning cycle, and forward plan Council financial
strategy to 2019. This is significant as 2019 is the year intended by the
outgoing Welsh Government for the election of shadow authorities as a first
step towards the re-organisation of local government in Wales. Whilst it is not
certain that the Local Government Bill on which the out-going Welsh
Government consulted prior to its dissolution will be re-tabled by a new Welsh
Government, for passing through the legislative process, the date of 2019
needs to be kept in view.

1.02 | The current MTFS was published in two parts. Part 1: Forecasting the
Challenge was followed by Part 2. Meeting the Financial Challenge. The

Page 90




intention for the new revision of the Strategy is to publish a single document
which combines the updated forecast with a renewed set of solutions.

Refreshing the Financial Forecast

1.03 | The original forecast for the 2017/18 financial year, the third and final year of
the current MTFS, set a likely ‘gap’ between the total spending requirement,
and anticipated income, of £13.7M. This forecast has been revised based on
more recent budget developments at a national and a local level. Key
variables within this initial forecast will be the eventual local government
financial settlement for 2017/18, local Council Tax levels, standard and non-
standard inflation patterns, and emergent national and local cost pressures.
An initial forecast has been added for the 2018/19 financial year to provide a
three year picture.

1.04 | A first iteration of a revised forecast for 2017/18-2018/19 is shown in Table 1
below.

1.05 | Table 1: Financial Forecast 2017/18-2018/19

2017/18 | 2018/19
Expenditure £m £m
National Pressures 0.7 0.3
Local Pressures 4.0 0.4
Inflation 3.1 3.2
Workforce Pressures 4.1 0.7
Income
Reduction in Revenue Support Grant 2.8 2.7
Council Tax increase (2.5) (2.3)
Projected Gap 12.20 5.00
Footnotes to Table 1:
1. Revenue Support Grant for 2017/18 and 2018/19 is modelled on an
illustrative reduction of 1.5%
2. National and local pressures are working estimates based on latest
information and intelligence
3. Pay inflation is assumed at 1% for 2017/18 and 2018/19
4. Limited provision is made for price inflation
5. Workforce pressures include the ongoing impact of Single Status, Auto-
enrolment, the Apprentice Tax and the outcome of the Clwyd Pension Fund
Actuarial Review
6. Council Tax is illustrated at a 3% annual increase for 2017/18 and 2018/19
7. The initial 2018/19 forecast does not include the impact of Social Care
transition costs or any impacts of the living wage (see para 1.07)
1.06 | The forecast for 2016/17 is not now included as proposals to meet the gap

(originally £20.8m) were approved by Council in February. Progress against
the approved budget for 2016/17 will be monitored and reported through the
monthly budget monitoring report to Cabinet and Corporate Resources,

Page 91




Overview and Scrutiny Committee and an interim exception report is
scheduled for July. The forecast concentrated on the coming financial years
for which we have to plan.

1.07

The initial forecast gap for 2018/19 is relatively low compared to previous
years. However, work is underway to assess some potential significant
pressure areas such as Social Care transition costs and any local impact of
the National Living Wage. These are not yet added in.

1.08

Any forecast can only be predictive based on the most reliable available
intelligence, and working assumptions based on past experience. The
forecast will be subject to change through the decisions of decision-makers
such as Governments, the impacts of national fiscal policies, economic trends,
and changes in supply and demand markets for goods and services. At this
stage national fiscal policy is subject to change as demonstrated in the recent
budget of the Chancellor of the Exchequer and the authoritative economic
forecasts of bodies such as the Office of Budget Responsibility and the
Institute of Fiscal Studies; local government in Wales has not been given an
indicative financial settlement to work with by the outgoing Welsh
Government; unfunded annual workforce cost pressures compound year on
year; significant unfunded cost pressures continue to build in the social care
sector. There is a high degree of unpredictability in planning due to
circumstances beyond the control of the Council.

1.09

The initial forecast set out in Table 1 will be the subject of ongoing
professional review, consultation with Group Leaders and Overview and
Scrutiny Committees, consultation with external advisors and representative
bodies such as the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA), and
refinement, prior to publication. Publication is scheduled to take place no later
than July.

Meeting the Financial Challenge

The Council adopted an MTFS which took a principled but high risk approach
to finding solutions to the unprecedented level of budget savings to be found
in 2016/17. Flintshire, as a relatively low funded council under the local
government funding formula, and one faced with an initial funding ‘gap’ in the
region of £20M in a single year, had limited options to find solutions without
Welsh Government offering some reprieve from the scale of national funding
reductions (for Revenue Support Grant and specific grants) first forecast. The
Council adopted a three part strategy of:-

. Service Reform;
. Corporate Financial Stewardship; and
. Working with Welsh Government

Without some reprieve over the level of national funding reductions the
Council would have faced a position of having to withdraw key services (such
as economic development and business support), closing local facilities some
of which were at a mid-point of transition to alternative delivery models (such
as leisure centres), and reducing funding support to statutory services (such
as education and social services). Such decisions would not only have been
unsupportable by councillors and local communities alike but would have
compromised the achievement of the _Council’'s Improvement Priorities, and

Page 92




possibly undermined the ability of the Council to meet its statutory duties in
full. The Council was eventually able to set a balanced budget for 2016/17
through following this three part strategy, and with a higher level of risk-taking
than in previous years.

1.12 | Cabinet is recommended to continue with this three part strategy. This will
involve:-
e continuing to reduce costs and increase income through service reform
as a central theme of the service portfolio business plans;
e continuing to control and reduce corporate costs through careful
planning and stewardship; and
e working with Welsh Government to maintain sufficient levels of national
funding for local government and for Flintshire, reforming the local
government funding system to give councils greater financial freedom
and flexibility, and properly funding nationally set policies for services
and welfare benefits which councils have to administer.
Portfolio Business Plans
1.13 | The current version of the service portfolio business plans have been
developed with options for the period 2015/16-2017/18. Based on current
work there are supportable options with potential for a further round of
annualised savings in the region of £7.9M as shown in Table 2 below.
1.14 | Table 2: Service Portfolio Business Plan Projections 2017/18

Portfolio 2016/17 2017/18
(Em) (Em)

Planning & Environment 0.413 0.205
Street-scene & Transportation 2.158 2.975
Social Care 0.838 0.765
Education & Youth 0.710 0.873
Organisational Change 1.272 1.082
Community & Enterprise 1.509 0.807
Corporate Services 0.855 1.225
TOTAL 7.755 7.932

Footnotes to Table 2:

1. 2016/17 show approved budgeted efficiencies
2. The projected efficiencies for 2017/18 are subject to ongoing review and
refinement

Page 93




The majority of budget reductions continue to be made through organisational
change, overhead and workforce cost reduction, and service modernisation
and productivity. The service changes where there are impacts for the public
and consultation and engagement will be needed include:-

e the programme of school modernisation and reviews of primary and
secondary provision;

¢ the school funding formula and levels of annual funding;

e changes to social care models; cost recovery through charging and
partnership contribution; entittement and non-statutory service
provision;

e waste policy including household recycling centres and side waste
enforcement; subsidised transport routes; the review of transport
entittement and operational policies e.g. school transport;

e charging and cost recovery for services; and

e minimum service provision and the ‘core service offer to local
communities which could be supplemented by local community action
and local income e.g. through town and community council
contributions.

1.16

The business plan proposals will be shared with Overview and Scrutiny
Committees for consultation through May and June. The proposals, both
those which are internalised and have no direct impact on the public and
those which affect service provision and do impact on the public will be shared
in full with Committees for consultation. The latter only will be worked up for
public consultation.

A specific supporting report on the next phase of proposed service changes
within the Street-scene and Transportation Portfolio is included within this
agenda as the next item. At this stage the proposals for this portfolio have
been limited to those which the Cabinet feel able to support. Neither the
option to move to three weekly collections of residual waste, or to charge for
green waste collections have been taken up. These types of service changes
are being introduced by other councils. The public in Flintshire has
experienced significant waste service changes in recent years and the Council
has to be realistic about the level of change which is tolerable, there would be
practical difficulties for certain types of households in storing residual waste
for a three week period at a time, and charging for green waste may deter
participation at a time when the Council is aiming to increase participation and
achieve higher recycling.

1.18

As in previous years there will be risk to the achievement of proposed budget
efficiencies, either because certain proposals prove to be unacceptable to the
Council or the public in their recommended form or because of complexities in
their practical implementation. The scope to achieve savings through
collaboration with neighbouring councils is limited during a period of
uncertainty over the probability of a reorganisation of local government. These
limitations are both political and practical. Some of the business plans include
pragmatic and beneficial service integration proposals for which support
cannot be achieved with neighbouring councils. This is a limiting factor

Page 94




beyond the control of Flintshire.

1.19 | The business plans will continue to be reviewed and developed for future
years including 2018/19 as the third and final year of the new MTFS period.
The options for identifying further savings at this level, beyond 2017/18, are
limited. The scope for further savings through organisational change,
efficiency, and charging within current legislative and national policy
limitations, is reducing year on year.
Corporate Financial Stewardship
1.20 | The continuing work on containing and where possible reducing corporate
overhead costs and commitments is concentrated in the following areas:-
e Revenue Support Grant retention;
¢ National specific grants reform and income retention;
¢ |ocal taxation policy;
e a corporate income policy covering all current and potential fees and
charges and the levels at which they are set;
¢ inflation and annual revenue provision;
e pay inflation and revenue provision;
¢ pensions reform and the implications of the imminent triennial review of
the Clwyd Pension Fund by the Fund Actuary, and the employer
funding contributions to be made;
e capital financing revenue contributions;
e Treasury Management and investment income;
e the use of reserves and balances;
¢ invest to save revenue provision;
e assessment of national and local cost pressures; and
e the ongoing management and review of the 2016/17 budget and any
future year impacts of its final out-turn.
1.21 | A summary of this work will be reported to the Cabinet and the Corporate
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee in May and June.
Working with Welsh Government
1.22 | The principal issue for national recognition and support for a new Welsh
Government, post-election in May, remain as set out in the current MTFS and
campaigned around for 2016-17:-
¢ medium term financial planning at national level;
¢ sufficient and sustainable levels of Revenue Support Grant;
o reform of specific grants and retention of sufficient current grant funding
levels to maintain services;
e relaxing charging levels for services such as domiciliary care;
o full funding of welfare schemes such as the Council Tax Reduction
Scheme; and
e meeting cost pressures of national legislative and public demand in key
services such as social care.
1.23 | There will be high expectations that a new Welsh Government will adopt a

sustainable strategy for the financing of the public sector and will engage with
the Welsh Local Government Association and member councils at an early

stage of its new term.
J Page 95




1.24

Flintshire, as a low funded council, has made the case that it is particularly
exposed to the impacts of the significant annualised reductions in public
sector funding to meet current and new cost burdens. The risks to Council
performance posed by the financial position will be set out clearly to new
Government Ministers.

1.25

The Independent Commission for Local Government Finance in Wales has
just published its report and recommendations. The report, which has been
anticipated by both local government and Welsh Government, makes a
number of progressive recommendations for financial reform. The report
should inform a mature and realistic set of discussions between Welsh
Government and local government over funding needs, creative solutions, and
the capacity for councils to have the freedom to act under the principle of
localism.

2.00

Council Fund Revenue Budget 2017-18

2.01

As part of the revision of the Medium Term Financial Strategy the Council
should begin to build its budget proposals for 2017/18.

2.02

Based on the initial forecast the budget ‘gap’ for 2017/18 will be in the range
of £12-13M.

2.03

The efficiency proposals within the portfolio business plans will contribute an
estimated £7.9M.

2.04

A full budget setting process and timetable will be published by the Cabinet
shortly. The re-adoption of the MTFS, and endorsement of the proposals
within the portfolio business plans, is an important first step in the annual
budget process.

3.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

3.01

The resource implications of financial are significant. The Medium Term
Financial Strategy will continue to carry many risks. Careful risk assessment
in planning and decision-making will continue to be a central feature of
review and debate.

4.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

4.01

Consultation with Group Leaders, Overview and Scrutiny Committees,
external partners, external advisors and representative bodies, and
eventually the communities of Flintshire will follow. The strategic approach
advocated for the MTFS builds on the current approach which had majority
member and public support in planning the 2016/17 annual budget.

| 5.00

| RISK MANAGEMENT

Page 96




5.01

All parts of the financial forecast, and all budget solutions, are risk assessed
stage by stage. An overall risk assessment and risk management statement
will be produced both for the revised MTFS and the draft annual budget for
2017/18.

6.00

APPENDICES

6.01

None.

7.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

7.01

MTFS Part 1 and 2 :

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-
Strateqy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-1.pdf

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-
Strateqy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-2-September-2015.pdf

2016/17 Council Fund Budget Report :

http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=35776

Contact Officers: Colin Everett and Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702101
E-mail: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

8.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

8.01

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS): a written strategy which gives a
forecast of the financial resources which will be available to a Council for a
given period, and sets out plans for how best to deploy those resources to
meet its priorities, duties and obligations.

Revenue Support Grant: the annual amount of money the Council receives
from Welsh Government to fund what it does alongside the Council Tax and
other income the Council raises locally. Councils can decide how to use this
grant across services although their freedom to allocate according to local
choice can be limited by guidelines set by Government.

Specific Grants: An award of funding from a grant provider (e.g. Welsh
Government) which must be used for a pre-defined purpose.

Office of Budget Responsibility: created in 2010 to provide independent
and authoritative analysis of the UK public finances.

Institute of Fiscal Studies: formed in 1969 and established as an

Page 97



http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-1.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-1.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-1.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-2-September-2015.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-2-September-2015.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-2-September-2015.pdf
http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=35776
http://cyfarfodyddpwyllgor.siryfflint.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=35776
mailto:gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

independent research institute with the principal aim of informing public
debate on economics in order to promote the development of effective fiscal
policy.

Independent Commission on Local Government Finance in Wales:
established to examine how local government funding can be made more
sustainable with a view to providing specific recommendations for
improvement and reform.

Welsh Local Government Association: the representative body for unitary
councils, fire and rescue authorities and national parks authorities in Wales.

Page 98




Agenda Iltem 6

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%h.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 19t April 2016
Report Subject Independent Commission on Local Government Finance
in Wales
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Chief Executive
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In 2016 the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) appointed an
independent commission to examine the sustainability of the local government
finance system in Wales and to recommend improvements for the future.

The Commission has concluded its work and made recommendations. The
Executive Summary of the Commission’s report is appended.

The Commission called for evidence as part of its work. Flintshire made a written
submission following a debate held by full Council held on 20t October 2015.

The Commission follows a similar Independent Commission on Local Government
Finance for England which published its findings and recommendations early in
2015.

The Council in adopting its Medium Term Financial Strategy set out a number of
proposals where national reform and relief is needed.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To welcome the report and recommendations of the Independent
Commission.

2 To support the Welsh Local Government Association in advocating that the
new Welsh Government adopt the recommendations of the Commission
as a priority post-election.

Page 99



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

THE PURPOSE AND FINDINGS OF THE COMMISSION

1.01

In 2015 the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) appointed an
Independent Commission on Local Government Finance in Wales. The
terms of reference of the Commission were to explore:-

e the strengths and weaknesses of the current local government
finance system in Wales;

e options for changing the system of financing local government in
Wales, including both revenue and capital expenditure, with a view
to increased self-sufficiency;

o reforms to encourage greater economic growth in Wales; and

o reforms which secure the delivery of better public services and
outcomes envisaged in the Welsh Government’s White Paper.

1.02

The membership of the Commission is:-

Professor Tony Travers (Chair) - Director of the London School of
Economics;

Chris Hurst - Qualified Accountant;

Professor George Boyne — Pro Vice-Chancellor, College of Arts,
Humanities and Social Sciences and Professor of Public Sector
Management, Cardiff University;

Gill Lewis — Qualified chartered accountant (CIPFA);

Harry Thomas — former Chief Executive of Gwynedd County Council;
Lynn Pamment — PWC partner for Public Sector clients in the West and
Wales; and

Simon Parker — Director, New Local Government Network.

1.03

The Commission has published its report and recommendations. The
Executive summary is attached (Appendix A) and a hyperlink is provided
to access the full report.

1.04

The earlier Independent Commission on Local Government Finance in
England published its findings and recommendations in 2015. There are
strong similarities in evidence and outcome between the two reports.

1.05

The following is a list of recommendations made by the Commission.

“Full localisation of business rates, with 100% of business rates and
business rate growth being retained by local government. In the year of
implementation measures would need to be put in place — such as
adjustments to grants receipts or pooling arrangements - to ensure that no
authority is better or worse off financially than in the previous financial
year.

The Commission commends the fact that Wales is the only nation in the

Page 100




UK to have undergone a council tax revaluation exercise, and
recommends that since even in Wales, properties are taxed based on a
2005 valuation base, a further revaluation needs to be undertaken, with
commitment to this being done on a five yearly basis in the future.

The Commission recommends that the Welsh Government introduce
legislation to make it possible for city regions, or other sub-national
groupings of authorities, to reform bandings and the ratio of council tax
payable from band to band.

The Commission recommends that the incoming government should
devolve to local authorities the setting of council tax discount and the
power to determine who receives council tax support.

The Commission recommends authorities be given a suite of permissive
powers that can be introduced locally, depending on local circumstances.
Examples of powers to be conferred would be the introduction of a tourism
tax. There should be a logic in choosing to levy these taxes, with money
raised to be utilised according to related priorities, so tourism tax to assist
with local development/ regeneration which would aid the tourism industry.

From April 2017, the Welsh Government will also assume responsibility for
the replacements for Stamp Duty Land Tax and Landfill Tax with the
proposal for partial Income Tax devolution by 2020. As the Welsh
Government achieves greater fiscal devolution from the UK Government
the Commission recommends that this should flow through to further
devolution to the local level.

The Commission recommends a substantial reduction in the number,
scope and scale of specific grants. It is the Commission’s belief that
specific grants force councils to use resources on services that may not be
a local priority and are a challenge to local autonomy, service users and
good government, whilst adding additional administrative burdens with
each grant. The Commission’s view is that specific grants should only be
used for a national priority, or for a national function for which the local
authority is an agent. Innovation grants should be limited to a maximum of
three years. All existing specific grants should be folded into the RSG
unless there is special justification. The Commission also recommends
that any further specific grants should be reviewed on a two yearly basis to
ascertain if the case for hypothecation remains valid or to decide if the
grant is to cease or be incorporated within the RSG.

The Commission recommends that the incoming government commits to
full and clear multi-year settlements to enable effective long-term planning
for local authorities and other public services. The Commission would urge

Page 101




rolling three yearly settlements to allow effective planning and appropriate
consultations for required service changes.

The Commission supports councils having the freedom to determine fees
and charges locally.

The Commission recommend that councils are given greater freedom on
capital expenditure by de-hypothecating capital grants.

The Commission recommends the establishment of a Welsh equivalent of
the UK Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR): an advisory, Assembly
sponsored public body to provide independent economic forecasts and
analysis of the public finances in Wales. It would produce fiscal and
economic forecasts and report on the Welsh Government’s taxation and
expenditure assumptions. It would work alongside the UK OBR. Other
duties could include scrutiny of the Government’s policy costing and
assessing the long term sustainability of the public finances in Wales. The
finances of Welsh local government would be reviewed as part of this
process.

The Commission has received a great deal of evidence about the formula
for the RSG being based on outdated data, complex and lacking in
transparency. The Commission therefore recommends the existing grant
regime is frozen and, for the immediate future, used as the basis for the
rolling three year settlements proposed above. This change would provide
temporary stability and predictability, allowing councils to plan effectively
and assist planning with partner organisations. To improve the system in
the longer term, an Independent Grants Commission should be set up to
commence work on a more effective and fairer formula for the future. The
Commission also believe the Grants Commission should be asked to
comment on the use of local authority grants by the Welsh Government
and to undertake a periodic review of specific grants. As the Grants
Commission would be independent, it would be possible to separate the
legitimate role of the Welsh Government in setting the quantum of grant
from decisions about grant distribution.

The Commission recommends that the City Regions are given the power
to add a supplementary business rate, whose sole purpose would be to
assist in paying for large capital projects (similar to the way the Crossrail
scheme in London has been funded). These powers should be available
to other regions as they evolve.

In the longer-term, the Commission see merit in the idea of a locally-
retained share of Welsh Government income tax, or a purer form of local
income tax. But in the short term, we are mindful of the fact that any such

Page 102




recommendations would be complicated by the fact that the Welsh
Government itself is in the early stages of seeing the devolution of income
tax to Wales. Consequently, we recommend considering this issue again
in the next five years.

The Commission query whether Wales currently has a suite of outcome
performance measures that can effectively judge good performance for
councils. The Commission therefore recommends that robust outcome
measures are devised to provide a way of ensuring that increased
devolution of tax powers can be seen to improve performance.”

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) of the Council involves
planning the use of the financial resources of the Council for a three year
period.

2.02 | The recommendations of the Commission advocate the reform of the Local
Government Funding System which, if adopted, would support the
Council’s Strategy.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | The full Council was consulted and made a written response during the
Commission’s evidence gathering phase.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | The national reductions in funding for Local Government pose the greatest
risk to the governance, performance and sustainability of the Council since
the previous reorganisation in the mid-1990s.

4.02 | Reform of the Local Government Funding System is critical to mitigating
the risk of reducing public funding levels.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1: Executive Summary of the Commission Report.

Appendix 2: the Council’'s written response to the Commission’s call for
evidence.

Page 103




6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

Flintshire Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) Part 1 and 2 :

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-
Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strateqgy-Part-1.pdf

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-
Strateqgy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-2-September-2015.pdf

6.02

The full report of the Independent Commission:

file:///C:/Users/cedilsp/Downloads/160324-Ambition-for-Change---Aiming-
Higher%20(2).pdf

6.03

The full report of the earlier English Commission:

http://www.localfinancecommission.org/documents/iclgf-final-report

6.04

Contact Officer: Colin Everett
Telephone: 01352 702101
Email: chief.executive@flintshire.qov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS): a written strategy which gives
a forecast of the financial resources which will be available to a Council
for a given period, and sets out plans for how best to deploy those
resources to meet its priorities, duties and obligations.

WLGA: The Welsh Local Government Association represents the
interests of local government and promotes local democracy in Wales. It
represents the 22 local authorities in Wales and the 3 fire and rescue
authorities and 3 national park authorities are associate members.

Page 104



http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-1.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-1.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-2-September-2015.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-Part-2-September-2015.pdf
file:///C:/Users/csdiaeh/AppData/Local/cedilsp/Downloads/160324-Ambition-for-Change---Aiming-Higher%20(2).pdf
file:///C:/Users/csdiaeh/AppData/Local/cedilsp/Downloads/160324-Ambition-for-Change---Aiming-Higher%20(2).pdf
http://www.localfinancecommission.org/documents/iclgf-final-report
mailto:chief.executive@flintshire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The rationale for change

In two months’ time, a couple of weeks after the elections in Wales, it will be the 40t anniversary of
the publication of the Report of the Committee of Inquiry into Local Government Finance —the
Layfield Committee. This 1976 report set a benchmark on issues of local government finance that
have surfaced intermittently since then but by and large have remained unresolved. Layfield spoke of
the lack of buoyancy in local property taxes and the need for regular revaluations, the need to find
other forms of local funding, the rigidity of central government grants and the need to balance equity
across the whole of local government with accountability at the local level. Numerous reports and

inquiries ever since have revisited the same themes.

Whilst there has been broad consistency in the solutions that these reviews have put forward,
wholesale reforms have never been implemented. The financial challenges faced by councils across
the UK pose a profound threat to some local services. In Wales the prospects of structural reform
offer an opportunity to address weaknesses in the system of local government finance that have
remained intractable to others. We are mindful that the pace of reform has been slow and the
changes to the local government finance system in Britain have been piecemeal. This is the

background to our review.

The Welsh financial settlement has to some extent protected local authorities in Wales from the levels
of cuts seen in English local authorities. However, funding reductions have nevertheless been
unprecedented and have drawn into sharp relief a financial regime that is hindering the ambition of
Welsh local authorities, constraining the innovative instincts of the local government workforce and
holding back innovation which could make a substantial contribution to economic growth. On average,
local government in Wales is dependent on the Welsh Government for 83% of its income? (45% from
the Revenue Support Grant, 26% Specific grants and 12% redistributed business rates), with only 15%
being raised locally through council tax (the remaining 2% being made up through appropriations and
adjustments), leading to a deficit in democracy. Local Leaders are faced with decisions that have
implications that are almost universally unpopular whilst having little flexibility over the quantum of

finance available to allow for other scenarios or options.

There is a unique opportunity within Wales to grasp and embrace changes to the financial system. As
plans are made for local government reorganisation, so too plans should be made for strengthening
the finance of local government, whatever the shape of local authorities in the future, allowing for
greater freedoms and flexibilities for local decision making, enabling local authorities to grow their tax

base and reinvest in their areas to boost both the local and national economies.

1 These figures exclude local authority fees and charges, which in 2014-15 amounted to £616m

Page 105



As additional taxes such as stamp duty, landfill and income tax are devolved to Wales, there is an
opportunity to improve the relationship between local and central government from one that argues
about allocation, hypothecation and dependency to one where local government has the freedoms to
make local decisions, boost the local economy and in so doing raise the total tax base in Wales so that

the Welsh Government itself has greater flexibility to pursue other priorities.

The introduction of the Well-being of Future Generations Act (WFG) is another driver for change in
the financial system. It is intended to provide a framework for all public service activity and to
encourage longer term, more collaborative planning. There is a need to find ways that the public
sector can move together in harmony rather than efficiencies in one part of the sector off-loading
costs onto another part. A more flexible financial system with multi-year settlements is virtually a

prerequisite if this is to be undertaken in a meaningful way

The Commission’s vision

A finance system which provides choice and opportunity to be creative, enabling local authorities to
meet the ambitions of their citizens is fundamental to securing good quality, sustainable public

services.
The Commission’s vision is for a finance system that:

e Promotes greater self-reliance and self-sufficiency

e Encourages entrepreneurialism and innovation

e Is more stable, thus allowing for better and easier planning and forecasting

e Promotes local decision-making on service delivery leading to enhanced accountability

e Incentivises growth of the tax base and thus economic growth for the whole of Wales

e Reduces and manages the level of dependency at all levels — Welsh Government (WG) dependency
on the UK Treasury, local government’s dependency on the WG and the individual’s dependency
on public services

e Facilitates the pursuit of the seven goals of the WFG Act in an integrated way

Page 106



Approach to reform

This report provides recommendations for how the finance system for local government in Wales
should be altered to better enable local authorities to meet the needs of their local populations. It is
often the case that one size does not fit all and that centrally determined policies and programmes
will not work effectively at the local level. Local authorities operate in different places under
different contexts; they have different priorities and will fund different services depending on their
communities’ needs. They will collaborate in different ways and with different partners. The principle
of variability has been accepted already; the Cardiff Capital Region Deal, negotiated by authorities
working in collaboration, has begun to change their responsibilities and funding regimes to suit local
circumstances. When local leaders met with the Commission, they confirmed that if business rates
were to be localised they would want this done regionally so as to work together for the wider region;
rather than risk authorities wasting time and resources competing with each other for local gain, which

causes local loss elsewhere.

The Commission has a vision that councils as a whole can achieve greater self-sufficiency. This does
not mean the absence of government grants, but rather stability in grant allocations and control over
directly raised revenues (and possibly in the future assigned resources) such that councils can shape
the destiny of their area without over-dependency on central government. We believe that not only
is this better for local accountability, but is essential to underpin the new methods of working needed
to protect service outcomes to residents at a time of public funding austerity. As councils drive growth
in their local areas, this in turn will drive growth in the central government tax base as income tax is

devolved to Wales.

Aims of the reforms

The Commission is mindful of the ongoing process of local government reorganisation in Wales and
has satisfied itself that the recommendations made would work for the existing model of 22
authorities, whilst being transferable to any new map of local government created by the Welsh

Government.

The Commission concluded that the existing system has not failed, but believes that by making a series
of alterations it would work far better for both citizens and for the organisations themselves. We are
clear that by adopting our pragmatic recommendations, there are reasons for cautious optimism
whatever the future number of local authorities in Wales. Once these recommendations are

implemented, they should lead to a system that:

e Strengthens local accountability — if a greater proportion of a council’s funding comes directly
from its local tax base, it is more directly accountable to its citizens and businesses for the impact

of decisions it makes

Page 107



e Supports and encourages innovation — local councils in Wales should be free to respond to local
issues flexibly and creatively. Greater freedom and acceptance that there is often not a “one size
fits all” solution to problems that appear similar but often have differing factors at play due to
demography and geography

o Allows greater local discretion to respond differently in different areas — with fewer constraints
via grants there is an opportunity for expenditure decisions to become more localised, prioritising
needs to be met in the most appropriate way according to local knowledge

e Reduces local government’s dependency on the Welsh Government

e Incentivises growth in the local economy — with a direct link between economic development and
their own financial well-being through retention of business rates

e Allows the Welsh Government to hold local government to account for performance and
outcomes in a more rigorous and effective way

e Enables and encourages the pursuit of a more prosperous Wales to be tackled simultaneously

with pursuit of the other six goals in the WFG Act.

The Commission feel that the recommended package of reforms that follow will significantly enhance
the ability of local government to better respond to the needs of its citizens whilst being low risk,
logical, achievable and, above all, practical. They will also be applicable regardless of the shape of local

government in the future.
Reforms

Taxation

e Non-domestic rates be retained in full by local authorities

e |nthe year of implementation for non-domestic rates retention, measures be put in place — such
as adjustments to grants receipts or pooling arrangements — to ensure that no authority is better
or worse off financially than in the previous financial year

e City Regions are given the power to add a supplementary business rate whose sole purpose would
be to assist in paying for large capital projects. These powers should be available to other regions
as they evolve

e A revaluation of council tax be undertaken as soon as possible and at least every five years
thereafter

e The Welsh Government introduce legislation to make it possible for city regions, or other sub-
national groupings of authorities, to reform bandings and the ratio of council tax payable from

band to band

Page 108



Existing council tax discounts be reviewed with the objective of giving individual local authorities
discretion over their use

The Welsh Government legislates to introduce a permissive list of small local revenues for local
authorities to use

As Welsh Government achieves greater fiscal devolution this should flow through to the local level
The merit of a locally-retained share of Welsh Government income tax should be considered again

in the next five years

Fees and charges

Local authorities be given greater discretion over the range and level of fees and charges

Grants

Existing specific grants be incorporated within the Revenue Support Grant (RSG) unless there is a
compelling case for a time-limited use of a particular grant
Every specific grant be reviewed on a two yearly basis to ascertain if the case for hypothecation

remains valid or to decide if the grant is to cease or be incorporated within the RSG

Multi-Year funding

Indicative rolling three yearly grant settlements are introduced

Capital expenditure

De-hypothecation of capital funding streams

New independent bodies

A Welsh Office of Budget Responsibility be created to independently examine the Government’s
revenue and expenditure forecasts, including the assumptions made about local government
finance and expenditure

The existing RSG formula be frozen and an Independent Grants Commission be established to

oversee the development and future operation of a new grant distribution formula

Performance management

The Welsh Government review its arrangements for the performance management of local
authorities, so authorities are able to properly evidence how well they are using their increased

revenue raising powers and how well services are performing

Page 109



Benefits for the Welsh Government

These proposals, if progressively rolled out, would increase the tax base from devolved income tax
due to the increased growth in local areas. The system for distributing dwindling resources would be
de-politicised as the new Grants Commission would work on a new formula to replace the existing
one which has been added to over a number of years and which few, if any, can now claim to fully
understand, let alone explain to members of the public. The removal and reduction of ring-fenced
grants would enable councils to better respond to the drivers of local needs, whilst also reducing the
significant administrative costs involved from all sides. The freedom would also encourage a greater
spirit of public sector entrepreneurship that is fettered by existing constraints, but is vital if the

approaches required by the WFG Act are to become a reality.

Recommendations

The Commission recommends full localisation of business rates, with 100% of business rates and
business rate growth being retained by local government. In the year of implementation measures
would need to be put in place — such as adjustments to grants receipts or pooling arrangements - to

ensure that no authority is better or worse off financially than in the previous financial year.

The Commission commends the fact that Wales is the only nation in the UK to have undergone a
council tax revaluation exercise, and recommends that since even in Wales, properties are taxed based
on a 2005 valuation base, a further revaluation needs to be undertaken, with commitment to this

being done on a five yearly basis in the future.

The Commission recommends that the Welsh Government introduce legislation to make it possible
for city regions, or other sub-national groupings of authorities, to reform bandings and the ratio of

council tax payable from band to band.

The Commission recommends that the incoming government should devolve to local authorities the

setting of council tax discount and the power to determine who receives council tax support.

The Commission recommends authorities be given a suite of permissive powers that can be
introduced locally, depending on local circumstances. Examples of powers to be conferred would be
the introduction of a tourism tax. There should be a logic in choosing to levy these taxes, with money
raised to be utilised according to related priorities, so tourism tax to assist with local development/

regeneration which would aid the tourism industry.

From April 2017, the Welsh Government will also assume responsibility for the replacements for
Stamp Duty Land Tax and Landfill Tax with the proposal for partial Income Tax devolution by 2020. As
the Welsh Government achieves greater fiscal devolution from the UK Government the Commission

recommends that this should flow through to further devolution to the local level.

Page 110



The Commission recommends a substantial reduction in the number, scope and scale of specific
grants. Itis the Commission’s belief that specific grants force councils to use resources on services that
may not be a local priority and are a challenge to local autonomy, service users and good government,
whilst adding additional administrative burdens with each grant. The Commission’s view is that
specific grants should only be used for a national priority, or for a national function for which the local
authority is an agent. Innovation grants should be limited to a maximum of three years. All existing
specific grants should be folded into the RSG unless there is special justification. The Commission also
recommends that any further specific grants should be reviewed on a two yearly basis to ascertain if
the case for hypothecation remains valid or to decide if the grant is to cease or be incorporated within
the RSG.

The Commission recommends that the incoming government commits to full and clear multi-year
settlements to enable effective long-term planning for local authorities and other public services. The
Commission would urge rolling three yearly settlements to allow effective planning and appropriate

consultations for required service changes.
The Commission supports councils having the freedom to determine fees and charges locally.

The Commission recommend that councils are given greater freedom on capital expenditure by de-

hypothecating capital grants.

The Commission recommends the establishment of a Welsh equivalent of the UK Office for Budget
Responsibility (OBR): an advisory, Assembly sponsored public body to provide independent economic
forecasts and analysis of the public finances in Wales. It would produce fiscal and economic forecasts
and report on the Welsh Government’s taxation and expenditure assumptions. It would work
alongside the UK OBR. Other duties could include scrutiny of the Government’s policy costing and
assessing the long term sustainability of the public finances in Wales. The finances of Welsh local

government would be reviewed as part of this process.

The Commission has received a great deal of evidence about the formula for the RSG being based on
outdated data, complex and lacking in transparency. The Commission therefore recommends the
existing grant regime is frozen and, for the immediate future, used as the basis for the rolling three
year settlements proposed above. This change would provide temporary stability and predictability,
allowing councils to plan effectively and assist planning with partner organisations. To improve the
system in the longer term, an Independent Grants Commission should be set up to commence work
on a more effective and fairer formula for the future. The Commission also believe the Grants
Commission should be asked to comment on the use of local authority grants by the Welsh
Government and to undertake a periodic review of specific grants. As the Grants Commission would
be independent, it would be possible to separate the legitimate role of the Welsh Government in

setting the quantum of grant from decisions about grant distribution.

The Commission recommends that the City Regions are given the power to add a supplementary

business rate, whose sole purpose would be to assist in paying for large capital projects (similar to the

Page 111



way the Crossrail scheme in London has been funded). These powers should be available to other

regions as they evolve.

In the longer-term, the Commission see merit in the idea of a locally-retained share of Welsh
Government income tax, or a purer form of local income tax. Butin the short term, we are mindful of
the fact that any such recommendations would be complicated by the fact that the Welsh Government
itself is in the early stages of seeing the devolution of income tax to Wales. Consequently, we

recommend considering this issue again in the next five years.

The Commission query whether Wales currently has a suite of outcome performance measures that
can effectively judge good performance for councils. The Commission therefore recommends that
robust outcome measures are devised to provide a way of ensuring that increased devolution of tax

powers can be seen to improve performance.

About the Commission

The Independent Commission on Local Government Finance Wales was set up because the local

government funding system in Wales is in urgent need of reform.

The Welsh Local Government Association and the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy asked the Commission to make recommendations for the reform of local government
finance and finding better ways to fund local services and promote economic growth in Wales. These
priorities form the context for the Commission’s recommendations on the local government finance

system.

The Commission’s aim is to provide recommendations that will be valuable regardless of the quantum

of funding in the system.

Page 112



Professor Tony Travers - Chair

Tony Travers is Director of British Government @ LSE at the London School of Economics. He
is also a professor in the LSE’'s Government Department. His key research interests include
local and regional government and public service reform. From 1992 to 1997, he was a
member of the Audit Commission and was a member of the Urban Task Force Working Group

on Finance.

He is currently an advisor to the House of Commons Communities and Local Government
Select Committee, having previously advised a number of other Parliamentary committees.
He chaired the London Finance Commission (2012-13) and was a member of the City Growth
Commission (2013-14), and also a member of the CIPFA/LGA Independent Commission on

Local Government Finance (2014-15).

He has published a number of books on cities and government.

Chris Hurst

Chris is a chartered accountant with 25 years’ board experience. He started his career in the
banking sector and then worked in local government for 15 years, in both Wales and England,
before returning to the private sector. Chris re-entered the public sector in 1992, as Finance
Director for an NHS Trust and 4 years later was appointed Deputy Regional Finance Director
at the NHS Executive. In 2000 he took up the role of Deputy Chief Executive at the Oxford
Radcliffe Hospitals NHS Trust, a post he held until 2009 when he appointed Finance Director
for Health, Social Care & Children at the Welsh Government.

Chris left the Welsh Government in 2012 to set up Dorian3d, a management consultancy and
executive coaching practice. He is a Board Trustee of UK Healthcare Financial Management
Association (HFMA), a non-executive director of a small digital development company in the
Midlands; and an independent advisor to Philips new healthcare technologies division. Until
2010 he was a long-term member of the Secretary of State for Health’s Advisory Committee
on Resource Allocation (ACRA), in England.

Professor George Boyne

Professor George Boyne is Pro Vice-Chancellor, College of Arts, Humanities and Social Sciences
and Professor of Public Sector Management at Cardiff University. As Pro Vice-Chancellor,
Professor Boyne is also a member of the University Executive Board. He has published eight

books and over 150 articles in academic journals.

Professor Boyne's main research interest is the explanation and evaluation of organizational

performance in the public sector. Professor Boyne founded the Public Management Research

Page 113



Group at Cardiff Business School in 1995. In 2014, the quality of research in Public

Management at Cardiff University was ranked third in the world.

He served as President of the US Public Management Research Association from 2009-11 and
was Chair of the Public and Non-Profit Division of the Academy of Management from 2011-
14.

He has acted as advisor to organisations including the National Audit Office, UK Central

Government Departments, the Welsh Government and the United Nations.

Gill Lewis

Gill Lewis has worked in the public sector for nearly four decades as a qualified chartered
accountant (CIPFA). Her early career was in the NHS and she joined the Audit Commission in
1988, and was appointed a District Auditor in 1996. She has held a number of senior positions
in the Audit Commission in Wales, and Wales Audit Office, Head of Audit in Wales and Senior

Partner respectively.

Since 2010, she has undertaken a wide variety of important roles across the public sector in
Wales. These include, Deputy Chief Executive, Director of Resources and statutory Section 151
officer in two Local Authorities and Director of Change Management in another Local
Authority. She was also the Director of a Health and Social Care programme. She undertakes
high level corporate governance work, change management and organisational turnaround

for organisations.

Gill is currently a board member on the Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountants in
the UK, Chair of the Board for the Regions and Past President of CIPFA in Wales. In July 2015,
whilst working as a Commissioner, Gill was appointed by Leighton Andrews AM, Minister for

Public Services as the Chair of the Public Services Staff Commission.

Harry Thomas

Harry graduated from Manchester University with a degree in Economics and subsequently
qualified as an accountant with the National Audit Office in South Wales before moving on to
join Cheshire County Council. He has worked with the former Welsh Water Authority and
Gwynedd County Council. After the 1996 Local Government reorganisation he was appointed
Treasurer with Gwynedd Council and in 2003 was appointed Chief Executive, where he

remained until his retirement in 2014. He is a former finance spokesperson for SOLACE Wales.

Page 114



Lynn Pamment

Lynn Pamment is a prize winning Chartered Accountant and a member of CIPFA. She has over
25 years of experience of working with private and public sector bodies across the UK both in
an assurance and advisory capacity. During her career, Lynn has undertaken a number of

secondments into the public sector in Wales to manage large projects.

Lynn is PwC’s Cardiff Office Senior Partner and is also the regional leader of PwC’s Government
and Public Sector practice in Wales and the South West. Her client base includes organisations

in the central government, local government, health, education, housing and charities sectors.

Lynn is the Chair of the CIPFA / LASAAC Board responsible for the accounting code for local
authorities in the UK.

She is a board member of RCT Homes and of Tirion Group. Lynn is also a member of the Cardiff

Capital Region Transition Board.
Simon Parker

Simon Parker (Director) has led the New Local Government Network since 2010. He is a
respected voice in the localism debate and is frequently called upon to advise senior leaders
in local and central government. As well as frequently authoring publications and articles, he
has led strategic consultancy work for authorities that include Warwickshire, Essex and
Suffolk.

Before joining NLGN, Simon worked as a fellow at the Institute for Government, where his
work was described by The Economist as helping to develop a ‘science of government’. His
work was covered in most national newspapers and presented to very senior central
government audiences, including the Cabinet Secretary. His career also includes time as an
organisational development fellow at the Office of Public Management, head of public
services for the think tank Demos and as a senior policy advisor for the CBI, where he led
negotiations on the public service workforce and promoted the use of public private
partnerships in local government. Before joining the policy world, Simon had a successful
career as a journalist at the Guardian and LGC. His latest book, Taking Power Back, was
launched in October 2015.

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

-y

Local Government Commission on Finance for Wales
Introduction

Flintshire County Council welcomes the appointment of the Commission. The
evidence we submit to the Commission is based on:-

e previous oral evidence given to the Commission at its meeting with the North
Wales Regional Leadership Board;

e the Council’s recently adopted Medium Term Financial Strategy; and

e a full Council debate held on 20th October.

Our evidence is also consistent with the policy positions of the Welsh Local
Government Association (WLGA) as our representative body.

Impact of the Commission

The impact the work of the Commission might make through the later adoption and
implementation of its recommendations for financial reform by Welsh Government,
will be longer-term. The more immediate impact of the Commission’s work should be
to influence the developing manifesto positions of the political parties contesting the
2016 National Assembly for Wales elections, and the commitments the new
Government might make to financial reform in the next term of office post-election.

It must be recognised that in the meantime some councils such as Flintshire are
appealing for some shorter-term relief from the pressures of public expenditure
reductions through a combination of Government investment choices and the more
immediate relaxation of national funding policies which curtail cost recovery in
charging.

Principles which frame our response
The following principles have been used to frame the Council response:-

e the principle of localism with the reinforcement of the roles of local
governance, self-determination and local accountability to local people;

e the subsidiarity principle of government being most effective at the locality
level where it is closest to communities and their needs;

e Government having a duty to set out longer-term and sustainable funding
settlements;

e Government fully funding its own policy and legislation;

e the conferment of freedoms and flexibilities for local government for the use of
core funding, the raising of local taxation at levels which are justifiable and

Page 117



supportable, and in local charging policies to recover the costs of service
provision; and

e the principles for central-local relations as set out in the Council’s adopted
Medium Term Financial Plan.

Answering the questions of the Commission in its call for evidence
Financial overview questions

Q: What do you consider to be the strengths and weaknesses of the
existing system of local government finance in Wales?

A: The funding formula provides some predictive certainty if the quantum of funding to be
passported through it is known, in advance, to a sufficient extent. The funding formula is
though now dated (refer to Part II of the Medium Term Financial Strategy Meeting the
Financial Challenge (Chapter 3) and the system of annualised settlements, in the absence of
longer-term national funding settlements, is a major weakness inhibiting forward planning.

Q. What should the objectives of central funding be? What kind of
grant system should support those objectives?

A: The objective of central funding should be to provide a resilient funding base for councils

to meet their minimum statutory duties and to meet costed Government social, economic and
environmental policy objectives and new legislation.

Q: Are grant distribution mechanisms fit for purpose and what changes
would be desirable?

A: Refer to Part II of the Medium Term Financial Strategy Meeting the Financial Challenge
(Chapter 3).

Q: Will the potential structural reorganisation affect the operation of the
system? Would it provide an opportunity for a parallel financial

reform?

A: A local government reorganisation would provide the opportunity for longer-term reforms
of the funding system and Council Tax equalisation.

Q. What additional pressures do rurality and deprivation introduce?

A: These pressures are arguably too heavily weighted in the current Local Government
Funding Formula. Refer to Part II of the Medium Term Financial Strategy Meeting the
Financial Challenge (Chapter 3).

Q: Are any reforms required to the system of capital expenditure
determination and funding?

A: Yes.

Page 118



Too large a proportion of capital investment funds is being retained by Welsh Government,
for example for selective transport and infrastructure projects, with insufficient funds
devolved to regions and to councils for more local determination. The system for national-
regional planning needs to be developed further for effective targeting of capital borrowing
and grants to jointly agreed priority projects. The Wales-UK inter-governmental planning on
infrastructure projects of national importance e.g. rail electrification is not sufficiently
developed for forward co-investment planning.

Council Tax, Business Rates and other forms of income

Q: Is Council Tax fit for purpose? What reforms might be made, if any?
- Is the non-domestic rate working well? What reforms might be
made if any?

A: Comparatively to England, Wales charges low levels of Council Tax. With such high
dependency on Revenue Support Grant and Specific Grants in Wales the Council Tax system
no longer generates sufficient local income to counter-balance such significant annualised
reductions in central grant contributions. Solutions should include periodic revaluations for
changing property values to be properly reflected in the Council Taxation yielding system,;
the introduction of more higher-end valuation bandings to capture greater taxation
contributions from high value properties; more flexibility for progressive local taxation
policies without capping limits; the option for local Council Tax supplements to be applied
for locally agreed priorities e.g. prudential borrowing in invest in local infrastructure; a fully
funded and sustainable Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS).

Q. Would you favour local government in Wales taking control of
additional taxes? If so, which ones?

A: Yes.

Full retention of National Non-Domestic Business Rates (NNDR) both base and growth, for
local taxation to be invested in local infrastructure and local services to businesses, and as a
direct incentive to promote economic growth. A compensatory scheme would be required
from the Revenue Support Grant system for those councils with low industrial/commercial
taxation generating businesses. The option for local taxation supplements to be applied for
locally agreed priorities with the business community e.g. prudential borrowing in invest in
local infrastructure should be allowed.

Retention of a small proportion of Value Added Tax Treasury income generated in the local
area through consumer spend.

Freedom to charge local taxes up to acceptable levels e.g tourism taxes on local hoteliers and
fee paying attractions.

A review of the legislation for developer contributions such as S106 agreements to ensure
fairer and more assured contributions by developers to local community infrastructure.

Q: Should incentives for growth play a greater role in the funding
system?

Page 119



Yes.
As above through, for example, devolution of NNDR.

Q: Could fees and charges be used to a greater extent than at
present?

Yes.

See Chapter 4 Working with Welsh Government of Part 11 the Council’s Medium Term
Financial Strategy.

Services

Q. How do reductions in council expenditure affect the sustainability
and quality of services? Might different financing arrangements (not
additional resources) improve the outlook?

A: Refer to Part I of the Medium Term Financial Strategy Meeting the Financial Challenge
(Chapters 3-5).

Q: Are there issues relating to the finance of housing which adversely
affect local government? If so, do you have suggestions for
change?

A: Flintshire is one of the eleven retained local authority landlords in Wales. Following the
Welsh exit from the national HRA system the Council relies upon a consistent and
sustainable long-term policy for social housing rents for the stability of the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA). Recent application of the rent convergence policy with the set of Registered
Social Landlords (RSLs) has not been universally supported and does pose affordability
challenges for tenants. The ongoing consideration by Welsh Government of whether to apply
the English model of reductions in social housing rents is causing concern that HRAs might
be de-stabilised. Councils should have the freedom to set service charging policies which
meet local need and are locally supported, without having to follow uniform policies as part
of the Welsh Government policy aim of all landlords achieving the Welsh Housing Quality
Standard (WHQS) by a deadline year. A sustainable system of Major Repairs Allowance is
needed for continued capital investment to achieve and maintain WHQS. The recently agreed
capital borrowing allowances for new social house-building by councils is welcomed. Repeat
borrowing approvals in later years should be a shared central-local social policy priority.

Page 120



Agenda Item 7

Sir'y Fflint
("E!in!g!z.!re

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 19 April 2016
Report Subject Proposed Review of the Waste Collection and Household

Recycling Centre Services

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy, Public Protection
and Leisure
Report Author Chief Officer (Streetscene & Transportation)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Welsh Government has set each Council in Wales challenging recycling targets.
Failure to achieve these targets would result in significant financial penalties being
served. To achieve the incrementally more challenging targets, more of our waste
needs to be recycled. The majority of residents in Flintshire have embraced the
current recycling service since it was launched in 2012 and most residents now
recycle most, if not all of their recyclable waste. There remains however a sizeable
minority of residents who do not participate fully with the system and in some cases
do not recycle their waste at all.

This is clearly unfair on the residents that do support the service and there has to
be a way of ensuring that all residents show citizenship and contribute to our
achievement of targets.

Welsh Government is undertaking a review of the Council’'s waste service, which
includes a review of the Council’s Household Recycling Centre (HRC) provision.
Early indications from the study indicate that the Council has more HRC sites than
necessary, and that the facilities offered at each site does not match the minimum
requirements for the high quality sites which achieve the high levels of recycling
elsewhere in Wales. The final report will make a recommendation on the optimum
number of HRC sites that a county of the size and demographic features of Flintshire
should offer, with each site offering good access and excellent recycling facilities to
users. Given the dependence of Councils on Welsh Government grant funding, the
Council will need to work with Welsh Government in the implementation of the
recommendations of the review.

The Council’s Business Planning proposals 2016 -18 recognised some financial
benefits from changing the current waste service provision however these changes
will require changes to the Council’s Waste Collection Policy.

Page 121



RECOMMENDATIONS

1

That Cabinet support the on-going consultation and Welsh Government
(WG) review work in order to deliver the 2016-18 Business Plans for the
waste service and that a further report is presented to Cabinet in May 2016
once WG review and the public consultation period have been completed.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE BACKGROUND THE NEW POLICY

1.01

In June 2010 the Council adopted its Municipal Waste Strategy. The
Strategy contains a number of key actions which were needed to meet the
challenging recycling targets set out in the all Wales National Waste
Strategy 'Towards Zero Waste'.

1.02

In March 2011 the Council’s Executive formally approved its Household
Waste Collection Policy which supported the introduction of a Managed
Weekly Collection (MWC) service. This fundamentally changed the way the
Council collected all domestic waste in the County. The new MWC service
was designed to increase participation in recycling and reduce the Council’s
reliance on landfill in order meet the challenging targets set out in the
Strategy. Further revisions to the Policy were approved by Cabinet in
December 2013 and again in April 2015.

1.03

Failure to meet the Welsh Government (WG) National Strategy landfill
targets could result in infraction charges being levied against the Council
totalling £200 for each tonne of waste land filled above the defined
allowance. This could result from a relatively minor failure to meet the target
of (say) 1,000 tonnes or the equivalent of just 1% of the Council’s current
Municipal Waste arising with the consequence of a financial penalty of
£200,000 for that year alone. In addition, a further £200/tonne infraction
charge could be levied if the Council fails to achieve the Statutory Waste
Recycling target in a same period, leading to a possible further £200,000
penalty being served upon the Council.

Page 122




1.04

Since the introduction of the Policy and the new collection arrangements,
recycling levels across all areas of the County have increased, allowing the
Council to achieve the 2012-13 and 2015-16 statutory targets. More
challenging subsequent targets have been set for 2019-20 and 2024-25 -
which are shown below:

Table 1 - Summary of municipal waste targets

TARGET FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL | TARGETS FOR
LOCAL AUTHORITY: EACH TARGET
YEAR

1213 | 1516 | 19-20 24-25

Minimum levels of preparing for reuse | 52% 58% 64% 70%
and recycling / composting (or AD)

Minimum proportion of | 80% 80% 80% 80%
reuse/recycling/composting that must
come from source separation (kerbside,
bring and/or civic amenity (CA) site

1.05

The Council’'s recycling service is partly funded by WG though the
Sustainable Waste Management Grant (SWMG) which has now been
combined within the Single Environment Grant (SEG). The level of the Grant
has been reducing since the financial year 2013-14 and indications are that
further annual reductions can be expected.

1.06

The following is a summary of the changes to the existing Waste Collection
and Household Recycling Centre Policy coming through the 2016 — 18
Business Plan proposals.

1.07

A reduction in the number of HRC sites in the County

Approximately 30% of the total domestic waste currently produced in
Flintshire is deposited at the HRC sites and the average recycling rate
achieved at the sites is just approximately 70%. This is due to the limited
facilities and space at the sites to offer the full range of recycling containers
for residents to recycle their waste.

1.08

Welsh Government are currently carrying out a review of the Council’s waste
service, which includes a review of the Council’s HRC provision. The early
feedback indicates that the Council's HRC provision is greater than
necessary (in terms of the number of sites provided) and that the facilities
offered at each site do not match the minimum requirements for the high
quality sites, which achieved high levels of recycling elsewhere in the
Country.

1.09

The WG study will make a final recommendation on the most effective
solution (in terms of site numbers and locations) for the future HRC site
provision and will make a recommendation on the optimum configuration
and location of sites.

The factors to evaluate are:

e Percentage of residents within a stated drive time of the sites
e Development potential of the site {n meet the requirements of a high

Page 125




quality and high performing site

A public consultation process has commenced to allow Local Members,
Town and Community Councils and residents to comment on the existing
service and provide their expectations of the new service in the future.

Once the study and the consultation feedback has been received, the
changes and closures to the surplus facilities will come into effect on 1st
November 2016.

1.10

For the Council to provide an excellent service at each of the remaining sites
it will be necessary to improve the facilities at the sites that do not meet the
WG standards. WG have indicated that capital funding may be available to
improve the facility through the provision of grant payments.

1.1

Non-collection of Side-waste and Enforcement when side waste is
presented

The majority of residents in Flintshire have embraced the current recycling
service since it was launched in 2012 and most residents now recycle most,
if not all of their recyclable waste. There remains, however, a minority of
residents who do not participate fully with the system and some cases do
not recycle their waste at all. This is unfair on the residents that do support
the service and there has to be a way of ensuring that everyone contributes
to our efforts to achieve the targets and avoid the fines that will result if we
fail.

1.12

In future, all non-recyclable waste must be contained within the Council
supplied black wheeled bin and any material presented in addition to this
will be classed as side waste, and the Council’s method of dealing with this
material should change in line with following timetable.

1.13

Current Arrangement: Properties presenting excess side waste will be
noted by the crews and staff from the service will then call on the resident
to investigate the level of waste being produced at the property. If the
resident continues to present side waste and refuses to reduce their waste
by recycling, a formal notification process will be followed to ensure the
resident is aware of the collection arrangements and the need to recycle.
Continued failure to follow the advice issued during this process may result
in action being taken under the powers within the Environmental Protection
Act 1990. The side waste will however be collected to reduce littering in the
locality.

1.14

From 1 June 2017: No side waste will be collected from this date. The
normal bin will be emptied and the side waste material will then be placed
back in the container and a sticker placed on the bin to inform the resident
of the new arrangements. Officers from the Council will also accompany the
rounds and provide the residents with information (and new containers if
required) to allow them to recycle more of their waste thus reducing the need
to place the side waste.

1.15

From 1September 2017: Any side waste material presented for collection
will be subjected to enforcement action. A fixed penalty notice (FPN) will be
issued to the resident in the first instance. If the resident chooses not to pay

Page 124




the FPN the Council will take action against the resident under the powers
within the Environmental Protection Act 1990.

1.16

In order to facilitate the removal of side waste, it will be necessary to identify
which property each residual waste container has been allocated to. This
will be achieved by applying a bar code sticker or electronic tag to each
container which will identify the address to which the bin has been allocated.
This work will be undertaken by the service over the next twelve months to
facilitate the above changes in 2017.

1.17

Introducing Three Weekly Collections for Residual Waste

This Council is not planning to introduce three weekly collections at this
stage and expects the changes to side waste collection arrangements will
improve recycling levels through greater participation levels. Should the
proposals to remove side waste collections and take enforcement action in
the event that residents do not comply with the arrangement not lead to the
Council achieving the statutory the Recycling Target, then a move to three
weekly collections will need to be reconsidered.

1.18

The revised Waste Collection and Household Recycling Centre policy will
be presented to the May Cabinet meeting, allowing the feedback from the
current consultation process to be considered and included in the revised

policy.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

Reduction in HRC provision will reduce the labour requirement, achieving
the savings identified in the portfolio Business Planning process. Workforce
resources will be redeployed into other areas of the service.

2.02

Enforcement operations will be managed by the Council’'s Enforcement
team.

2.03

The residual waste container identification will be installed during 2016-17
by employees from the service supported by contractors when required.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

Consultation is taking place with a cross section of key stakeholders across
the Authority from front line staff through to Cabinet Members.

3.02

Consultation is taking place with HRC site users on their aspirations for the
HRC provision.

3.03

Comments on the HRC changes have been invited from Members and
Town and Community Councils.

3.04

An online survey is currently being promoted in order that residents can
make comments on the waste service provision.

Page 125




3.05 | Afull Equality Impact Assessment is being completed and the impact on the
statutory protected groups is being tested at stakeholder workshops.

3.06 | The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee will consider the
changes to the policy and the feedback from the consultation at its meeting
in May 2016.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Delivery of the project will be managed through the service Programme
Board with individual risk identified and reviewed on a regular basis

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | The revised Waste collection and Household Recycling Centre policy will be
presented to Cabinet in May 2016.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Insert any hyperlinks to supporting documents if necessary.
Contact Officer: Stephen O Jones
Telephone: 01352 704700
E-mail: stephen.o.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | HRC - Household Recycling Centre

Page 126



mailto:stephen.o.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 8

Su?y Fflint
("!i!in!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 19 April 2016
Report Subject School Modernisation — School Standards and
Reorganisation Act 2013 — Ysgol Llanfynydd
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Education
Report Author Chief Officer (Education and Youth)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To inform Cabinet of the responses from the statutory objection period for Ysgol
Llanfynyndd.

To invite Cabinet to determine on the statutory proposal for school organisational
change at Ysgol Llanfynyndd.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

Cabinet is requested to consider the responses from the statutory
objection period for Ysgol Llanfynydd.

Cabinet is requested to determine whether to implement the proposal for
school organisational change at Ysgol Llanfynydd.

Page 127



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING SCHOOL ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE AT YSGOL
LLANFYNYDD

1.01

In June 2015 Cabinet determined that we enter into formal consultation on
closure and other school organisation options for Ysgol Llanfynydd by
September 2016.

1.02

The proposal was put forward on the basis of criteria laid down in the

Council’s School Modernisation Strategy, namely:

o Unfilled places across the primary school portfolio — Ysgol Llanfynydd
as at January 2015 (based on the Pupil Level Annual School Census or
PLASC) had 42 full time pupils with unfilled places at 47.5%. As of
September 2015 the school population had 34 full time pupils with
unfilled places at 57.5%.

e Diminishing resource criteria (i.e. schools supported by pupils not from
their local community and/or small numbers within the community raise
concern regarding sustainability within the school’s portfolio); for 44%
of pupils attending Ysgol Llanfynydd is not their nearest school, and

e Small School Criteria — the school population and capacity of Ysgol
Llanfynydd is lower than national designation of a small school,
additionally school numbers do not meet the minimum requirements of
primary school models as noted in the Council’s School Modernisation
Strategy.

1.03

The formal consultation period for Ysgol Llanfynydd commenced on
Wednesday 21st October 2015 and ended on Wednesday 2" December
2015. The Council issued consultation documents in accordance with the
statutory School Organisation Code.

1.04

The committee report and consultation report was considered by
Education and Youth Overview and Scrutiny 6" January 2016 and Cabinet
19t January 2016.

1.05

Cabinet determined that a Statutory Proposal be issued for Ysgol
Llanfynydd. This was published on 29t January 2016 and ran until 26t
February 2016.

1.06

Under the School Organisational Code the Statutory Proposal for Ysgol
Llanfynydd is determined by the Council’s Cabinet, rather than Welsh
Ministers.

1.07

Reviewing the future of any school is controversial and emotive. Pupils,
parents, carers and teachers, past and present, have strong ties to local
schools as part of their own life-stories. The Council is challenged with
balancing the sensitivities of community feeling on the one hand, with
providing a high quality primary education offer which can be sustained
and afforded. The Council cannot avoid making decisions for the future
which are in the best interests of pupils and students.

Page 128




1.08

During the objection period, the Council has received the following
concerns in summary form:

e Concerns about the consultation document, accuracy of data &
evidence (including cost of repair work) and concerns that the
Council haven't followed process.

e Impact on the community/future use of site should the school close.

Opinion that federation is a viable option, concern that the Council

are not actively encouraging federation.

Opinion that closing schools should not be about money.

Traffic and transport.

Admission and transition arrangements.

Potential Housing developments not taken into consideration.

Impact on children.

Parental preference is being taken away.

Opinion that there is not sufficient places in other schools in the

area.

1.09

Responses also focussed on the strengths of the school, i.e. standards of
provision, the school remaining stable through the consultation process,
professional staff, being a ‘close knit’ school and being valued by the
community.

1.10

The Council has issued consultation documents and the Statutory
Proposal in accordance with the School Organisation Code.

1.11

The consultation documents are subject to rigorous compliance checks
prior to their publication, which includes verifying information provided by
the schools and national sources (see Appendix 1 - Compliance
Statement).

1.12

The Council would take all practicable steps to ease the transition for all
pupils, most especially for vulnerable learners such as those with
Additional Learning Needs (ALN). As part of implementation plans the
Council would work alongside pupils, their parents, and the relevant
schools to make appropriate transition arrangements for pupils to
familiarise themselves with their new environments (subject to parental
preference).

1.13

The Council has demonstrated in its consultation documents that there is
sufficient capacity within the local school network to accommodate pupils
from Ysgol Llanfynydd should it close. This view is upheld by Estyn in its
response. However, additional places if required can be established at
Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn for that school to be available to all current
pupils at Ysgol Llanfynydd. This would be at either no cost or minimal
cost.

1.14

Transport eligibility is determined by the Authority in which the pupil
resides. Seventeen pupils who live in Flintshire would be entitled to free
home to school transport based on the assumption that pupils transfer to
their nearest school (Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn) on the following
grounds:

Page 129




o that the nearest appropriate available school is more than 2 miles
away;

o that the route to the alternative schools would be considered to be
hazardous by the Council due to its rural location which has limited
footpaths in and out of the village.

1.15

The Council needs to ensure there are a sufficient number of school
places, of the right type, in the right locations. This is not straightforward in
that there are a large number of surplus school places in some areas of
the County, whilst other areas don’t have enough places to meet the local
demand. In other areas, school populations are sustained by children and
young people from outside the local area through parental preference.
School Organisation change does not take away a parents ability to
express a preference for a school of their choice.

1.16

The percentage of surplus places in Flintshire schools continues to remain
above the Welsh Government target of 10%. Since funding for schools is
largely driven by pupil numbers, surplus capacity means a disproportionate
amount of funding is spent on infrastructure (such as buildings) and the
“fixed costs” of running a school (such as leadership and administration).
This funding could be used to ensure that pupil teacher ratios are
minimised to make a direct difference to learners. As public service
funding reduces over forthcoming years the case for reprioritisation and
change becomes even more compelling.

1.17

Estyn’s formal response to the consultation confirms the independent
inspectorate’s view that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the
present standards of education provision in the area. Overall, pupil
outcomes in all four alternative schools are currently good, with all schools
judged as having the necessary capacity to improve further.

1.18

Under the Regulations, governors have had powers to federate since
2010. The Council has considered and discounted the option of federation
within its consultation documents. At the time of writing, the Governing
body of Ysgol Llanfynydd has not been able to identify a willing partnering
school or schools with which to pursue a federation. There is no prospect
of a federation (see appendix 4 — response from Ysgol Parc y Llan,
Treuddyn Governors).

1.19

The community impact assessment identified that the school was not
widely used for community purposes. It did identify a number of possible
areas where the proposal could have some negative impact on a small
number of local families and on the local community. There are however
other community facilities in the areas, i.e. Ffrith and Llanfynydd
Community Hall and Cymau Community Centre in which activities can be
accommodated.

1.20

The Council has no preconceived plans for the use of the school site
should the school close. In line with established practice, future usage of
the school site will only be determined following confirmation that the
school site is no longer required for educational purposes.

Page 130




1.21

Previous and current school leaders have worked hard to maintain stability
within the school’'s operations and should be commended for this.
However, pupil numbers have dropped from 43 full time pupils in January
2015 to 36 full time pupils at January 2016. This will not provide sufficient
income to sustain high quality provision at the school. With such
exceptionally low numbers maintaining the quality of the social experience
within the school will also be challenging.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

There is sufficient staff capacity to prepare the detailed transition plans for
pupils.

2.02

Should the current proposals be implemented, the Council will work with
the current members of staff at Ysgol Llanfynydd, including teaching and
support staff, should they seek redeployment opportunities. Staff displaced
by the proposal may have the opportunity to be employed in the local
primary network.

2.03

The estimated annual costs of transport as a result of the proposal are
£16,150. However, actual transport costs can only be assessed once all
families have a school place confirmed at an alternative school.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

No further consultations are required as part of the School Organisation
Code.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

A Programme Board is set up to oversee the implementation business
plans and manage risks in close detail. Reports are made to Cabinet and
Overview and Scrutiny at key stages of decision-taking, performance
reporting and evaluation.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Appendix 1 — Compliance statement

Appendix 2 — Objection report

Appendix 3 — Estyn response

Appendix 4 — Response from Ysgol Parc y Llan, Treuddyn Governors

Page 131




6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

All responses from the objection period are available for Cabinet Members.

Additionally for Cabinet, and in accordance with the School Organisation
Code to make a determination the following documents will also be made
available:-

a copy of the consultation document

a copy of the consultation report

a copy of the published notice

a copy of the objection report

copies of the statutory objections

copies of all of the above in relation to any proposals which are related
to the proposal requiring approval (not applicable in the case of this
proposal)

Contact Officer: Damian Hughes, Senior Manager, School Planning
and Provision

Telephone: 01352 704135

E-mail: Damian.hughes@flintshire.qov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

PLASC — The Welsh Government Pupil Level Annual School Census is
mandatory with returns for all sectors required every January including
nursery, primary, middle, secondary and special. Returns are required
every January.

School Organisation Code - The new School Standards and
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 makes Local Authorities responsible (rather
than the Welsh Ministers prior to October 2013) for the determination of
most statutory school organisation proposals that receive objections. Such
provisions apply to any proposals published on or after 15t October 2013
that consider the establishment, discontinuance or otherwise significantly
alter schools.

The Council does this in line with the Welsh Government’s statutory
School Organisation Code

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/1307 19-school-organisation-
codes-en.pdf

Estyn - Estyn is the education and training inspectorate for Wales. Estyn
is responsible for inspecting primary and secondary schools and nursery
schools maintained by, or receive funding from local authorities.

Federation — The federation of schools is a legal process which enables
schools to work together through a formal structured process by sharing a
governing body that will make decisions in the best interest of all the

Page 132



mailto:Damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf

schools, staff and pupils in that federation.

The Welsh Government have brought in new regulations around federation
of maintained schools in Wales. The Federation of Maintained Schools
(Wales) Regulations 2014 which came into force on 22 May 2014 gives
effect to Council’'s powers to federate schools. (School governors already
have powers to federate by choice under provisions introduced in 2010).
These powers have now been consolidated into the 2014 Regulations.

Page 133




This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR

Siry Filint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

J

OBJECTION REPORT

Proposal to close Ysgol Llanfynydd as of the
31st August 2016 with pupils transferring to
nearby schools subject to parental preference

This is the provisional draft response of the Council which is being provided to
decision makers for discussion - a final view and objection report will be
published before the end of 7 days beginning with the day of determination

MARCH 2016

Should you require a hard copy of this report in hard copy please email
21stcenturyschools@flintshire.gov.uk with your name and postal address.
Please indicate whether you would like to receive the document in Welsh,
English or both.

Page 135



Flintshire County Council - Education & Youth

Objection Report

Proposal to close Ysqgol Llanfynydd from
31st August 2016 with pupils transferring to nearby schools subject to
parental preference

Purpose

The report is published in line with the requirements under section 49 of the
School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013. This is a summary of
the statutory objections — otherwise known as “the Objection Report”.

Publication of the Statutory Notice

Following the formal consultation period and the publication of a consultation
report, Cabinet took the decision to proceed to publish the proposal by way of
a statutory notice for 28 days from Friday 29t January 2016 to Friday 26"
February 2016.

The statutory notice was published in line with the requirements of the School
Organisation Code. The notice was published on the Flintshire County
Council website and posted at the main entrance of Ysgol Llanfynydd. Each
school affected by the proposal received electronic copies of the notice and
provided with details of how to obtain hard copies of the notice.

During the objection period, 78 objections were received in relation to the
proposal to close Ysgol Llanfynydd from 31st August 2016 with pupils
transferring to nearby schools.

The correspondence received during the objection period was in a number of
methods and included:

75 email,
3 letter and

Of the 78 objections received, there were issues with the following objections
14 signed but had no address

In what areas do the objectors reside?

Llanfynydd 32
Ffrith 11
Cymau 5
Other 3
Flintshire 3
Brymbo 2

Page 136



Hope

New Brighton, Wrexham

Drury

Gresford

Higher Kinnerton

aAlalalalipdin

Pontblyddyn

TOTAL 63

* The figure of 63 is reflected by respondents either based at the same
address, their address was incomplete or unclear or they did not provide an
address

Q8 In what areas do the objectors reside?

Answered: 63 Skipped: 15

Ponthlyddyn
Higher Kinnerton —-—'——‘—wl

Gresford

Dt r/
New Brighton,
W‘re:h%e /\

Brymbro
Flintshire
Other

Lianfymyudd

Cymau —

Firith

In accordance with the School Organisation Code (2013) this Objection
Report is made available to stakeholders via an email link and also published
electronically on Flintshire County Council’s website at:

www.flintshire.gov.uk/schoolmodernisation

To request a hard (paper) copy of this document please email
21stcenturyschools@flintshire.gov.uk, or write to the School Modernisation
Team, Flintshire County Council, County Hall, Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6ND, or
contact the team on 01352 704015 or 704134.

Page 137


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/schoolmodernisation
mailto:21stcenturyschools@flintshire.gov.uk

8¢T obed

Point Raised (in order of highest %)

Local Authority Response

No of written
responses

raising the

point

Responses

% of

raising the

point

Consultation Document Flawed

e Closure would offer very little benefit to the Council

e Evidence used for closure is flawed

e Capacity for the school is based on 2007 stating 80 pupil
capacity and should be based on 2011 of 64 pupil capacity

e The last Estyn report was in 2009. The school was not given
an updated inspection to aid the decision process

e The document is heavily biased towards closure of the school

e FCC state that there are 1967 surplus places in Flintshire.
This includes secondary schools, an unfair exaggeration in
their favour

e Estyn comments in the consultation document are
unacceptable because they are basing their judgement on a 6
year old report

e The proposals do not take account the future needs of the
rural population and leads to inequality of choice for families

e The document does not include births since 2013

The Council is satisfied that the publication and
requirements of the Code have been met. The
consultation process and documentation followed
regulatory guidance as set out in the Welsh
Government’s School Organisation Code 2013.

The Council uses the latest verified data at the
time of constructing the consultation documents:
e School pupil numbers and more detailed
information around pupils (for example Additional
Learning Needs, English as an Additional
Language and School action/school action
plus/statemented) are obtained from the school’s
own statistical returns (September or January)

¢ Estyn data is obtained from the school’s last
Estyn inspection. Timing of inspections will
depend on Estyn's own inspection cycle and is
not in the Council’s control

¢ National Welsh Government categorisation data
is based on the school returns. The Council uses
the most up to date data at the time of document
construction from the Welsh Government website.
Welsh Government update their national
database annually.

6

(=]

o
»
N
S~




6ST abed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

oGWE (The Regional School Improvement
Service) data is fed into the Welsh Government's
national categorisation system.

e The Welsh Government's national Measuring
Capacity of Schools in Wales forms are verified
by Head teachers, this provides the School
Capacity and Admission Number.

In 2006 the guidance for Measuring the Capacity
in Schools in Wales was updated to provide more
information to Councils, the actual method to
calculate a school’s capacity remained
unchanged.

Capacity was reviewed in 2011 due to changes in
school layout. However, alterations to the
capacity at Ysgol Llanfynydd would mean that the
school’s capacity would reduce by more than 10%
of the current admission number. Changes of this
nature would require a statutory consultation and
the Headteacher was advised accordingly. It was
agreed that the capacity remained as previously
agreed (signed off by the head teacher in 2007)
Working with a hypothetical reduced capacity the
school would still have had approximately 30%
unfilled places, in any event this would still trigger
a review as per the Council School Modernisation
policy and also the School Organisation Code.




ot T obed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

Welsh government annually require The Council
as the Admitting Authority to complete a
consultation period with all schools to review their
capacity and admission number and admission
arrangements.

eUnfilled places are recorded by Welsh
Government; the Council provides its returns to
Welsh Government annually; they are also based
on official school returns.

¢ Birth Information by area is obtained from the
Office of National Statistics.

¢ Pupil projections are aligned with the
methodology of neighbouring Authorities within
North Wales.

¢ Housing development information is based on
actual current housing applications provided from
the Planning Department.

o Potential pupil numbers which may be
generated from new housing developments are
calculated using a formula providing by a
partnering Authority (Conwy CBC) who derive the
formula based on the latest census returns.

¢ Pupil teacher ratios are provided by publicly
available statistics on a school
(http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), provided by
Welsh Government and updated on an annual
basis.



http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/

T T abed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

esFoundation Phase and Core Subject Outcomes
are provided by publicly available statistics on a
school (http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk),
provided by Welsh Government and updated on
an annual basis.

¢ School building condition information is provided
by an external company who compare the school
building condition against the ‘Building Bulletin for
Primary and Secondary schools’.

eBacklog maintenance information is provided by
independent consultants Property.

Condition Surveys are undertaken on a 5 year
cycle. Priority Codes [definition] are as follows:-
Priority 1: Urgent work required to be undertaken
within 1 year

Priority 2: Essential work required to be
undertaken within 2 years

Priority 3: Desirable work [deemed as] required to
be undertaken within 3 to 5 years

Priority 4. Long term work [deemed as] required
to be undertaken outside the 5 year [cycle] period
The element Total 1 - 3 defines a five year
financial investment and element 4 defines a six -
ten year financial investment.

As highlighted in the Consultation report the roof
at Ysgol Llanfynydd has slipping slates due to nail
[fixings] fatigue associated with the main duo
pitched roof. Additionally the roof has the original
old lath and plaster beneath, which would also
need to be replaced.



http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/

ZvT abed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

Work items are costed by the Consultant and
include for preliminaries, labour, plant and
materials etc. These costs are based on the
current building cost information service provided
by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors as
the leading provider of cost and price information
within the construction and maintenance areas.
These costs [Unit Rates] are present within the
condition survey software to a default figure and
amended/updated as required by the Consultant.

The budget costings are exclusive of VAT,
updated annually [using inflation indices] and
reviewed post completion of work.

eSchool suitability information is provided from
suitability surveys undertaken independently in
line with DffE Asset Management guidance and
reviewed by the Council and amended if work has
been completed at schools post initial survey.

e School budgetary work is conducted using
agreed formula as per the School budget forum.
Cost per pupil data is obtained from the
Authority’s section 52 budget statements.

o Travel distances between school sites is
provided by the Flintshire County Council
mapping system Route Finder 3.41.

e Transport costs are provided by the Integrated
Transport Unit who administer home to school
transport contracts.




e T abed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

The Council has demonstrated in its consultation
documents that there is sufficient capacity within
the local school network to accommodate pupils
from Ysgol Llanfynydd should it close, this view is
upheld by Estyn. However, additional places if
required can be established at Ysgol Parc y Llan,
Treuddyn at either no cost or minimum cost.

The consultation document includes reference to
the primary school portfolio has 1967 (or 17.15%)
unfilled places (based on January 2015 PLASC).
The unfilled places only includes the primary
sector and not the secondary sector.

The secondary school portfolio has 2206 (or
20.37%) unfilled places (based on January 2015
PLASC.

The Council are unable to maintain all schools in
the current financial climate especially where
there are significant surplus places within the
system. Should the proposal be implemented
there will still be a balance of provision in area
including rural, town, faith and language provision
maintaining parental preference.




v T abed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

The birth rate information was provided by
Census information from the Schools
Management Information Team. There was no
birth information available post 2013 due to the
timing of the availability of the census data. Since
issuing the consultation document the 2014 birth
information has become available, the birth rates
for the area are included below. There is no
significant increase in births in the area of
Llanfynydd, and surrounding area. Birth rates
remain static in the area.

Ward 2014
Caergwrle 15
Higher Kinnerton 11
Hope 35
Leeswood (Halved 8
between Mold/Hope

SPPA)

Llanfynydd 16
Penyffordd 32
Treuddyn 14
TOTAL 130




GiT obed

Impact on the Community

The closure would have a hugely negative impact on the
community

Llanfynydd is in the lowest quartile for access to services in
the Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation

The area does have a community centre, riding centre and
school are all sources of local pride and community spirit

The school is the heart of the community

The school is the only link for many people to their neighbours
to support and socialisation within the community

The school helps to generate customers for Local businesses
The threat of closure has made us seriously consider
relocating away from the area

Without the school the whole character of the ‘Best Kept
village’ in Flintshire will be seriously degraded

The elderly living in the bungalows will miss the extra ‘footfall’
and children’s play sounds

There will be no dedicated venue for community events
Closure of the school are the effects on the economy of the
area

The village wouldn’t be the same

The Community Impact Assessment was completed by the
Headteacher who was not from the area and was applying for
other employment at the time

The Council acknowledges that where a school
closure is proposed it will have some impact on
the local community, although the community use
of the school is relatively low.

The School Organisation Code suggests that the
Council should complete a Community Impact
Assessment to measure the impact and how the
impact can be minimised or negated. The
Council is satisfied that it has met the statutory
consultative and publication requirements of the
School Organisation Code.

It is recognised that the school plays an important
role in the wider community. Should the proposal
be implemented there would be scope to extend
links with alternative schools. Due to the
proximity of the alternative schools to the village
of Llanfynydd, the Council would seek to assist
the Governing body of the alternative schools and
PTA to foster links with the wider Llanfynydd
community. The Council will work with the school
and community to mitigate issues where possible.

Llanfynydd is in the highest quartile for access to
services in the Welsh Index of Multiple
Deprivation, and is not in the lowest quartile.

The Council has no plans for the site, and will not
consider the future of the site until such time as
the school’s future is determined.

63

80.7%




o T abed

Impact on the Community (continued)

The Council notes the concerns about the impact
on the community. However there are a number
of villages within Flintshire, and wider, which do
not have a village school but continue to have a
thriving and engaged community. Should
parents/carers wish for their child/children to
access a village school provision there are
schools within the area with surplus places.




/T abed

Strengths of the school

There has been a great deal of investment in the school

The school has been recognised by Estyn that ‘Cwriwlwn
Cymraeg that learners bilingual Developments feature
predominately in the life of the school’. Are other schools able
to equal the requirement of the WESP

In 2004/2005 the Authority installed at some considerable
expense a Wetroom — this is a unique feature and makes it
the only school available to see to demands of disabled pupils
needing a wet room with added facilities

Not many pupils have left the school during the process and
teachers have remained very professional

It's a fantastic school

It's a good, achieving school: it is a very happy school

The children are nurtured and allowed to develop as
individuals

Being able to grow up and learn in such a small and close-knit
school environment only increased my confidence

Ysgol Llanfynydd is a much valued and excellent little rural
school which should be supported and expanded

One size does not fit all in educational terms and a wide range
of different sizes and types of school are necessary

The school is closely associated with the local church do the
alternative schools have the same links

It has wonderful staff

Because its small you get a lot of attention

Bullying is less widespread and can be resolved more swiftly
What | have achieved is because of the fabulous education
and sporting encouragement | received

Research has shown that small/medium class sizes

The positive responses from consultees regarding
Ysgol Llanfynydd are noted.

Reviewing the future of any school is
controversial and emotive. Pupils, parents, carers
and teachers, past and present, have strong ties
to local schools as part of their own life-stories.
The Council is challenged with balancing the
sensitivities of community feeling on the one
hand, with providing a high quality education offer
which can be sustained and afforded. The Council
cannot avoid making decisions for the future
which are in the best interests of pupils and
students.

Ysgol Llanfynydd is a Community Primary English
medium school and Welsh is taught as a second
language. The proposal provides parents/carers
with the option for English medium education for
children with Welsh taught as a second language.
This is similar to the current position and pupil
access.

The current proposal provides access and
maintains parental preference for language
medium.

The national curriculum for the Foundation Phase
includes Welsh Language Development (Welsh

54

70.5%




81T abed

Strengths of the school (continued)

as a second language). Pupils in the Foundation
Phase should learn to use and communicate their
needs in Welsh to the best of their ability. Pupils
should be encouraged to do so and should be
increasingly exposed to Welsh. At Key Stage 2
pupils should build on these skills. This is
followed by all schools in Wales.

It is noted that Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn has a
successful record at the Eisteddfod as a school
with Welsh second language over the past 3
years and hosts the Treuddyn Eisteddfod which
Ysgol Llanfynydd attends on an annual basis.

At present there are no pupils in Ysgol Llanfynydd
who require specialist changing facilities.

Ysgol Llanfynydd is an English community
primary school, and is not a denominational
school, the alternative schools are also English
community primary schools and are also not
denominational schools. The Council does
recognise the close links the school has with the
church. Due to the proximity of the alternative
schools to the village of Llanfynydd, the Council
would seek to assist the Governing body of the
alternative schools and PTA to foster links with
the wider Llanfynydd community. The Council will
work with the school and community to mitigate
issues where possible.




61T abed

Roof Repair Costings

The roof does not need fixing
The costs to fix the roof of 80k seems crazy

80,00 is not a definite cost, it is a possible cost at some point
in the future

Flintshire building tips guide advise to get three building
quotes from reputable companies before undertaking any
building work

The condition surveys are carried out by
independent surveyors, commissioned by the
Council. They survey schools on a five year cycle
in line with national guidance and provide the
Council with maintenance priorities. The work to
repair the roof was identified as a priority,
therefore urgent repair work was programmed
accordingly.

As stated in the consultation report, the roof at
Ysgol Llanfynydd has slipping slates due to nail
[fixings] fatigue associated with the main duo
pitched roof. Additionally the roof has the original
old lath and plaster beneath, which would also
need to be replaced.

Work items are costed by the Consultant and
include for preliminaries, labour, plant and
materials etc. These costs are based on the
current building cost information service [BCIS]
provided by the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors, [RICS] as the leading provider of cost
and price information within the construction and
maintenance areas. These costs [Unit Rates] are
present within the condition survey software to a
default figure and amended/updated as required
by the Consultant. The budget costings are
exclusive of VAT, updated annually [using
inflation indices] and reviewed post completion of
work.

51

65.3%




0GT abed

Roof Repair Costings (continued)

The council manages the acquisition of all its
goods, services and works, strictly in accordance
with their Contract Procedure Rules [CPR's].
These CPRs have the following key objectives:

oTo0 ensure that the council obtains value for
money and achieves best value as defined in
section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999;

oTo ensure that the council complies with UK and
European law that governs the procurement of
goods, services and works;

oTo establish procurement procedures which,
when followed, should protect members and
officers of the council from any allegation of
acting unfairly or unlawfully.

oTo ensure that fairness and transparency remain
at the forefront of all procurement activity.

Contract procurement by the council is governed
by detailed European and UK legislation. The law
requires all council procurement and contracting
to be conducted transparently, fairly and in a non-
discriminatory manner.




TGT abed

Alternative Schools

Demand for school places in the area that particularly
Abermorddu would not be able to fill

There are currently more applications than places in the area

The suggestion to increase the capacity of Ysgol Parc Y Llan
to accommodate pupils will fill all the spare places in the local
schools, allowing no room for any extra pupils in the area due
to new housing developments

Parents who have been attempting to find their children places
for their children

Council boundaries will be changing in the very near future
and therefore it is not possible to predict what the future
educational needs of the new Council will be and any decision
should be left until these become clear

Abermorddu has recently been rated as Amber on
MyLocalschool website, so would offer a less good education.

Standards at Ysgol Parc Y Llan will fall as the ratio of pupils to
staff will increase and there will be less resources per pupil

Pupils will end up being educated in porta-cabins

Not one of the alternative schools can offer the same of higher
level of educational standards

Parents are having problems placing siblings together

It is the Council’s view that there is sufficient
capacity within the local school network to
accommodate pupils from Ysgol Llanfynydd
should it close.

All applications to transfer to another school will
be dealt with in accordance with the Council's
admissions policy and the School Admissions
Code. Every effort will be made to keep siblings
together and there is some discretion under the
Admissions Code to admit pupils to a year group
even though it is full and subject to certain
conditions being met. Each application must be
dealt with on its merits taking in to account the
circumstances at the school, such as the number
in each year group, the capacity of the school,
class organisation, etc. The Council cannot keep
places in reserve for any pupils who may move in
to an area as this is not legal.

School modernisation proposals will continue to
be reviewed during any future Local Authority
amalgamation.

As part of their response to the consultation
document Estyn concluded that the proposal is
likely to at least maintain the current standards of
education in the area based on the information
and data provided within the consultation
document and overall pupil outcomes in all four
alternative schools are currently good, with all
schools judged as having the necessary capacity
to improve further.

41

52.5%




ZST abed

Alternative Schools (continued)

The Council included a range of data and
statistical information within the consultation
document relating to outcomes and standards at
Ysgol Llanfynydd and the alternative schools.
This included data at both Foundation Phase and
Key Stage 2.

The consultation document also points out that
where cohorts are small, such as Ysgol
Llanfynydd outcomes should be treated with
caution. Furthermore Estyn state that the
proposer provides detailed information on each of
the alternative schools capacity to provide a
broad and balanced curriculum at both the
Foundation phase and key stage 2.

The Council provided a range of contextualised
data regarding both Ysgol Llanfynydd and the
proposed alternative schools. Further data was
available regarding other possible alternative
schools within the area for comparison. This
included data relating to assessed cohorts at the
Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2, Estyn
reports and commentary regarding provision at all
schools subject to the proposal.




€GT abed

Results and achievement of the school
e The standard of teaching is beyond reproach
e Academic results are consistently excellent
e |t's an achieving school

The positive responses from consultees regarding
Ysgol Llanfynydd are noted.

It is the view of the Council and the view of Estyn,
that should the current proposal be implemented
pupils would have access to at least an equivalent
standard of educational provision.

34

43.5%




¥GT abed

Federation

e FCC are not looking at federation schools, it works perfectly
well in Wrexham and has done with Mr Ashford

o Federation has not been actively encouraged by Flintshire
Local Authority

o |f a Federation if possible and desirable e.g. with Parc Y Llan,

it could be imposed if this is the best solution for both schools.

e Why are Flintshire County Council so anti-federation

The federation of schools is a legal process which
enables schools to work together through a formal
structured process by sharing a governing body
that will make decisions in the best interest of all
the schools, staff and pupils in that federation.

The Welsh Government have brought in new
regulations around Federation of maintained
schools in Wales. The Federation of Maintained
Schools (Wales) Regulations 2014 which came
into force on 22 May 2014 give effect to Councils
powers to federate schools. (School governors
already have powers to federate by choice under
provisions introduced in 2010). These powers
have now been consolidated into the 2014
Regulations.

An alternative suggestion of federation had been
suggested by a number of consultees, notably the
governing body. The Governing body of Ysgol
Llanfynydd has not been able to identify a willing
partnering school or schools with which to pursue
a federation. There is no prospect of developing
a successful federation without a willing partner or
partners. Ysgol Parc Y Llan Governors have
confirmed that they have not and will not be
bringing forward a federation proposal with Ysgol
Llanfynydd.

The Council’s position was clear in the
consultation documentation. The option to
federate Ysgol Llanfynydd with another school
would not address surplus places at the school.
In the context of the Flintshire surplus places
there is a significant number of surplus places as

34

43.5%




GGT obed

Federation (continued)

Should Ysgol Llanfynydd federate with another
school the cost per pupil would remain
unaffected, as federated schools maintain their
individual budgets.

Cabinet members in their decision making
regarding the proposal considered all information
from the consultation and whether or not to
publish a statutory notice in respect of the
proposal to close Ysgol Llanfynydd.

The Council is aware of the benefits that the
acting headteacher arrangements with the
Headteacher at Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn
have had to Ysgol Llanfynydd. Ysgol Parc Y Llan,
Treuddyn Governors have provided written
confirmation that although sympathetic to the
schools situation they have decided not to enter
into a federation discussions with Ysgol
Llanfynydd.

Comment made by Carwyn Jones that closing Schools should
never be about saving money contradicts the Council’s
comments

e During the consultation meeting lan Budd drew attention to
the £52 reduction in funding for public services over the next
three years and the funding challenges. These were your
rationale for proposing closure of the school.

e Carwyn Jones, First Minister recently met two governors and
told them that school closures should never be based on cost
savings

e The Minister was genuinely shocked that Flintshire’s
education officers were openly stating that this was all about
cost savings

The proposal to close Ysgol Llanfynydd was put
forward on the basis of criteria laid down in the
Council’'s Modernisation Strategy, namely:-

Unfilled places across the primary school
portfolio:

1. Ysgol Llanfynydd as at January 2015 (PLASC)
had 42 full time pupils with unfilled places at
47.5%. As at September 2015 the school
population has 34 full time pupils with unfilled
places at 57.5%

2. Diminishing resource criteria (i.e. schools
supported by pupils not from their local
community and/or small numbers within the
community raise concern regarding sustainability

34

43.5%




9GT abed

Comment made by Carwyn Jones that closing Schools should
never be about saving money contradicts the Council’s
comments (continued)

within the school’s portfolio); for 44% of pupils
attending Ysgol Llanfynydd, it is not their nearest
school, and

3. Small School criteria — The School and
capacity of Ysgol Llanfynydd is lower than
national designation of a small school, additionally
school numbers do not meet the minimum
requirements of primary school models as noted
in the Council’'s School Modernisation Strategy.
This leads to higher costs per pupil; unnecessary
building, leadership and administration costs.
The proposal will enable the Council to focus on
the spending in the classroom in a time of annual
diminishing budgets for schools for the
foreseeable future.

The Council has a statutory responsibility to
review educational provision within their area to
ensure that resource is directed in an effective
and efficient way, with a focus of resources being
directed towards the benefit of pupils teaching
and learning. Effective planning of educational
provision allows for resource to be redirected to
support the provision of new facilities.

Traffic and Transport Impact

¢ New people from the area were being provided with free
transport to Abermorddu school and not Ysgol Llanfynydd —
this has had a knock on impact

The Road Safety Team have completed a Traffic
Regulation Order assessment for the provision of
double yellow lines around Abermorddu Primary
School and the school is on the assessment
priority list for completion of these works subject
to available funding. Additionally a request has
been made to the Technical Performance section
of Streetscene for the traffic light sequence to
stay on green for longer to allow school traffic to

32

41%




/ST abed

Traffic and Transport Impact (continued)

Up until about six years ago transport was provided from
Cymau to Ysgol Llanfynydd. The withdrawal of this transport
to Abermorddu has obviously resulted in children moving from
Ysgol Llanfynydd to Abermorddu School

In Abermorddu traffic is already very dangerous in the area
before and after school

If pupils are transported to Abermorddu this will only increase
the number of vehicles

The journey times would create great difficulties for many
children

The distance that pupils will have to travel to other schools will
disadvantage them and could well affect their performance in
future years

exit around the school during school opening and
closing times to assist with the flows of traffic, this
request is currently under review with
Streetscene.

The Consultation documentation recognises that
most pupils at Ysgol Llanfynydd would see an
increased distance from their home address to
the alternative school, and would not be able to
utilise walking routes within the village, due to its
rural location.

However the increase in travel time would not be
in excess of the learner travel guidance.

Transport eligibility is determined by the Council
in which the pupil resides. 17 pupils who live in
Flintshire would be entitled to free home to school
transport based on the assumption and modelling
that pupils transfer to Ysgol Parc Y Llan,
Treuddyn (nearest available school) on the basis
of the following grounds:

e That the nearest appropriate available
school is more than 2 miles away;

e That the route to the alternative schools
would be considered to be hazardous by
the Council due to its rural location which
has limited footpaths in and out of the
village.

Abermorddu Primary School is the nearest
primary school to the Cymau area, additionally
the route from Cymau to Abermorddu Primary
School is considered to be hazardous, and
therefore pupils are eligible for transport from
home to school. Should pupils from Cymau




8GT abed

Traffic and Transport Impact (continued)

decide to go to Ysgol Llanfynydd, as they are
bypassing their nearest school they would not be
eligible for transport from home to school.

The estimated maximum annual costs of transport
as a result of the proposal are £16,150. However,
this was an indicative model. Actual transport
costs can only be fully assessed once all families
have chosen their preferred school.

The Council has a requirement to ensure it 1)
provides transport in line with statute and its own
policy and 2) that transport arrangements are
commissioned in accordance with the Welsh
Government Transport measure.

10

Admission Arrangements and Transition

There are no firm plans in place to confirm which school or
schools these pupils will transferred to

Parents should not be responsible for finding places for their
children, FCC and admission should be assisting more with
this

The statutory code states that in a proposal to discontinue a
school, the local Council must include admission
arrangements at the proposed alternative school — this has
not been done

The admission arrangements in the report are not explained in
way which parents would find helpful and appears as a simple
restatement of Flintshire CC general admission policy

You are not really giving us a lot of time to find an appropriate
school for our children

The Council is satisfied that the publication and
requirements of the Code have been met.

Admission arrangements to the alternative school
were provided in the consultation document in
section 18 page 68.

The Admissions information is also available on
the council’s website on the following link:
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Schools/
School-Admissions.aspx

Advice and information about admissions was
readily provided to parents on request. Any
advice given was in accordance with the School
Admissions Code and the Council's admissions
policy. The Council’s Admissions Team has
responded to many requests from parents for

31

39.7%



http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Schools/School-Admissions.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Schools/School-Admissions.aspx

6GT abed

Admission Arrangements and Transition (continued)

advice in order to provide parents with as much
information as possible. In individual cases all
options have been explored and appropriate
advice given. Where applications have been
received, alternative places have been allocated
in accordance with the admissions policy.

A mini admissions process will be administered to
assist families in transition to other school should
cabinet determine closure.

The Council would work with parents of Ysgol
Llanfynydd to ensure minimal disruption to pupils
who would be transferring to alternative provision.

The Statutory timeline complies with the School
Organisation Code. The timeline allows sufficient
time for parent/carers and pupils to select an
alternative school and allow effective transition
should Ysgol Llanfynydd close.

11

Consultation Process was flawed

o The Council have received 174 responses against the closure
of Ysgol Llanfynydd have these responses been listened to

e Any public authority which is required to consult should do it
with an open mind and should be willing to listen and to
seriously consider the responses it receives

e The author of the original report either was instructed to justify
closure or had already formed that opinion and was unwilling
to include the positive features of the school

o The consultation report does not respond to issues raised
during consultation

The Council is satisfied that the publication and
requirements of the Code have been met.

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution,
Cabinet Members must maintain objectivity in
decision making. It is the Council’s view that
discussions relating to this proposal were open
and honest. All the submissions made results in
a thorough and robust debate on the proposal
and Cabinet Members were fully informed of the
issues before making their decision.

The decisions of the Cabinet were reached
through the democratic process.

27

34.6%




09T abed

Consultation Process was flawed (continued)

e The cabinet meeting following consultation did not cover the
concerns of all those who responded, only questions from the
cabinet were responded to

e The Council has failed to comply with the School Organisation
Code as it has failed to follow the code by deviating from the
requirements of the Code in compiling the consultation report
‘respond to these by means of clarification, amendment to the

proposal or rejection of the concerns, with supporting reasons’

o As a member of staff | have not received any formal direct
correspondence during the entire consultation process

e Has Flintshire County Council really considered the
alternatives to closure

e The consultation document misquotes the Code and does not
state ‘responding to these by means of clarification,
amendment to the proposal or rejection of the concerns with
supporting reasons’.

The Council has engaged with the Headteacher,
School, Teachers and Support staff throughout
the process, including support offered through the
HR team. A meeting was also arranged
specifically for staff on the 23 November 2015 to
discuss the proposal and process. The HR
Business Partner Team have also offered
individual meetings should staff want to discuss
any concerns.

The consultation report does include in the main
text of the report a summary of each of the issues
raised by consultees, and a response to these by
means of clarification, amendment to the proposal
(not applicable) or rejection of the concerns with
supporting reasons — refer to Appendix E of the
consultation report.

12

Housing developments not been taken into consideration

Households numbers will grow in the area

e Many new homes are proposed to be built in Coed Talon
There is land designated under the local development plan in
Llanfynydd, if these homes are built there would be
competition for school places at Parc Y Llan

o The pupil yield in the consultation document is extremely
understated

¢ In the likely event that Flintshire County Council sell Ysgol
Llanfynydd for housing the area will be in the unfortunate
circumstance of requiring quality school facilities

The Council has fully considered school capacity
in the area together with potential housing
development yield within its consultation
documents.

Data regarding potential pupils which could be
generated from new housing developments is
calculated using a housing yield formula. The
housing yield formula has been derived from
research work based on national census data
from a partnering authority. This was applied to
all current housing development planning
applications approved by the planning authority.
The Council does not include sites which are on

21

26.9%




T9T abed

Housing developments not been taken into consideration
(continued)

e The document fails to take into account the current Local
Development Plan including developments in Treuddyn (6 NR
Sites), Llanfynydd (1 NR site), Cymau (1 NR Site),
Abermorddu (1 NR Site), Caergwrle (8 NR Site), Hope (6 Nr
Sites)

the Local Development Plan because they do not
have approved housing applications.

The housing yield figures produced are a
maximum figure and do not take into account
parental choice and/or pupil movement i.e. pupils
moving into the new homes but who are already
in the local education system. Additionally there
is no guarantee that all of these pupils would
access the provision at Ysgol Llanfynydd due to
parental preference for school provision in the
area, including faith and language medium.

The pace of housing developments will be
constrained by the plans of the site
owners/developers, the housing market, current
economic climate and other factors which are
unpredictable.

It is the Council’s view that there is sufficient
capacity within the local school network to
accommodate pupils from Ysgol Llanfynydd
should it close. Estyn have commented that:
‘Based on approved planning applications for new
housing developments within the catchments are
of the four schools, the proposers predict that an
additional 15 primary places will be needed.
These figures when added to the pupils at Ysgol
Llanfynydd, still demonstrate capacity within the
existing four schools to manage this increased
demand for school places.’

The Council have no plans for the site, and will




29T abed

Housing developments not been taken into consideration
(continued)

not consider the future of the site until such time
as the school’s future is determined.

13

Statutory Notice process was flawed

e The statutory code states that a notice should insert details of
any other measures proposed to be taken to increase the
numbers of school places available as a consequence of the
closure of this school this has not been done

e The statutory notice was not given to Governors until Monday
1st February

e The statutory notice was not handed in person or by email
directly to the Board of Governors

The Council is satisfied that the publication
requirements of the Statutory Notice in
accordance with Code have been met.

The statutory notice was provided directly via
email to the school Headteacher and the school’s
generic email account, managed by the school
secretary. This is an administrative approach that
the Council have taken, individual contact details
for Governors are not held with the School
Modernisation Team. The Headteacher and
generic school email account was provided with
the link and instructed to make their
parents/carers/guardians/pupils/governors/School
Council/Staff Members and prospective parents
aware of the link and also advised that hard
copies were available on request. A hard copy of
the statutory notice was placed on the front door
of the school on the day the statutory notice was
issued - Friday 29t January 2016.

The Governors were provided with a copy of the
statutory notice via the School and have also
been provided with the opportunity to provide their
objections in writing in line with the Code. The
Chair of the school Governors has provided an
objection on behalf of all of the school Governors.
Additionally a number of Governors have
provided their own individual objections to the

21

26.9%




€97 abed

Statutory Notice process was flawed (continued)

proposal.

The Council proposes that existing pupils may
attend either Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn English
medium community based primary school,
Abermorddu CP School, English medium
community based primary school, Ysgol Estyn,
Hope English medium community based primary
school or Bwichgwyn CP School, English medium
community based primary school. This is however
subject to parental preference and subject to
available places. Parents may express a
preference for the said schools or indeed another
school and the Council will comply with any such
expressed preference subject to the School
Standards and Framework Act 1998, Section 86

(3).

The proposal does not require that any measures
are taken to increase the numbers of school
places available as a consequence of the closure
of Ysgol Llanfynydd. The Council has
demonstrated in its consultation documents that
there is sufficient capacity within the local school
network to accommodate pupils from Ysgol
Llanfynydd should it close, this view is also
upheld by Estyn.

Additional places if required can be established at
Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn should the pupils
wish to move as a group.




9T abed

Statutory Notice process was flawed (continued)

Should, if any alterations of the teaching spaces
be required this would be dependent on the

numbers and organisation of year groups subject

to the transfer of pupils should the proposal be
implemented.

The Council would work with parents of Ysgol
Llanfynydd to ensure minimal disruption to pupils
who would be transferring to alternative provision.

14

Impact on Children

The distance that pupils will have to travel to other schools will
disadvantage them and could well affect their performance in
future years

Friendship groups will be split up

Impact on the learners will be sacrificed for relatively
insignificant financial savings

The proposal to close the school is obviously not in the best
interests of pupils

Forget the human impact of these changes and insecurities of
the little children

There is not much evidence of care for the children’s
immediate future

Will have a detrimental effect to my child’'s learning and
development

My children would be heartbroken

When proposing changes to school organisation it
is acknowledged that there will be some changes
for pupils. Should the proposal be implemented
and Ysgol Llanfynydd be closed it would result in
changes for the existing pupils such as :

o Shorter journey time to school for pupils
who reside in Wrexham

¢ A marginally longer route to school for

pupils who live in the Llanfynydd area

A new school uniform

New teachers and support staff

New learning environment

Friendship groups may be affected,

however new friendships may be formed.

The Council will take all practicable steps to ease
the transition for all pupils, most especially for
vulnerable groups of learners such as Additional
Learning Needs (ALN). Should the proposal be
implemented the Council would work alongside
pupils, their parents, and the relevant schools to
make appropriate transition arrangements for
pupils to familiarise themselves with their new

11

14.1%




GoT obed

Impact on Children (continued)

environment (subject to parental preference).

Where pupils have specific ALN needs, the
resource and support they require would be
replicated in their new learning environments.

At the time of preparing the consultation
document, under current transport policy 17
pupils would be entitled to free home to school
transport. This would be on the basis that the
route to the alternative school from Llanfynydd
would be considered to be hazardous due to its
rural location which has limited footpaths in and
out of the village.

The Council has a requirement to ensure it 1)
provides transport in line with statute and its own
policy and 2) that transport arrangements are
commissioned in accordance with the Welsh
Government Transport measure.

Reviewing the future of any school is
controversial and emotive. Pupils, parents, carers
and teachers, past and present, have strong ties
to local schools as part of their own life-stories.

Reviewing the future of any school is
controversial and emotive. Pupils, parents, carers
and teachers, past and present, have strong ties
to local schools as part of their own life-stories.

The Council is challenged with balancing the
sensitivities of community feeling on the one




99T abed

Impact on Children (continued)

hand, with providing a high quality education offer
which can be sustained and afforded. The Council
cannot avoid making decisions for the future
which are in the best interests of pupils and
students.

The Council has made adequate arrangements to
ensure that the best interests of the learners are
ensured during this process. This has included
producing a children and young people’s
consultation document to which numerous pupils
have supplied responses. The Council in
conjunction Ysgol Llanfynydd facilitated a
consultation session for the School Council of
Ysgol Llanfynydd which allowed them to put
forward their views regarding the proposal.

The Council also produced a report for Cabinet
and consultees summarising the views of the
children and young people that were collected
during the consultation period. Additionally the
Council produced a summary of their views in a
report specifically for children and young people.

The Council would work with parents of Ysgol
Llanfynydd to ensure minimal disruption to pupils
who would be transferring to alternative provision.

15

Family connections with the school

e Myself and all my 5 siblings attended this school in the 1960’s
and some of my nephews and nieces since then

e The school has been used for so many years by generations
of children in this village

Reviewing the future of any school is
controversial and emotive. Pupils, parents, carers
and teachers, past and present, have strong ties
to local schools as part of their own life-stories.

The Council is challenged with balancing the
sensitivities of community feeling on the one

11

14.1%




/9T abed

Family connections with the school (continued)

My family have attended this school for years

| would be devastated if this school was not available for me
to send my children to

hand, with providing a high quality education offer
which can be sustained and afforded. The Council
cannot avoid making decisions for the future
which are in the best interests of pupils and
students across Flintshire.

16

Savings/Budget/Funding

Previous VfM calculations would be negated if you closed the
school after the investment it has had.

The budget savings made from closing the school are made
up of a hypothetical costs for fixing a roof

Closing the school may achieve minimal financial savings to
the education budget in the short term but could lead to far
greater costs overall in the long term

The costs of making redundancies do not seem to have been
included

I wonder how much money has been used to finance other
projects in the past

The governing body of LIanfynydd were a source of jest by
senior education personnel when we suggested that we could
find a way of saving money by reducing our budget

Perhaps Flintshire County Council should consider a reduction
to the amount of people it employs for administration staff

The proposal has not detailed whether the proceed of sales of
redundant sites will meet the costs of proposal

Inefficient school organisation can result in
uneven and unfair funding patterns where some
schools receive a disproportionate share of
funding at the expense of pupils attending other
schools in the area, this is mostly the case of
schools that are classified as small schools. Any
school proposals should contribute towards
establishing a more equitable pattern of school
funding.

In line with regulatory requirements Flintshire
County Council has a schools funding formula
which is the methodology by which the budget
share for each school in the County is
determined. Each year the formula is reviewed
and in consultation with relevant stakeholders,
amendments are made to reflect changes in
funding and policy. (The detailed methodology
and the budget shares are sent to all schools and
a summary is published in what is referred to as
the section 52 budget statement).

Schools receive a budget for a financial year from
April to March and this is based on the pupils in
each school in the September preceding the
financial year. The 2015/16 section 52 budget

10

12.8%




89T abed

Savings/Budget/Funding (continued)

The First Minster has made it clear (TV interview 17 Feb) that
Authorities have been given extra funds to support rural

schools. Where has this money gone in Flintshire?

The costings are not clearly set out within the consultation
report in the context of the Estyn report published in May 2012
in respect of overall cost to the County of either closing or not

closing Llanfynydd school

statement has been used as the basis of analysis.

The primary school funding formula was
fundamentally reviewed in 2013/14 with full
involvement and consultation with schools and
other stakeholders including the Schools Budget
Forum and Education and Youth Scrutiny. The
formula must be applied consistently across all
schools with any changes to the formula being
consulted on and agreed. There is a primary
schools funding formula group comprising
Authority officers and nominated Headteachers
which meets regularly to consider formula issues.
A key ongoing concern from small primary
schools has been to secure adequate resources
to enable school leaders to fulfil their
responsibilities.

In 2015-2016 Ysgol Llanfynydd received a
formulae funding allocation of £217,715 which
represents £4,838 per pupil, ranking the school as
the highest funded per pupils in Flintshire, £1,569
higher than the average funding per pupil in
Flintshire. The higher level of per pupil funding
reflects the need to subsidise small schools by
the inclusion of a lump sum amounts within the
funding formula and also reflects the higher
premium costs per pupils in smaller schools.

The inclusion of potential redundancy costs would
be pre-determination of the proposal.

Additional funding from the Welsh Government




69T abed

Savings/Budget/Funding (continued)

has been made available to three rural authorities
— Monmouthshire, Powys and Ceredigion. The
Minister for Finance and Government Business
Jane Hutt referred to this in her announcement on
the Draft Budget on 9 February and whilst not
education specific, the additional funding for those
rural authorities could be spent on schools.

The Council is satisfied that the publication
requirements of the statutory notice, in
accordance with the Code requirements have
been met.

The Council have no reconceived plans for the
use of the school site, and will not consider the
future of the site until such time as the school’s
future is determined.

The Council has met the requirements of the
School Organisation Code in its reporting of
financial matters. The Code also states that the
Council should take into account whether the
proposals will ensure a fairer and more equitable
distribution of funding.

Additionally, the Council is satisfied that it had
met the statutory consultative and publication
requirements of the School Organisation Code.

17

Parental preference is being taken away
e To keep siblings and friendship groups together pupils would

have to go to Ysgol Parc Y Llan which isn’t giving any parental
choice

The Council acknowledges that there is a number
of factors that determine where parents send their
child/children. However, the Council are unable
to maintain all schools in the current financial
climate especially where there are significant

7.6%




0.7 abed

Parental preference is being taken away (continued)

surplus places within the system. Should the
proposal be implemented there will still be a
balance of provision in area including rural, town,
faith and language provision maintaining parental
preference.

The Local Authority will comply with statutory
requirements and the Welsh Government School
Admissions Code and will take account of the
expression of parental preference in the context
of its duty to ensure the provision of effective
education and the efficient use of education
resources. When considering applications, the
Local Authority will observe the provisions of the
School Admissions Code which states that
admission authorities should admit to the school’s
admission number and will rarely be able to prove
prejudice as a ground for refusing an additional
pupil while the numbers remain below the
admission number.

18

Childcare
e Ysgol Parc Y Llan has no after school club

e Although pupils from Parc Y Llan are able to attend Ysgol
Terrig, it offers a different language medium and may cause
anxieties for some pupils

Ysgol Parc Y Llan does have an after school club.
It is a shared after school club with Ysgol Terrig,
Treuddyn (Welsh medium community school)
based on the same site as Ysgol Parc Y Llan,
Treuddyn. The Headteacher of Ysgol Parc Y
Llan, Treuddyn has confirmed that the majority of
pupils who attend the club are English speaking.
The club is bilingual and pupils interact with other
pupils from Ysgol Terrig, Treuddyn on a regular
basis, this provides a unique opportunity for all
pupils to develop their Welsh language skills.

2.5%




T/ 9bed

19

Impact of the proposals on the school numbers

e By virtue of proposing the close the school, has created an
environment in which parents are discouraged from using the
local school

The Council has to follow the process as defined
by the School Organisation Code.

The Council acknowledges that statutory
consultation around school organisation change
will cause a level of uncertainty within the local
school community, which can be a contributory
factor in pupil number reduction.

2.5%

20

Increasing Pupil Numbers

e Some marketing of the school may help increase the
admission numbers

e The Council has failed to support and promote this wonderful
school

The three main roles of a governing body are to:
(i) setthe aims and objectives for the school;
(i) agree policies, targets and priorities for

achieving these objectives;
(iii) monitor and evaluate the aims and
objectives and whether the policies, targets
and priorities are being met, always with a
view to promoting high standards of
educational achievement. Active promotion
of the school is a responsibility of the school
and its governing body.

The Council supports all of its schools through
support services.

2.5%

21

Comment supporting the Proposal

e | would like to go on record as expressing my full and
unequivocal support for the proposal

1%




Conclusion

As outlined during the consultation process, the proposal to close Ysgol
Llanfynydd from 31st August 2016 with pupils transferring to nearby schools
requires the approval of the Local Authority Cabinet Members. This Objection
Report alongside a copy of all the Objections, a copy of the consultation;
document; a copy of the consultation report, and a copy of the published
notice will be forwarded to Cabinet Members for determination.

Page 172



Estyn response to the proposal by Flintshire County Council to close Ysgol Llanfynydd,
an English medium community primary school as of 31%' August 2016

This report has been prepared by Her Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and Training in
Wales.

Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and its
associated Code, proposers are required to send consultation documents to Estyn. However,
Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the Code and the Act places no
statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school organisation matters. Therefore as a
body being consulted, Estyn will provide their opinion only on the overall merits of school
organisation proposals.

Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the following
response to the information provided by the proposer and other additional information such as
data from Welsh Government.

Introduction/Proposal

e This is a consultation proposal by Flintshire County Council.

e The proposal is that Flintshire County Council close Ysgol Llanfynydd from 31st August
2016 with pupils transferring to other schools in the local area, subject to parental
preference

Background

e Ysgol Llanfynydd in a small English-medium primary school situated in the village of
Llanfynydd, Flintshire.

e The school currently has 34 pupils on role, a decrease from 42 pupils in January 2015.
Predictions indicate that over the next four years, pupil numbers are not set to rise.
Capacity at the school is 80 pupils.

e The current individual school budget per pupil is £4,838. This is the highest of all primary
schools in Flintshire.

e The Local Authority currently has 17.5% unfilled primary places, which is significantly above
the national target of less than 10%. In January 2015, they published a ‘Revised School
Modernisation Strategy’. To assist with reducing surplus school places, proposals within
this strategy include closing any primary school with less than 105 full time places.

Summary/ Conclusion

It is Estyn’s opinion that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the present standards of
education provision in the area. Overall, pupil outcomes in all four alternative schools are
currently good, with all schools judged as having the necessary capacity to improve further.
Pupil attendance in all of these schools is good.

The four local schools currently have 58 unfilled places between them with the potential for this
to be increased to 63. This would be sufficient to accommodate all pupils currently attending
Ysgol Llanfynydd. Based on approved planning applications for new housing developments
within the catchments are of the four schools, the proposers predict that an additional 15
primary places will be needed. These figures when added to the pupils at Ysgol Llanfynydd,
still demonstrate capacity within the existing four schools to manage this increased demand for
school places.

The proposers have considered two alternative options:

e Maintaining the status quo Page 173




e Federating or amalgamating the school with another school

The proposer outlines the expected benefits and disadvantages of the two options
appropriately. The proposal has also appropriately considered the advantages and
disadvantages of each option against the key drivers of educational improvement, suitable
buildings, unfilled places, diminishing resources and resilient school leadership.

The proposers have also recognised the potential impact of closure on the local community
and have completed a community impact assessment. This has identified a number of
possible areas where closure could have a negative impact on a small number of local families
and the village community as a whole. For example, on long term provision for community
groups

Based on this process, the proposal appropriately outlines the reasons for discounting
alternative options and the reasons for their preferred option. The Local Authority believes that
longer-term benefits for pupils outweigh any disadvantages

The proposer has suitability identified the relevant risks relating to the proposal and has
outlined clearly how these risks will be managed. However, the proposer has not clearly
identified how they will manage the risk of parents not being able to choose their preferred
alternative school

The proposer has given suitable consideration to the impact of the proposal on pupils’ travel
arrangements and their ability to access the provision. The proposer has clearly identified that
for 15 of the current 34 pupils attending Ysgol Llanfynydd, this is not their nearest school

They have predicted that 17 pupils who would have attended Ysgol Llanfynydd in September
2016 would be entitled to free transport to an alternative school. This would incur an annual
cost of £16,150. The proposal has identified that for most pupils living in the Llanfynydd area,
distance to school would increase but not in excess of Welsh Government guidelines.

Routes to and from schools in the area have been considered as hazardous due to its rural
location and limited safe walking routes through the village.

The proposer has completed a detailed separate equality and Welsh language impact
assessment to consider the potential impact in respect of all areas of equality and Welsh
language and the potential ways in which the impact can be limited and a positive impact can
be promoted.

This assessment summarises that there are no obvious negative impacts on Welsh Language
provision. Subject to parental preference, there is the option for pupils from Ysgol Llanfynydd
to access welsh medium education at other Flintshire schools should the proposal to close the
school go ahead.

Educational aspects of the proposal
The proposal contains useful details about the four alternative schools concerned, including

e Judgements from most recent Estyn reports

e Current Welsh Government categorisation including Standards groups and capacity to
improve

e Current level of support from the local authority

e Attendance levels over time

e Class organisation

Page 174




Three of the four alternative schools are currently in Welsh Government’s ‘Standards Group 3’
with one school in ‘Standards Group 1°. All four schools are currently judged as ‘yellow’
effective schools that know the areas in which they need to improve schools. Their capacity to
improve is categorised as good.

The proposer provides detailed information on each of the alternative school’s capacity to
provide a broad and balanced curriculum at both the Foundation Phase and key stage 2. It
outlines judgements made in the most recent Estyn inspection reports and progress that each
school as made in addressing their recommendations. The proposal judges that each school
has the capacity to at least maintain current standards in terms of curriculum delivery.

The document also gives a detailed analysis of each school’s most recent property building
survey. These show that each school is in a similar satisfactory condition fit to effectively
deliver the primary curriculum.

The proposer has undertaken a detailed equality impact assessment that carefully considers
the impact of the proposal on vulnerable groups including those with special educational needs
and with mobility issues. Where available, comments from the most recent Estyn reports from
each of the alternative providers, judges their provision for pupils with additional learners
needs as good.

The proposer suitably recognises the potential additional challenge of change for many pupils

and accurately considers how transition would be managed successfully these more
vulnerable groups of learners.

Page 175




This page is intentionally left blank



Ysgol Parc Y Llan Parc Y Llan CP School

Treuddyn 7 Treuddyn
Yr Wyddgrug / \ Mold
Sir y Fflint Flintshire
CH7 4LN Ysgol Parc Y Llan CH7 4LN

Ffon: 01352 770304
Ffacs: 01352 770304

Tele 01352 770304
Fax 01352 770304

Mrs. M Morris Mr. M Ashford
Ysgrifenyddes/Secretary Pennaeth/Headteacher
12t February 2016

Dear Chair of Governors,

We acknowledge receipt of your letter on 4t February 2016 formally asking Ysgol Parc y Llan to permanently
federate with Ysgol Llanfynydd. We also thank you for your kind words, recognising the work and
commitment by Mr Ashford and the support Ysgol Parc y Llan have provided to your school.

We appreciate Ysgol Llanfynydd has and is continuing to go through a period of uncertainty with regards to its
future in light of the Flintshire School Modernisation Programme.

We are very proud of Ysgol Parc y Llan’s achievements and successes, highlighted in our ESTYN Inspection in
2015, GWE visit feedback and also Flintshire County Council request for us to assist in supporting Ysgol
Llanfynydd. Ysgol Parc y Llan works extremely well as a team and this is driven primarily through having a
strong leadership team, which is lead by our Headteacher, Mr Ashford.

I am pleased that our school has been a sympathetic friend to Ysgol Llanfynydd and that we have played an
active supporting role during the consultation period.

We as a Governing Body appreciate that there could be further changes regarding schools in our area in the
coming years which may be difficult for us as a Governing Body, but we need to put the needs of Ysgol Parc y
Llan first, and the desire to provide a first class education for our children.

The full Governing Body met on Thursday 11% February to give the proposal full consideration and review the
impact of the proposal on the Headteacher, staff, parents and pupils. Considerable discussions between
Governing Body Members regarding the possibility of a federation with Ysgol Llanfynydd took place followed
by a vote. The decision was not favourable, and so I regret to inform you that Ysgol Parc y Llan would not be
willing to enter a federation with Ysgol Llanfynydd.

Ysgol Parc y Llan Governing Body was committed to help Ysgol Llanfynydd during the consultation period,
and will continue to provide support until the end of July 2016. I believe we have played a very supportive role

to ease the concerns of Ysgol Llanfynydd’s parents and staff.

I appreciate that this is not the response that you would have wished for but we have to do what is the best for
Ysgol Parc y Llan at this time.

Kind Regards,
Natalie Jones

Chair of Governors - Ysgol Parc y Llan

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
Compliance Statement in Relation to the Current School Proposals

Introduction: School Organisation:

The School Organisation Code imposes requirements and provides guidelines in
respect of all school organisation proposals in Wales.

For all of the current school organisation proposals the School Modernisation Team
have planned the consultations, decision making and statutory notices in line with
what the Code requires.

Consultation Process Timescales:
RAG Status: GREEN

The Schools Modernisation Team are required to ensure that timescales are
adhered to in relation to school organisation proposals.

The timescale and process for consultation, decision making and statutory notice for
the current school proposals have been checked and verified with Flintshire County
Council Legal Team and through external verification through the Welsh
Government Officers.

Welsh Government Consultation Documentation Checklist.

RAG status: GREEN

In the case of all school organisation proposals, the consultation document must
contain certain information in line with School Organisation Code, July 2013
(Document number: 006/2016).

A RAG checklist has been produced by Welsh Government School Governance &
Organisation Branch for the current school organisation proposals. The RAG
checklist document follows a colour coding system in order to highlight any missing
information or areas which Welsh Government felt could have been dealt with more
thoroughly.

Ysgol Llanfynydd andYsgol Maes Edwin proposals have all been assessed by the
external Welsh Government Officers as having no concerns identified.

Flintshire County Council Consultee Checklist:

RAG status: GREEN

When bringing forward statutory proposals the School Organisation Code provides
a full list of consultees that the proposer should consult with during the statutory
process. An internal checklist has been produced by the School Modernisation
Team to assess if the required statutory consultees have been identified.

Ysgol Llanfynydd and Ysgol Maes Edwin consultee checklist have all been

assessed by the external Welsh Government Officers as having no concerns
identified.

Page 179



Appendix 1

Verification of Data in the Consultation Document:

RAG status: GREEN

The School Modernisation Team uses the latest verified data at the time of
constructing the consultation documents:

School pupil numbers and more detailed information around pupils (for example
Additional Learning Needs, English as an Additional Language and School
action/school action plus/statemented) are obtained from the schools own
statistical returns (September or January)

Estyn data is obtained from the schools last Estyn inspection. Timing of
inspections will depend on Estyn's own inspection cycle.

National Welsh Government categorisation data, is based on the school returns.
The Council use the most up to date data at the time of document construction
from the Welsh Government website. Welsh Government update their national
data base annually.

GwE (The Regional School Improvement Service) data is fed into the Welsh
Government's national categorisation system.

The Welsh Government's national Measuring Capacity of Schools in Wales
forms are verified by Head teachers, this provides the School Capacity and
Admission Number.

Unfilled places are recorded by Welsh Government; the Council provide its
returns to Welsh Government annually; they are also based on official school
returns.

Birth Information by area is obtained from the Office of National Statistics
Pupil projections are aligned with the methodology as neighbouring Authorities
with North Wales

Housing development information is based on actual current housing
applications provided from the Planning Officers.

Potential pupils which may be generated from new housing developments is
calculated using a formula providing by a partnering Authority (Conwy CBC)
who derive the formula based on the latest census returns.

Pupil teacher ratios are provided by publically available statistics on a school
(http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), provided by Welsh Government and is
updated on an annual basis.

Foundation Phase and Core Subject Outcomes are provided by publically
available statistics on a school (http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), provided by
Welsh Government is updated on an annual basis

School Building condition information is provided by an external company who
compare the school building condition against the building bulletin for Primary
and Secondary schools

Backlog maintenance information is provided by through independent
consultants Property Condition Surveys are undertaken on a 5 year cycle.

Priority Codes [definition] are as follows:-

Priority 1: Urgent work required to be undertaken within 1 year

Priority 2: Essential work required to be undertaken within 2 years

Priority 3: Desirable work [deemed as] required to be undertaken within 3 to 5
years

Priority 4: Long term work [deemed as] required to be undertaken outside the 5
year [cycle] period

Page 180


http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/
http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/

Appendix 1

The element Total 1 - 3 defines a five year financial investment and element 4
defines a six - ten year financial investment.

Work items are costed by the Consultant and include for preliminaries, labour,
plant and materials etc. These costs are based on the current building cost
information service [BCIS] provided by the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors, [RICS] as the leading provider of cost and price information within
the construction and maintenance areas. These costs [Unit Rates] are present
within the condition survey software to a default figure and amended/updated as
required by the Consultant. The budget costings are exclusive of VAT, updated
annually [using inflation indices] and reviewed post completion of work.

e School suitability information is provided from Suitability surveys undertaken
independently in line with DffE Asset Management guidance and reviewed by
FCC officers and amended if work has been completed at schools post initial
survey.

e School Budgetary Work is conducted using agreed formula as per the School
budget forum. Cost per pupil data is obtained from the Authority’s section 52
budget statements.

e Travel distances between school sites is provided by the Flintshire County
Council mapping system Route Finder 3.41

e Transport costs are provided by the infrastructure unit who administer home to
school transport contracts.

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Sllfy Fflint
"'E!En!o%!z.ire

CABINET

Date of Meeting

Tuesday, 19 April 2016

Report Subject

School Modernisation — School Standards and
Reorganisation Act 2013 — Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint
Mountain.

Cabinet Member

Cabinet Member for Education

Report Author Chief Officer (Education and Youth)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To inform Cabinet of the responses from the statutory objection period for Ysgol
Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain.

To invite Cabinet to determine on the statutory proposal for school organisational
change at Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Cabinet is requested to consider the responses from the statutory
objection period for Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain.

2 Cabinet is requested to determine whether to implement the proposal for
school organisational change at Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain.

Page 183



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING SCHOOL ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE AT YSGOL
MAES EDWIN, FLINT MOUNTAIN

1.01

In June 2015 Cabinet determined that we enter into formal consultation on
closure and other school organisation options for Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint
Mountain by September 2016.

1.02

The proposal was put forward on the basis of criteria laid down in the
Council’s School Modernisation Strategy, namely:

o Unfilled places across the primary school portfolio — Ysgol Maes Edwin,
Flint Mountain as at January 2015 (PLASC) had 66 full time pupils with
unfilled places of 13.16%. As of September 2015 the school population
has 55 full time pupils with unfilled places at 27.63%; pupil numbers at
January 2016, 39 full time pupils.

e Diminishing resource criteria (i.e. schools supported by pupils not from
their local community and/or small numbers within the community raise
concern regarding sustainability within the school’s portfolio) - 83.63%
of pupils attending Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain are not attending
their local school ( See Appendix 1);

e Small School Criteria — The School population and capacity of Ysgol
Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain is lower than national designation of a
small school, additionally school numbers do not meet the minimum
requirements of primary school models as noted in the Council’s
School Modernisation Strategy, and

e Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain is currently (July 2015) in Welsh
Government categorisation 4, on a scale of 1 - 4, with 4 being the
lowest for educational standards. The school has remained in the
same category when the Welsh Government conducted their annual
review (January 2016).

1.03

The formal consultation period for Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain
commenced on Wednesday 21st October 2015 and ended on Wednesday
2"d December 2015. The Council issued consultation documents in
accordance with the statutory School Organisation Code.

1.04

The committee report and consultation report was considered by both
Education and Youth Overview and Scrutiny 61" January 2016 thereafter,
Cabinet 19t January 2016

1.05

Cabinet determined that a Statutory Proposal be issued for Ysgol Maes
Edwin, Flint Mountain. This was published on 29t January 2016 and ran
until 26 February 2016.

1.06

Under the School Organisational Code the Statutory Proposal for Ysgol
Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain is determined by the Council’'s Cabinet, rather
than Welsh Ministers.

Page 184




1.07

Reviewing the future of any school is controversial and emotive. Pupils,
parents, carers and teachers, past and present, have strong ties to local
schools as part of their own life-stories. The Council is challenged with
balancing the sensitivities of community feeling on the one hand, with
providing a high quality primary education offer which can be sustained
and afforded. The Council cannot avoid making decisions for the future
which are in the best interests of pupils and students.

1.08

During the objection period, the Council has received the following
concerns in summary form:

e Concerns about children’s welfare, pupils have already transferred
from other schools, bullying, unable to obtain a place in schools of
their preference, loss of friendship, do not want a large school,
concern about support, large class sizes.

e Concern that parental preference was being taken away.

e Concerns about the consultation process, data, new housing
development, process unsettling to school community.

e Impact on the community/future use of site should the school close.

e Concerns that money already invested in the school.

e Concern the Council did not allow enough time for the Governors to
consider Federation.

e Transport.

1.09

Responses also focussed on the strengths of the school, i.e. family
atmosphere, small class sizes, happy children, good staff and teachers.

1.10

The Council would take all practicable steps to ease the transition for all
pupils, most especially for vulnerable groups of learners such as Additional
Learning Needs (ALN). Should the proposal be implemented the Council
would work alongside pupils, their parents and the relevant schools to
make appropriate transition arrangements for pupils to familiarise
themselves with their new environments (subject to parental preference).

1.1

Applications from Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain pupils wishing to
transfer to other schools will be administered in line with the Council’s
Admissions Policy. A mini admissions process will be administered to
assist families in transition to other schools should Cabinet determine
closure.

1.12

The Council needs to ensure there are a sufficient number of school
places, of the right type, in the right locations. This is not straightforward in
that there are a large number of surplus school places in some areas of
the County, whilst other areas don’t have enough places to meet the local
demand. In other areas, school populations are sustained by children and
young people from outside the local area through parental preference.
School Organisation change does not take away a parents ability to
express a preference for a school of their choice.

1.13

It is the Council’'s view that there is sufficient capacity within the local
school network to accommodate pupils from Ysgol Maes Edwin should it
close. Estyn have commented that ‘The local authority has given a clear

Page 185




rationale for the proposed expected benefits when compared with the
status quo in relation to finance, surplus places and the continuity and
progression in pupils’ learning.’

1.14

School organisation consultation documents are subject to rigorous
compliance checks prior to their publication, which includes verifying
information provided by the schools and national sources (see Appendix 1-
Compliance Statement).

1.15

The Council has fully considered school capacity and potential housing
development yield within its consultation documents. Data regarding
potential pupils which could be generated from new housing developments
is calculated using a housing yield formula. The housing yield formula has
been derived from research work from a partnering authority. This was
applied to all current housing development planning applications approved
by the planning authority.

1.16

The housing yield figures produced are a maximum figure and do not take
into account parental choice and/or pupil movement i.e. pupils moving into
the new homes but who are already in the local education system.

1.17

The pace of housing developments will be constrained by the plans of the
site owners/developers, the housing market, current economic climate and
other factors which are unpredictable.

1.18

The community impact assessment has identified the impact of closure on
a small number of local families and on the local community. The loss of
the school would impact on a small number of community activities taking
place and the range of community facilities within Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint
Mountain.

1.19

The Council has no preconceived plans for the use of the school site
should the school close. In line with established practice, future usage of
the school site will only be determined following confirmation that the
school site is no longer required for educational purposes.

1.20

Most pupils at Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain are not attending their
nearest school. For a small number pupils currently living in Flint Mountain
the distance travelled would increase, however this would not be in excess
of the learner travel guidelines. The distance from Flint Mountain village to
Ysgol Owen Jones, Northop is under 2 miles, it is likely that pupils in the
Flint Mountain area would be eligible for transport under the criteria that
the route to their new schools would be considered as hazardous.

1.21

Under the Regulations, Governors have had powers to federate since
2010. The Council has considered and discounted the option of federation
within its consultation documents. At the time of writing, the Governing
body of Ysgol Maes Edwin has not been able to identify a willing
partnering school or schools with which to pursue a federation. There is no
prospect of federation.

Page 186




1.22

Estyn has provided its statutory response to the consultation. It is Estyn’s
view that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the present standards of
education provision in the area. They noted that consultation
documentation appropriately set out the advantages of the proposal, which
include the efficient and effective use of resources; a reduction of unfilled
pupil places within the primary school network; at least maintaining the
current standards and the quality of education in the area; and the
reduction in travel to school for the majority of pupils should they choose
their local school.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

There is sufficient staff capacity to prepare the detailed transition plans for
pupils.

2.02

Should the current proposals be implemented, the Council will work with
the current members of staff at Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain
including teaching and support staff, should they seek redeployment
opportunities. Staff displaced by the proposal may have the opportunity to
be employed in the local primary network.

2.03

The estimated annual costs of transport as a result of the proposal are
£9,120. However, actual transport costs can only be assessed once all
families have a school place confirmed at an alternative school.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

No further consultations are required as part of the School Organisation
Code.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

A Programme Board is set up to oversee the implementation business
plans and manage risks in close detail. Reports are made to Cabinet and
Overview and Scrutiny at key stages of decision-taking, performance
reporting and evaluation.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Appendix 1 — Pie Chart showing where pupils reside
Appendix 2 — Compliance statement

Appendix 2 — Objection Report

Appendix 4 — Estyn response

Page 187




6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

All responses from the objection period are available to Cabinet Members.

Additionally for Cabinet, and in accordance with the School Organisation
Code to make a determination the following documents will also be made
available:-

a copy of the consultation document

a copy of the consultation report

a copy of the published notice

a copy of the objection report

copies of the statutory objections

copies of all of the above in relation to any proposals which are related
to the proposal requiring approval (not applicable in the case of this
proposal)

Contact Officer: Damian Hughes, Senior Manager, School Planning
and Provision

Telephone: 01352 704135

E-mail: Damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

PLASC - The Welsh Government Pupil Level Annual School Census is
mandatory with returns for all sectors required every January including
nursery, primary, middle, secondary and special. Returns are required
every January.

School Organisation Code - The new School Standards and
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 makes Local Authorities responsible (rather
than the Welsh Ministers prior to October 2013) for the determination of
most statutory school organisation proposals that receive objections. Such
provisions apply to any proposals published on or after 1st October 2013
that consider the establishment, discontinuance or otherwise significantly
alter schools.

The Council does this in line with the Welsh Government’s statutory
School Organisation Code

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/1307 19-school-organisation-
codes-en.pdf

Estyn - Estyn is the education and training inspectorate for Wales. Estyn
is responsible for inspecting primary and secondary schools and nursery
schools maintained by, or receive funding from local authorities.

Federation — The federation of schools is a legal process which enables
schools to work together through a formal structured process by sharing a
governing body that will make decisions in the best interest of all the
schools, staff and pupils in that federation.

Page 188



mailto:Damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf

The Welsh Government have brought in new regulations around federation
of maintained schools in Wales. The Federation of Maintained Schools
(Wales) Regulations 2014 which came into force on 22 May 2014 gives
effect to Council’'s powers to federate schools. (School governors already
have powers to federate by choice under provisions introduced in 2010).
These powers have now been consolidated into the 2014 Regulations.

Page 189




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

The following pie chart and map display the current (September 2015) home location
for Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain pupils.

* Number of full time pupils (Reception to Year 6) as of September 2015 (Source ONE System).
There is a difference in pupils numbers compared to January 2015 PLASC.

Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain Pupil Locations

m Flint Area = Flint Mountain = Other

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Compliance Statement in Relation to the Current School Proposals

Introduction: School Organisation:

The School Organisation Code imposes requirements and provides guidelines in
respect of all school organisation proposals in Wales.

For all of the current school organisation proposals the School Modernisation Team
have planned the consultations, decision making and statutory notices in line with
what the Code requires.

Consultation Process Timescales:
RAG Status: GREEN

The Schools Modernisation Team are required to ensure that timescales are
adhered to in relation to school organisation proposals.

The timescale and process for consultation, decision making and statutory notice for
the current school proposals have been checked and verified with Flintshire County
Council Legal Team and through external verification through the Welsh
Government Officers.

Welsh Government Consultation Documentation Checklist.

RAG status: GREEN

In the case of all school organisation proposals, the consultation document must
contain certain information in line with School Organisation Code, July 2013
(Document number: 006/2016).

A RAG checklist has been produced by Welsh Government School Governance &
Organisation Branch for the current school organisation proposals. The RAG
checklist document follows a colour coding system in order to highlight any missing
information or areas which Welsh Government felt could have been dealt with more
thoroughly.

Ysgol Llanfynydd andYsgol Maes Edwin proposals have all been assessed by the
external Welsh Government Officers as having no concerns identified.

Flintshire County Council Consultee Checklist:

RAG status: GREEN

When bringing forward statutory proposals the School Organisation Code provides
a full list of consultees that the proposer should consult with during the statutory
process. An internal checklist has been produced by the School Modernisation
Team to assess if the required statutory consultees have been identified.

Ysgol Llanfynydd and Ysgol Maes Edwin consultee checklist have all been

assessed by the external Welsh Government Officers as having no concerns
identified.

Page 193



Appendix 2

Verification of Data in the Consultation Document:

RAG status: GREEN

The School Modernisation Team uses the latest verified data at the time of
constructing the consultation documents:

School pupil numbers and more detailed information around pupils (for example
Additional Learning Needs, English as an Additional Language and School
action/school action plus/statemented) are obtained from the schools own
statistical returns (September or January)

Estyn data is obtained from the schools last Estyn inspection. Timing of
inspections will depend on Estyn's own inspection cycle.

National Welsh Government categorisation data, is based on the school returns.
The Council use the most up to date data at the time of document construction
from the Welsh Government website. Welsh Government update their national
data base annually.

GwE (The Regional School Improvement Service) data is fed into the Welsh
Government's national categorisation system.

The Welsh Government's national Measuring Capacity of Schools in Wales
forms are verified by Head teachers, this provides the School Capacity and
Admission Number.

Unfilled places are recorded by Welsh Government; the Council provide its
returns to Welsh Government annually; they are also based on official school
returns.

Birth Information by area is obtained from the Office of National Statistics
Pupil projections are aligned with the methodology as neighbouring Authorities
with North Wales

Housing development information is based on actual current housing
applications provided from the Planning Officers.

Potential pupils which may be generated from new housing developments is
calculated using a formula providing by a partnering Authority (Conwy CBC)
who derive the formula based on the latest census returns.

Pupil teacher ratios are provided by publically available statistics on a school
(http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), provided by Welsh Government and is
updated on an annual basis.

Foundation Phase and Core Subject Outcomes are provided by publically
available statistics on a school (http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), provided by
Welsh Government is updated on an annual basis

School Building condition information is provided by an external company who
compare the school building condition against the building bulletin for Primary
and Secondary schools

Backlog maintenance information is provided by through independent
consultants Property Condition Surveys are undertaken on a 5 year cycle.

Priority Codes [definition] are as follows:-

Priority 1: Urgent work required to be undertaken within 1 year

Priority 2: Essential work required to be undertaken within 2 years

Priority 3: Desirable work [deemed as] required to be undertaken within 3 to 5
years

Priority 4: Long term work [deemed as] required to be undertaken outside the 5
year [cycle] period

Page 194


http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/
http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/

Appendix 2

The element Total 1 - 3 defines a five year financial investment and element 4
defines a six - ten year financial investment.

Work items are costed by the Consultant and include for preliminaries, labour,
plant and materials etc. These costs are based on the current building cost
information service [BCIS] provided by the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors, [RICS] as the leading provider of cost and price information within
the construction and maintenance areas. These costs [Unit Rates] are present
within the condition survey software to a default figure and amended/updated as
required by the Consultant. The budget costings are exclusive of VAT, updated
annually [using inflation indices] and reviewed post completion of work.

e School suitability information is provided from Suitability surveys undertaken
independently in line with DffE Asset Management guidance and reviewed by
FCC officers and amended if work has been completed at schools post initial
survey.

e School Budgetary Work is conducted using agreed formula as per the School
budget forum. Cost per pupil data is obtained from the Authority’s section 52
budget statements.

e Travel distances between school sites is provided by the Flintshire County
Council mapping system Route Finder 3.41

e Transport costs are provided by the infrastructure unit who administer home to
school transport contracts.

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR

Siry Filint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

J

OBJECTION REPORT

Proposal to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint
Mountain from 31st August 2016 with pupils
transferring to nearby schools

This is the provisional draft response of the Council which is being provided to
decision makers for discussion - a final view and objection report will be
published before the end of 7 days beginning with the day of determination

MARCH 2016

Should you require a hard copy of this report please email
21stcenturyschools@flintshire.gov.uk with your name and postal address.
Please indicate whether you would like to receive the document in Welsh,
English or both.

Page 197



Flintshire County Council - Education & Youth

Objection Report

Proposal to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain from
31st August 2016 with pupils transferring to nearby schools

Purpose
The report is published in line with the requirements under section 49 of the

School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013. This is a summary of
the statutory objections, otherwise known as “the Objection Report”.

Publication of the Statutory Notice

Following the formal consultation period and the publication of a consultation
report, Cabinet took the decision to proceed to publish the proposal by way of
a statutory notice for 28 days from 29t January 2016 to 26t February 2016.

The statutory notice was published in line with the requirements of the School
Organisation Code. The notice was published on the Flintshire County
Council website and posted at the main entrance of Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint
Mountain. Each school affected by the proposal received electronic copies of
the notice and provided with details of how to obtain hard copies of the notice.

During the objection period, 42 objections were received in relation to the
proposal to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain from 31st August 2016
with pupils transferring to nearby schools.

The correspondence received during the objection period was in a number of
methods and included:

18 (42.86%) email,
24 (57.14%) letter and

Of the 42 objections received, 2 signed objections had no address.

What areas do the objectors reside?

Flint 19
Flint Mountain 12
Brynford 3
Oakenholt 2
Holywell 2
Pantymwyn 1
Alltami 1
Unknown 2
TOTAL 42

Page 198



What areas do the objectors reside?

__\3

m Flint m Flint Mountain = Brynford Oakenholt

m Holywell m Alltami m Pantymwyn ® Unknown

In accordance with the School Organisation Code (2013) this Objection
Report is made available via an email link and also published electronically on
Flintshire County Council’s website at:

www.flintshire.gov.uk/schoolmodernisation

To request a hard (paper) copy of this document please email
21stcenturyschools@flintshire.gov.uk, write to the School Modernisation
Team, Flintshire County Council, County Hall, Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6ND, or
contact the team on 01352 704134/704015.

Page 199


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/schoolmodernisation
mailto:21stcenturyschools@flintshire.gov.uk

00¢ abed

Point Raised

Council’s Response

(2}
@ g
c 8
2 g
(2}
oE | @
[e) [72]
c o c
Q o
£ o
=< 0 =
) c
*o| @
“6 = w— Q
o 2 o ()
28| £
Strengths of the school The positive responses from consultees regarding Ysgol 36 86%

Increase in pupil numbers
Small class sizes

Pupils mix well together
Family atmosphere
Growth in pupil numbers
Successful clubs/trips
Good Estyn report
Education Standards
Happy children

Lots of pupils with Additional Learning Needs
Good staff and teachers
Amagzing school

Maes Edwin are noted.

Reviewing the future of any school is controversial and
emotive. Pupils, parents, carers and teachers, past and
present, have strong ties to local schools as part of their
own life-stories. The Council is challenged with balancing
the sensitivities of community feeling on the one hand,
with providing a high quality education offer which can be
sustained and afforded. The Council cannot avoid making
decisions for the future which are in the best interests of
pupils and students.




TOg abed

Parental Preference has been or is being taken away

e Parents/Carers moved their children from other nearby school
¢ | chose a small school for my child

The Council acknowledges that there is a number of
factors that determine where parents/carers send their
child/children.

The Council will comply with statutory requirements and
the Welsh Government School Admissions Code and will
take account of the expression of parental preference in
the context of its duty to ensure the provision of effective
education and the efficient use of education resources.
When considering applications, the Council will observe
the provisions of the School Admissions Code which
states that admission authorities should admit to the
school’s admission number and will rarely be able to prove
prejudice as a ground for refusing an additional pupil while
the numbers remain below the admission number.

33

79%




20z abed

Consultation Documents and Process

Document is biased

Doesn’t consider housing development

Data is incorrect

Process caused stress and upset

Unfairly targeted

Decision Makers

Key drivers

Welsh Government school ratings not easy to understand
Consultation caused pupils to leave

The formal consultation period for Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint
Mountain commenced on Wednesday, 21st October 2015
and ended on Wednesday, 2" December 2015. The
Council uses the latest verified data at the time of
constructing the consultation documents:

eSchool pupil numbers and more detailed information
around pupils (for example Additional Learning Needs,
English as an Additional Language and School
action/school action plus/statemented) are obtained from
the schools own statistical returns (September or January)
eEstyn data is obtained from the school’s last Estyn
inspection. Timing of inspections will depend on Estyn's
own inspection cycle.

eNational Welsh Government categorisation data is based
on the school returns. The Council uses the most up to
date data at the time of document construction from the
Welsh Government website. Welsh Government update
their national database annually.

33

79%




€0¢ abed

Consultation Documents and Process (Continued)

*GWwWE (The Regional School Improvement Service) data is
fed into the Welsh Government's national categorisation
system.

eThe Welsh Government's national Measuring Capacity of
Schools in Wales forms are verified by Head teachers, this
provides the School Capacity and Admission Number.
eUnfilled places are recorded by Welsh Government; the
Council provides returns to Welsh Government annually;
they are also based on official school returns.

eBirth Information by area is obtained from the Office of
National Statistics

oPupil projections are aligned with the methodology of
neighbouring Council’s within North Wales.

eHousing development information is based on actual
current housing applications provided from the Planning
Officers at Flintshire County Council.

ePotential pupil numbers which may be generated from
new housing developments are calculated using a formula
providing by a partnering Council (Conwy CBC) who
derive the formula based on the latest census returns.
ePupil teacher ratios are provided by publicly available
statistics on a school (http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk),
provided by Welsh Government and is updated on an
annual basis.

eFoundation Phase and Core Subject Outcomes are
provided by publicly available statistics on a school
(http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), provided by Welsh
Government and updated on an annual basis.



http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/
http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/

0z abed

Consultation Documents and Process (Continued)

e¢School building condition information is provided by an
external company who compare the school building
condition against the ‘Building Bulletin’ for Primary and
Secondary schools.

eBacklog maintenance information is provided by
independent consultants. Property Condition Surveys are
undertaken on a 5 year cycle.

Priority Codes (definition) are as follows:-

Priority 1: Urgent work required to be undertaken within 1
year.

Priority 2: Essential work required to be undertaken within
2 years.

Priority 3: Desirable work (deemed as) required to be
undertaken within 3 to 5 years.

Priority 4: Long term work (deemed as) required to be
undertaken outside the 5 year (Cycle) period.

The element Total 1 — 3 defines a five year financial
investment and element 4 defines a six — ten year
financial investment.

Work items are costed by the Consultant and include for
preliminaries, labour, plant and materials etc. These costs
are based on the current building cost information service
provided by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) as the leading provider of cost and price
information within the construction and maintenance
areas. These costs (Unit Rates) are present within the
condition survey software to a default figure and amended




G0z abed

Consultation Documents and Process (Continued)

/updated as required by the Consultant. The budget
costings are exclusive of VAT, updated annually (using
inflation indices) and reviewed post completion of work.

e¢School suitability information is provided from Suitability
surveys undertaken independently in line with DffE Asset
Management guidance and reviewed by Flintshire County
Council officers and amended if work has been completed
at schools post initial survey.

eSchool budgetary work is conducted using agreed
formula as per the School budget forum. Cost per pupil
data is obtained from the Council’s section 52 budget
statements.

eTravel distances between school sites is provided by the
Flintshire County Council mapping system Route Finder
3.41

eTransport costs are provided by the Councils integrated
transport unit who administer home to school transport
contracts.

The Consultation process follows regulatory guidance as
set out in the Welsh Government’'s School Organisation
Code 2013.

However, it is acknowledged that the process around
school organisational change can be unsettling for pupils,
staff and the school community.

The proposal was put forward on the basis of criteria laid
down in the Council’'s School Modernisation Strategy,
namely:




90¢ abed

Consultation Documents and Process (Continued)

sUnfilled places across the primary school portfolio —
Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain as at January 2015
(PLASC) had 66 full time pupils with unfilled places of
13.16%. As of September 2015 the school has 55 full
time pupils with unfilled places at 27.63%

eDiminishing resource criteria (i.e. schools supported by
pupils not from their local community and/or small
numbers within the community raise concern regarding
sustainability within the school’s portfolio) — 83.63% of
pupils attending Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain are not
attending their local school;

eSmall School Criteria — The School population and
capacity of Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain is lower
than national designation of a small school, additionally
school numbers do not meet the minimum requirements of
primary school models as noted in the Council’s School
Modernisation Strategy, and

eYsgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain is currently (July 2015)
in Welsh Government categorisation 4, on a scale of 1 —
4, with 4 being the lowest for educational standards.




10z abed

Children’s emotional welfare (how the move will affect my child)

Pupils already transferred from other schools

Bullying

Unable to get into other nearby schools because they are full
Increased travel times to school

Don’t want to attend larger schools

Loss of friendship

Won't get the further support they require

Overcrowded classrooms

Reviewing the future of any school is controversial and
emotive. The Council is challenged with balancing the
sensitivities of community feeling on the one hand, with
providing a high quality education offer which can be
sustained and afforded. The Council cannot avoid making
decisions for the future which are in the best interests of
pupils and students. When proposing changes to school
organisation it is acknowledged that there will be some
changes for pupils. Should the proposal be implemented
and Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain be closed it would
result in changes for the existing pupils such as :

Shorter journey time to school for pupils who
reside in the Flint area

A marginally longer route to school for fewer than
10 pupils who live in the Flint Mountain area

A new school uniform

New teachers and support staff

New learning environment

Friendship groups may be affected, however new
friendships may be formed.

31

74%




80¢ abed

Impact on the Community

Central hub of the village

School land should only be used for a school
School/Community must do more to attract more pupils
School used for clubs/night classes

Essential to the community

Authority going to sell the land for housing

Rumours the school is going to be a Pupil Referral Unit

A Community Impact Assessment has been carried out
and the Council acknowledges that where a school
closure is proposed it will have some impact on the local
community, although the community use of the school is
relatively low.

However, the Council will work with schools and
community to mitigate issues where possible.

The Council has no plans for the site, and will not consider
the future of the site until such time as the school’s future
is determined.

Legal Land ownership issues are still being investigated, it
has been noted that some of the site at Ysgol Maes
Edwin, Flint Mountain is part of the Bryn Edwin Trust.
Dependant on the formalisation of such matters, the
Council could consider transferring the asset or part of the
asset to a constituted community group where it can
demonstrate a need and ability to take over the running of
the site.

31

74%




60¢ abed

Recent spend on building works

¢ Recent spend on Disability Adaptations and maintenance
o Waste of Tax payers money
e Unnecessary items purchased

The Council cannot predetermine an outcome to the
proposal and therefore work on the principle of spending
today’s money on today’s pupils.

The condition surveys are carried out by independent
surveyors, commissioned by the Council. They survey
schools on a five year cycle in line with national guidance
and provide the Council with maintenance priorities. The
work to repair the roof was identified as a priority,
therefore urgent repair work was programmed
accordingly.

The Council has a legal duty to consider the Equalities
Act, therefore work was completed at the school to
facilitate the needs of a pupil.

31

67%




0T¢ abed

Housing developments not been taken into consideration

e Potential new housing in area

Application to change use of land in the area from agricultural

to building

Croes Atti development

Expanding residential area

New housing has created younger families

Expected rise in number of school pupil due to housing

development

¢ Authority have approved new housing developments in the
area

The Council has fully considered school capacity in the
area together with potential housing development yield
within its consultation documents.

Data regarding potential pupils which could be generated
from new housing developments is calculated using a
housing yield formula. The housing yield formula has
been derived from research work based on national
census data from a partnering Council. This was applied
to all current housing development planning applications
approved by the planning authority.

The housing yield figures produced are a maximum figure
and do not take into account parental choice and/or pupil

movement i.e. pupils moving into the new homes but who
are already in the local education system.

The pace of housing developments will be constrained by
the plans of the site owners/developers, the housing
market, current economic climate and other factors which
are unpredictable.

It is the Council’s view that there is sufficient capacity
within the local school network to accommodate pupils
from Ysgol Maes Edwin should it close. Estyn have
commented that: ‘The local authority has given a clear
rationale for the proposed expected benefits when
compared with the status quo in relation to finance,
surplus places and the continuity and progression in
pupils’ learning.’

31

67%




TT¢ abed

Federation of the school

¢ Not given enough time to explore Federation
¢ No support from Flintshire County Council

e Interested schools declined to participate in Federation

following discussions with Flintshire County Council

The federation of schools is a legal process which enables
schools to work together through a formal structured
process by sharing a governing body that will make
decisions in the best interest of all the schools, staff and
pupils in that federation.

The Welsh Government have brought in new regulations
around federation of maintained schools in Wales. The
Federation of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations
2014 which came into force on 22 May 2014 give effect to
Council’s powers to federate schools. (School governors
already have powers to federate by choice under
provisions introduced in 2010). These powers have now
been consolidated into the 2014 Regulations.

An alternative suggestion of federation had been
suggested by a number of consultees, notably the
governing body. The Governing body of Ysgol Maes
Edwin, Flint Mountain has not been able to identify a
willing partnering school or schools with which to pursue a
federation. The prospect of developing a successful
federation without a willing partner or partners is minimal.
Neighbouring schools have confirmed that they have not
and will not be bringing forward a federation proposal with
Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain.

28

67%




Z1¢ abed

Transition of pupils with Additional Learning Needs

e Understand the additional needs of the children

The Council will take all practicable steps to ease the
transition for all pupils, most especially for vulnerable
groups of learners such as Additional Learning Needs
(ALN). Should the proposal be implemented the Council
would work alongside pupils, their parents, and the
relevant schools to make appropriate transition
arrangements for pupils to familiarise themselves with
their new environments (subject to parental preference).

Where pupils have specific ALN needs the resource and
support they require would be replicated in their new
learning environments.

28

67%

10

Admissions

e Nearby schools are full to capacity
e Lack of support from Flintshire County Council

It is the Council’s view that there is sufficient capacity
within the local school network to accommodate pupils
from Ysgol Maes Edwin should it close

Advice and information about admissions was readily
provided to parents on request. Any advice given was in
accordance with the School Admissions Code and the
Council's admissions policy. The Council have responded
to many requests from parents for advice in order to
provide parents with as much information as possible. In
individual cases all options have been explored and
appropriate advice given. Where applications have been
received, alternative places have been allocated in
accordance with the admissions policy.

A mini admissions process will be administered to assist
families in transition to other school should cabinet
determine closure.

14%




€T¢ abed

11

Savings/Budget/Funding

Council unable to manage budget

Save money on consultations used to advise to close the
school

Welsh Government announced additional funding for schools

Inefficient school organisation can result in uneven and
unfair funding patterns where some schools receive a
disproportionate share of funding at the expense of pupils
attending other schools in the area, this is mostly the case
of schools that are classified as small schools. Any school
proposals should contribute towards establishing a more
equitable pattern of school funding.

In line with regulatory requirements Flintshire County
Council has a schools’ funding formula which is the
methodology by which the budget share for each school in
the County is determined. Each year the formula is
reviewed and in consultation with relevant stakeholders
amendments are made to reflect changes in funding and
policy. (The detailed methodology and the budget shares
are sent to all schools and a summary is published in what
is referred to as the section 52 budget statement).

Schools receive a budget for a financial year from April to
March and this is based on the pupils in each school in the
September preceding the financial year. The 2015/16
section 52 budget statement has been used as the basis
of analysis.

7%

12

Traffic and Transport Impact

Unable to walk children to school

Parents/carers do not drive

Pupils being forced to travel further to attend their 2" choice
school

Under current transport policy fewer than ten pupils would
be entitled to free home to school transport based on the
assumption they transfer to their nearest school, Ysgol
Owen Jones, Northop. This would be on the basis that the
route to the alternative school from Flint Mountain would
be considered to be hazardous due to its rural location
which has limited footpaths in and out of the village.

The Council will provide transport in accordance with its

5%




v T abed

Transport Policy.

http://www flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Lifelong-
Learning/Schools/SchoolTransport/Transport-Eligibility-
Criteria-.pdf In summary, the Council provides free
transport for children of compulsory school age, where a
child receiving primary education lives over two miles from
the nearest appropriate school.

The Council also provides free transport for pupils of
statutory school age:-

» where the route to school is considered to be hazardous
by the Council;

» where transport to a named school is identified in a
pupil’s Statement of Special Educational Needs. This
would normally be on medical or educational grounds and
would be deemed essential in the context of other criteria
identified in this policy

» where a child requires transport on medical grounds and
no suitable public transport exists; Free transport is also
provided for pupils of statutory school age:

» where a child whose parents are in receipt of Income
Support or Working Tax Credit resides more than 2.5
miles from the nearest appropriate school;

* to the nearest Welsh medium school under the criteria
identified above;

* to the nearest voluntary aided school where the
admission to the school is on denominational grounds,
subject to the distance criteria. Consultation with individual
schools will take place to confirm the admission criteria
under which pupils are admitted. Suitable evidence of
adherence to the faith of the school such as a baptismal
certificate or a letter from a priest may be requested.




Conclusion

As outlined during the consultation process, the proposal to close Ysgol Maes
Edwin, Flint Mountain from 31st August 2016 with pupils transferring to nearby
schools requires the approval of the Local Authority Cabinet Members. This
Objection Report alongside a copy of all the Objections, a copy of the
consultation document; a copy of the consultation report; and a copy of the
published notice will be forwarded to Cabinet Members for determination.

Page 215



This page is intentionally left blank



Estyn response to the proposal to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain,
with pupils transferring to other schools in the local area subject to parental
preference.

This report has been prepared by Her Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and
Training in Wales.

Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and its
associated Code, proposers are required to send consultation documents to Estyn.
However Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the Code
and the Act places no statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school
organisation matters. Therefore as a body being consulted, Estyn will provide their
opinion only on the overall merits of school organisation proposals.

Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the
following response to the information provided by the proposer and other additional
information such as data from Welsh Government and the views of the Regional
Consortia which deliver school improvement services to the schools within the
proposal.

Introduction
The proposal is by Flintshire County Council.

The proposal is to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain from 31st of August 2016
with existing pupils transferring to other schools in the local area, subject to parental
preference.

Summary

The proposal is part of Flintshire County Council’s School Modernisation Strategy,
which aims to ensure that there are a sufficient number of school places, of the right
type, in the right locations.

It is Estyn’s opinion that the proposal is likely to at least maintain the current
standards of education in the area.

Description and benefits

The local authority has given a clear rationale for the proposed expected benefits
when compared with the status quo in relation to finance, surplus places and the
continuity and progression in pupils’ learning.

The proposal clearly defines the expected benefits of the proposal which link well to
the stated purpose and rationale. The local authority has provided sufficient evidence
to show that the plan is likely to at least maintain the standard of education in the
Flint Mountain, Flint and Northop area.

Page 217



The proposal notes appropriately the advantages of the proposal, which include the
efficient and effective use of resources; a reduction of unfilled pupil places within the
primary school network; at least maintaining the current standards and the quality of
education in the area; and the reduction in travel to school for the maijority of pupils
should they choose their local school.

The proposer has identified appropriately the disadvantages to the current proposal,
which focus on the impact of the closure of Ysgol Maes Edwin on the staff currently
employed at the school, the end of English medium primary provision in the village of
Flint Mountain and the increase in travel time for a few pupils who live in this village.

The local authority has provided clear evidence to show that it has considered other
alternatives to this current proposal. These include maintaining the status quo and
federating Ysgol Maes Edwin with another local school. They have demonstrated
clearly the advantages and disadvantages of each option and the reasons for their
preferred option.

The proposer has suitably considered the impact of the proposal on pupil travel
arrangements. It intends to support home to school travel in line with the council’s
transport policy. It further recognises that the proposal will potentially result in
reduced travel for most pupils currently attending Ysgol Maes Edwin. However, the
proposer recognises that the travel time would increase for a few pupils living in Flint
Mountain, but this would not be in excess of the pupil travel guidelines.

The proposer has appropriately shown how the proposal will affect surplus places by
providing pupil numbers and surplus places in 2015 for schools in the area.

The proposal appears to have taken appropriate account of the impact of the
proposal on the Welsh language and the accessibility of Welsh medium provision in
accordance with parental choice.

The proposer has considered reasonably well the impact of the proposals on the
quality of the outcomes, provision and leadership and management at Ysgol Maes
Edwin, Ysgol Gwynedd, Cornist Community Primary School and Ysgol Owen Jones.
The proposer has considered the outcomes of the most recent Estyn inspection
reports and each school’s categorisation in relation to the National School
Categorisation system on the quality of leadership and pupil outcomes. The
proposer’s summary of outcomes for all four schools is clear and compares
appropriately with local, national and family of schools averages. However, the
proposer has not commented on comparisons with similar schools based on
entitlement to free school meals.

With the exception of Ysgol Owen Jones, Estyn inspected the other three schools
between January 2014 and February 2015. The judgements for the current
performance and prospects for improvement were judged as good for these three
schools. Estyn inspected Ysgol Owen Jones in May 2010 and judged six out of the

Page 218



seven key questions as grade 2, with one being judged as grade 1. The local
authority has also evaluated each school’s performance in relation to the National
School Categorisation System. Under the system, schools will be in one of four
standards groups (1 to 4), with schools in standards group 1 demonstrating very
good overall performance and those in standards group 4 demonstrating the greatest
need for improved performance. Ysgol Maes Edwin is currently in standards group
4, Ysgol Gwynedd in standards group 2 and both Cornist Community Primary School
and Ysgol Owen Jones in standards group 1.

The proposer has appropriately considered the likely impact of the proposals on
standards, wellbeing and curriculum delivery. The proposer reasonably asserts that
the proposal would not impact unfavourably on the current standards and provision
at Ysgol Gwynedd, Cornist Community Primary School and Ysgol Owen Jones.

The proposer has undertaken an appropriate equality impact assessment, which
considers the impact of the proposal on vulnerable groups including those with a
disability or special educational needs.

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Sir y Fflint
("!i!in!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 19 April 2016
Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 10)
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This regular monthly report provides the latest revenue budget monitoring position
for 2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account. The position is
based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 10, and projects forward to
year-end.

The projected year end position is as follows:
Council Fund

e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £1.110m lower than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2016 of £4.746m

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £0.092m lower than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2016 of £1.329m

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Note the overall report and the projected Council Fund contingency sum
as at 31st March 2016.

2 Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account.

3 To agree the carry forward requests as stated in Appendix 6.

Page 221



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | THE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING POSITION FOR MONTH 10 -
2015/16

1.01 | Council Fund Latest In Year Forecast
The table below shows the projected position by portfolio.

In-Year
TOTAL EXPENDITURE Original | Revised | Projected | Over/
AND INCOME Budget Budget Outturn | (Under)
spend
£m £m £m £m
Social Services 59.696 59.031 58.995 | (0.036)
Community & Enterprise 12.598 12.872 12.261 | (0.611)
Streetscene &
Transportation 27.782 28.440 29.348 | 0.908
Planning & Environment 4.887 5.420 5531 | 0.111
Education & Youth 13.760 12.127 12.129 | 0.002
Schools 82.670 84.273 84.273 | 0.000
People & Resources 4.595 4.609 4.505 | (0.104)
Governance 8.689 8.715 8.958 | 0.243
Organisational Change 9.569 9.546 9.105 | (0.441)
Chief Executive 3.296 3.087 2.909 | (0.178)
Central & Corporate
Finance 23.915 23.337 22.333 | (1.004)
Total 251.457 251.457 250.347 | (1.110)

1.02 | The reasons for the projected variances occurring to date are summarised
within appendix 2 with movements between periods summarised in appendix
1.

1.03 | Significant budget movements between original and revised budget
There has been a significant budget movement in month 10, £0.607m was
transferred from the delegated Schools budget to Education & Youth. This
relates to the realignment of the Additional Learning Needs delegated funding.
There has also been a transfer of £0.102m from Central & Corporate Finance
to Planning & Environment of £0.089m and Streetscene & Transportation of
£0.014m relating to successful single status appeals.

1.04 | Streetscene and Transportation

The overall overspend within Streetscene & Transportation has increased
from a projected £0.897m overspend at Month 9 to £0.908m as at Month 10.
The projected overspend within the service is due in part to the delay in the
implementation of a number of efficiencies as reported to the Programme
Board. In addition fluctuations in recycle sales due to a volatile market has led

Page 222




to an increased pressure on income projections which have resulted in a
shortfall of £0.390m. Full details of movements are explained in Appendix 2.

1.05 | Programme of Efficiencies
The 2015/16 budget contains £12.874m of specific efficiencies which are
being tracked.

1.06 | Appendix 3 provides detail on the latest position where there is a variation to
the level of efficiency achievable compared to the budget.

1.07 | This shows that it is currently projected that £10.628m (83%) will be achieved
resulting in a net underachievement of £2.246m. The underachieved
efficiencies are included within the projected outturn figure. The position will
continue to be monitored and reported throughout the monthly monitoring
process.

1.08 | Inflation
Included within the 2015/16 budget are provisions for pay (£1.304m), targeted
price inflation (£0.421m), non-standard inflation (£0.102m) and income
(£0.254m).

1.09 | For 2015/16 the amounts for non-standard inflation (NSI) include an allocation
for food (£0.064m) and an allocation for Non Domestic Rates (£0.038m).

1.10 | There is an amount of £0.240m remaining from 2014/15 which is also being
held centrally. Areas subject to NSI increases will be monitored throughout
the year and allocations made to portfolio areas only where a critical funding
need is evidenced.

1.11 | It is anticipated that the £0.064m for food inflation will not be required. In
addition to this there is a surplus of £0.061m remaining from inflation set aside
for pay. Therefore £0.125m is now projected to underspend. The balance of
the 2014/15 inflation and £0.110m from the in-year inflation have been
included as an efficiency within the 2016/17 budget.

Reserves and Balances

1.12 | Unearmarked Reserves
The 2014/15 outturn reported to Cabinet on 14t July 2015 showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 March 2015 (above the base level of £5.769m) of
£4.746m.

1.13 | Taking into account previous allocations and the current underspend at Month
9 the balance on the contingency reserve at 31t March 2016 is projected to
be £4.746m.

1.14 | Earmarked Reserves

The Council has developed a reserves protocol which was considered by
Audit Committee and approved by County Council on 24t September 2015.
This sets out the principles around how the council will determine, manage

Page 223




and review the level of its reserves and includes reference to regular reporting
of the latest position to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

The next updated position on earmarked reserves will be included in the
month 12 monitoring report.

Housing Revenue Account

1.15 | On 17 February 2015 the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2015/16 of £30.776m. The budget provided for a closing
balance of £1.396m.

1.16 | The 2014/15 Outturn Report to Cabinet on 14 July 2015 showed a closing
balance at the end of 2014/15 of £1.510m.

1.17 | The Month 10 monitoring report for the HRA is projecting in year expenditure
to be £0.092m lower than budget and a projected closing balance as at 31
March 2016 of £1.329m, which at 4.3% of total expenditure satisfies the
prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

1.18 | Carry Forward Requests
Various requests to carry forward funding into 2016/17 have been identified.
Details of all carry forward requests are shown in appendix 6 and are
recommended for approval.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | The Budget Monitoring Report reflects the planned use of the financial

resources of the Council for the current financial year and details the
variations occurring to date.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None Required.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI)

MMI was the predominant insurer of public sector bodies prior to 1992
when it failed. To ensure an orderly “run off’ Flintshire, along with other
local authorities, was required to pay a levy of 15% of its share of claims
paid previously and of any future claims. MMI's administrator has recently
published their 2015 accounts which shows that due to an increase in the
number of claims generally, there will be a need to increase the levy in the
future, affecting claims paid previously and future claims. A

Page 224




recommendation was approved to meet a significant liability which reflects
a 20% increase in the levy however there remains a risk that the future
provision may escalate further.

Status: stable/green risk.

4.02 | Recycling
The recycling market (paper in particular) is going through a volatile period
with fluctuating re-cycle sale values. This will impact on 2015/16 recycling
income levels for the Council. The current impact is reflected in the Month
9 projections and continues to be monitored throughout the year. A budget
pressure for this income has been included in the 2016/17 budget to help
mitigate this risk for future years.
Status: unstable/red risk.

4.03 | Out of County Placements
The risk is the volatility in demand and the impacts on service costs which
cannot be predicted with any certainty. Therefore there is always a risk of
significant variances occurring although this area continues to be closely
monitored.
Status: unstable/amber risk.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 9 — Appendix 1
Council Fund — Budget Variances — Appendix 2
Council Fund — Programme of Efficiencies — Appendix 3
Council Fund — Movement on unearmarked reserves — Appendix 4
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 5
Council Fund — Carry Forward Requests — Appendix 6

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None required
Contact Officer:  Sara Dulson

Finance Manager

Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Budget: a statement expressing the Council’s policies and service levels

in financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest sense it
includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any
authorised amendments to them.

Council Fund: the fund to which all the Council’s revenue expenditure is
charged.

Page 225



mailto:sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Financial Year: the period of twelve months commencing on 1 April.

Housing Revenue Account: the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a
local authority account showing current income and expenditure on
housing services related to its own housing stock. The account is separate
from the Council Fund and trading accounts and is funded primarily from
rents and government subsidy.

Projected Outturn: projection of the expenditure to the end of the
financial year, made on the basis of actual expenditure incurred to date.

Reserves: these are balances in hand that have accumulated over
previous years and are held for defined (earmarked reserves) and general
(general reserves) purposes. Councils are required to regularly review the
level and purpose of their reserves and to take account of the advice of the
Chief Finance Officer.

Revenue: a term used to describe the day-to-day costs of running Council
services and income deriving from those services. It also includes charges
for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct
financing of capital expenditure.

Underspend: when referring to expenditure the actual expenditure
incurred is less than budget. Shown as a —ve. When referring to income
the actual income achieved exceeds the budget. Shown as a —ve.

Variance: difference between latest budget and actual income or
expenditure. Can be to date if reflecting the current or most up to date
position or projected, for example projected to the end of the month or
financial year.

Virement: the transfer of budget provision from one budget head to
another. Virement decisions apply to both revenue and capital expenditure
heads, and between expenditure and income, and may include transfers
from contingency provisions. Virements may not however be approved
between capital and revenue budget heads.

Page 226




COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16

b FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
FSl‘r y Filint
Flintshire Budget Monitoring (Month 10

Summary of Movement from Month 9

Month 8

Portfolios

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Cabinet Report

Month 10

Portfolios

Cenitral and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation

Social Services

Services For Adults

Locality Teams (Older People Purchasing) - reduction in projected overspend due to reduced
demand for domiciliary care (-£0.036m), and residential care (-£0.021m), with other minor
variances making up the remaining -£0.004m.

Residential Care (Older People - Provider Services) - increase in projected property income and
increase in income for free nursing.

Other Services for Adults (Older People - Provider Services) - anticipated use of reserve no
longer to be drawn down as part of internal reserve management strategy

Resources & Regulated Services - Increase in costs due for a retrospective claim from a service
provider following a rate increase agreed by the former commissioning hub.

Vulnerable Adults and Disability Service (Disability Services) - revised commitment for
new/existing transition service users following service review.

Administrative Support (Disability Services} - transfer of agency social worker costs to PDSI (-
£0.041m), plus reallocation of advocacy costs (-£0.028m).

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Leaming Disabilities / PDSI

Older People (Provider Services)

Older People {Purchasing)

Mental Health Services

Subtotal: Services for Adults

Development & Resources

Good Health team - costs of a NEWCIS Saturday Carer Event held in Croes Atti.
Minor variances of less than £0.025m

Business Systems and Financial Assessment

Deputyship Team

Business Services - income

Management & Support

Training

Commissioning

Subtotal: Development & Resources

Children's Services

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Children's Training

Family Placement

Grants

Family Support

Prevention & Support

Other Residential

Proffesional Support

Flying Start

Out of County

Children & Safeguarding
Subtotal: Children's Services

Total: Social Services

£m

(0.106)
(1.136)

£m

(0.106)
(1.004)

(1.242)

(0.061)

(0.067)
0.163
0.230

(0.417)

(0.069)

0.004

(0.001)

(0.001)
0.002

(1.110)
0.132

0.032

(0.006)
0.001
0.010
0.010

(0.009)
0.005

(0.217)

(0.014)
0.011
(0.014)
0.009
0.009
0.001
0.022
0.017
0.018
0.002

0.043

Page 227

0.061

(0.113)

Appendix 1



Appendix 1

Community & Enterprise

Customer & Housing Services
® Additional underspend on Flintshire Connects (0.007)

Subtotal: Customer & Housing Services {0.007)

Council Fund Housing

* Procurement of Telecare Equipment 0.018

e Savings in respect of the Community Based Accommodation Support Service (0.062)
Subtotal: Council Fund Housing (0.044)
Regeneration

¢ Reduced Markets income 0.002

s Further capitalisation of costs in Housing Regeneration & Strategy (0.030)
Subtotal: Regeneration {0.028)

Revenues & Benefits

* Additiona! Surplus on the Council Tax Collection Fund (0.050)
¢ Further underspend on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme provision (0.007)
e Additional DWP New Burdens funding (0.014)
Subtotal: Revenues & Benefits {0.071}

Housing Programmes
* SHARP Procurement 0.031

Subtotal: Housing Programmes 0.031

Minor changes of less than £0.025m.

* Customer & Housing Services 0.011

¢ Council Fund Housing 0.001

* Regeneration (0.014)

¢ Revenues & Benefits 0.010

¢ Housing Programmes 0.027
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.035
Total: Community & Enterprise _ {o.084

Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

¢ Ancillary Services & Performance 0.012

s Highway Network (0.012)

+ Transport & Logistics 0.011
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.011
Total: Streetscene & Transportation 0.011

Planning & Environment Portfolio

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

¢ Business (0.013)

e Community 0.001

¢ Development 0.015

e Strategy 0.004

o Administration 0.006

* Vacant Posts (0.024)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m (0.011)
Total: Planning & Environment (0.011)

Page 228



Education & Youth

Inclusion Services

Out of County - 2 new placements, increased provisions and a new 8 week assessment have
been partially offset by 2 placements ending.

Subtotal: Inclusion Services

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Primary School Services

Secondary School Services

Access - School Provision

Adult & Community Education

Community Centres

Youth Justice Service

Youth & Community Service

Commissioning & Performance - Business Support
Schoo! Management Information

Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Education & Youth

People & Resources

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

HR & OD

Corporate Finance

Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: People & Resources

Governance

Procurement

The efficiency relating to income from charging suppliers will not be achieved this financial year.

Subtotal: Procurement

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Legal Services

Democratic Services

Intemal Audit

Records Management

Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Governance

Organisational Change

Valuation & Estates

The shortfall in rental income from the Gaz du France site is to be met through in year savings,
which previously were to be met through Reserves

Sub I: Valuation & E

Property Design & Consultancy
Additional design fees over budgeted income target achieved.

Subtotal: Property Design & Consultancy

Facilities
£0.023m additional income achieved from increase in school meals.

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Public Libraries & Arts, Cuiture & Events
Leisure Services

Facilities

Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Organisationat Change

Chief Executive

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Minor variances less than £0.025m
Total: Chief Executive

Page 229

0.022
0.022
(0.010)
(0.007)
(0.012)
(0.003)
0.001
0.002
(0.001)
0.003
0.008
{0.019)
0.003
(0.004)
0.014
0.010
0.118
0.116
0.013
(0.014)
(0.002)
(0.003)
(0.006)
0.110
0.143
(0.037)
(0.023)
0.003
(0.001)
(0.007)
0.078
0.078
(0.004)
(0.004)

Appendix 1



Central & Corporate Finance

e Coroners Fees
e Projected under-recovery of contribution to pension fund
o Euticals Running Costs
e Matrix Rebates
e Minor variances
Total: Central & Corporate Finance

Total Changes

Page 230

0.031
0.178
(0.044)
(0.020)
(0.013)

0.132

0.132

Appendix 1



‘saunssasd
SSalppe 0] 92ABS Ul aIaumas|e  spuadsiapun
asn 0} sjuawysnipe juawubieas 186pnq pusuwosay

‘sainssald
SS2IpPE 0} 90IABS Ul diaymasi@  spuadsispun
asn o} sjuaw)snipe yuawubijeas 186png puswwioosy

'S92IAJSS JBY)0
pue aieo Ae(] UIYIM WGLO'0F 18U B O} JUNOWE SIOUEBLEA JOUIW JAYIO
BYlo

‘(sao1nuag paje|nbay pue s82I1N0say)
JUSLISIqESY g SYEJU] WOl SaRi|ES0T OJUl pauajsuel) Sey yoym wes)
YO (1008 [elidsoH ay) 0} Buneras ‘(611°03) JO |ej0) B SapNjoul Ydiym
‘'SaIUBIEBA JONJOM [B100S 0) anp Bulyjels o} saje(al ysiym (Wiypg 03) 40
puadsiapun pajoaloid |ejo) e s 818y "SWES) SaI|e20T BaIE 3y} Uiyim
uoddns jeuoissajoid ayy si puadsispun jueoyiubis jo eale Jayun) vy
uoddng jeuoissajoid

‘Buisinu aa.} 1o} (WP 03) Buipniour yobpng aaoge
alwooul Ul sasealoul Jayuny snid ‘awosu) pajeal Apadoud Jo [aas)| 8y) Ul
asealoul ue 0} anp (weeb 03) Jo puadsiapun ue ‘siapiacid awoy ased
0) sjuswAed uo (wgLz 03) JO puadsiopun ue ‘sspnjoul yoiym ‘sied
[enuspisal uo (wgG/'03) jJo puadsiapun pajosioud B AQ Jospyo uey)
asow Buiaq sI ases Aueoiwioq uo puadsiano pajoafosd ueoyubis sy
ale’) [enyuapisay

-abeyoed xa|dwod auo jo uonessad ayy Aq pasuanjul Ajued
uaaq sey yolym ‘w/£g°03F Jo uonisod LWININO G/ LOZ SU} WoJj padnpal
Apueoyiubls sey yoiym w/pp 03 SI puadsiano pajoasfoid jo [9A9)
JuauNd ayj ‘epuawap yum ajdoad jo siaquinu Buiseasoul pue pasu
Jo Aixajdwoo pasealou; ‘ajyord oneloowsp Buibueys ayy yuawsiqea)
1sed [nyssaoons Bumoj|oy aduas ay} o} Bujuinjal sualo Agq pasuanjul
Buleg s s uyoym ‘aien Aejoiwoq s! ainssaid jo ease uew
ay] "ease s|y} ul sasueuea Bugesuadwos juedyubls swos ase assy)

(sanyeso)

aseg Aeyoiwod|(0/40)  [(1ES'0)  |9FLpL L1191 swes | Ajjeso
S3DIAIAG |R120S
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
B
paiinbay uopoy asueURA Jofepy Jo asned) mmo_.__ﬂ..wh ajueuep u.“”wa_.n_vmn_ _wwm_ﬂ.wm_ - TN ET

Z Xipuaddy

AHVWNNS - 0L HINOW

Page 231



"SHNO2 40 uosud Wwoyy aonou
Hoys je Spuewap pue siaqunu ualo ur sabueys

(CLINVELS
asnsipy asueysgng
B U)eaH [BJUS|N)

ol anp AymejoAa [ejuajod - malnal sapun daay "91/510z 104 sabexoed ased Juaund spoaley|(8LL 0) (0oz10) /610 J1€0 1obpng 21suaio
(CRITVEIS
asnsiy aoueysqnsg
2 YjeaH |ejuay)
's1500 abeyoed mau jeuonppe 019G Aueyjioiwoq
‘MaInal Jopun doay[episbuoje sebexoed Aeyiiwog pue |eRuapIssy Ul SBsealdul(zgl'0 2810 G660 €180 pue [eluaplsay
'S1500 AOBOOAPE JO UOlED0||eal
pue |Sad 0 150d YO [e100S B 10} SIS0J JO J9jsuel} AQ JOSHo sem (s@anuag
pusdsiano au} jo swios 0] pouad )y ‘yels Aouabe jo asn Buipnjoul Ayqesig) woddng
‘MaInal Jopun dasyy|'s1so0 seakojdws uo sainssaid 0} anp Ajulew S| puadsidno SIUL|60°0 2200 9zZ£0 $0€°0 SANBJISIUILPY
'SaL02IN0
pesinal pue mainal aolaes Bumojoy pasnpas Apuedylubis usaq
MOU BABY SJ8SN 3DIAISS 10} S)S0D Pajoadxad JO SULD) Ul SJUSWHWIWOD (sao1nag Aljigesiq)
SNOINSId 'SIUSI[D UONISUBJ) JEUONIPPE/MBU 10) JUSWIJWWOD PasIAaI 201nag Ajigesiq pue
‘Mainal Jepun daay|[e sepnipour gL pouad '91/510Z 4o} sabexoed aied uauNd S)OARY([PEL'D (£82°0) 9102 6622 S)NpY @|qelauinp
‘qny Buluolssiwwio) 1awio} 3Y) Ag mainal Buimolioy
1apincid 20IA19S B J0) 8jEJ DY} Ul 9Sealdul pajepioeq B Jo A1saodal
10) WQOEZ'0F 40 JapiAcid [BUISIXS UB WOJ) WIBD B 0} Sajejal puadsiano
Sy} U0 9JUBNKUI JBYMNY Y "sJaued Aojdwe Oym SI9SN 3JIAISS U0}
sjuswAed asuesnsul Aljigel Jakoidws puny o) suonebiqo 104 pue siasn
ao1mes 0) sjuswAed ay) abeuew o} papasu Ajoeded uonessiuiwpe
‘sainssaud|jeuonippe ayy o uoneps ul si Juswsid Bulurewsal 3yl -Aouaye (saonag Apgesiq)
SSaippe 0] 90AIBS Ul aJaymasje  spuadsiapun|yo suo e se alesodio pue [eauad o} (471) punj Buian Juapuadapu| sa0I1neS paleinfay
asn 0} sjuaunsnipe juswubieas 196pnq puswwooay |auy o) uonetas uj 196png Jo Jajsues) ay) Buloaya) Mou SI AIAIBS SIULI6SL0 96€°0 GE9'SL 682Gl Q S90IN0SaY
‘aouapuadapul (juswa|qeay
alen yyesy Buinuguo) Bupowoisd BoAIBS JSYlOUEB O} IBJYO pue axeju|)
“maIAa1 Japun dasy|ue jo uonesojeas ayy o} anp Ajulew si puads Japun pajoafoid ay) (£90°0) (500°0) $1y°0 68.V°0 S2OIAISG JUBLLB|qesY
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 Yjuoy wnyng 186png
paiinbay uopoy asueueA Jolepy Jo asne?) souBLIEA aJuBLBA porsfoid pesiaey 89)AIag

Z Xipusddy

AHVWAINS - 0L HINOW

Page 232



‘saiousIolye ajqissod
pue Bujuueid aimny WOl (M PUB  PaISPISUOD

‘slased ay)
104 @ouemojje Buiobuo ue joeae Ageueaul yosiym siapio diysuelpiens
|jeioadg pue aouspisay JOj SJBpI0 WNOI Jo Jaqunu  Buiseasoul

Bulsg SI yolym JO BWODNO 8y} ‘UdNEUSPUN|ay} O} ANP OSIE SI SIY} JO UBd "9SS BY) UIYIM Sluswwaoe|d 1.9 Ja)soy (s@o1nias s,uaIp|iyD)
u2aq sey Wea| juawace|d AIWES 3y} JO M3lA3) Y|Jo Jaquinu auy) ul SEaJOU) UB JO )NSaJ B S| puadsIono W8Sz 03 ayl vz 0 8520 [o]e T A lzee juswase|d Ajwed
(s1eba166e)
‘MY S8010) 1B JudAT sJase) SIOMIN e Buipuny Joj pajedojje uaaq aAey SOOUBLBA S32JN0Say
"Jua1INgal ag 0} pajoadxa Jou JNQ MBIA3] O} aNUNUOD (WSEN 03 JO SISOD [euolippe ‘0 Pouad }y "S3dUBLEA JOUIW SnoUeA(QgL 0 291°0 085'¢ gLye g Juawdopasq JBYl0

‘pasnbai

[2A3| 3y} 0} dn do} 0} S32IAIBS [BI20S UIYNIM BJaymasie woly 186png sy)

ubijeas 0} 2102194} Alessadau aq [Im )] (dAMOS) el awwelboid

JuowdoeAa( S2JOPUOAN 2IeD [B100S By} Joj suonipuod juelb

ay) }9aw 0} painbal [aAs] ay) mojaq uajie} sey 1abpng ay) Jo Juswsa|d

‘sainssald|Buipuny yojew ay} asusnbasuod B Sy "suoleululRIBp YASHAT

ssolppe 0} 8dAI8S Ul aseymasie  spuadsiapun|pue sawodno sniels ajbuls jo joedwi paulquiod ay) Jo asusnbasuod
asn 0} sjuawysnipe juawubiess 196pnq puswwoday|e se paonpas Ayesmeu sey 891BS SIU) Joy 19Bpng eseq aylL(gLL'o 1010 $S1L°0 100 Buiues)
‘sainssaid 3Woou|
SSalppe O] 9JIABS Ul 2I8ymas|d  spuadsiapun “yoam Jad 093 0) yeam sad 663 woly ded abieys wnwixew Adijod Buibiey)n
asn o) sjuawisnipe Juawubieal 16pNg pusWIWOIdY [aU} JO [9AS| BY} Ul JUBWILIBA0D YSIOp Aq aseasoul ue jo joedw((g1z'0) (80Z°0) (1L88°1) (e29°'1) - S90IAJ2G ssauisng
‘ajdoad JapiQ 4o} uolisod winpno pajosfoid (ejebaibbe)
JUa1IND 3y} UO paseq palsinbal Jou S} SBAISSAL WOL) UMOP UMEBID 8q SaJUBEA S)NpY
‘Jua.LIN2a1 aq 0} pajsadxa 10U NG MaIABI 0} anunuoD |Buipuny sigejieae |epuajod ay) ‘gL pouad 1y "SaouBLEA Joulw snoueA|(Z220°0) $20°0 Se0'LL L0 LL 10} S32UAIBS 1BYID

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 Yjuoy wnyng 18bpng
b
pasinbay uonoy aoueueA Jofey jo ssne) OUBLIBA aJouBLBA porefoid posiAey LTIV T

¢ xipusddy

AHYWAINS - 0L HLNOW

Page 233



LL0°0 (9¢0'0)  |566'8S LE0'6S S99)AI3g [e190g [Bj0L
(s)e621668)
SaouUBUEA UBIPIYD
"JuaLINDas aq 0} Pajoadxa Jou INg M3IAB] 0} SNURUOD *S9OUBLIBA JOUIW SNOUBA| £90°0 €100 £e5¢C 09v'e 10} $90IA18S JBUI0
sjuawaoe|d
‘mMaina1 Japun daay| "91/51.0Z 40} sebexoed aseo yeuna spayay|(glz’0)  [(ooz'0)  [9leE 9lv'E Auno) joinQ
‘wes) uonuanIaiu Ajued ay) uiyim Buiyels uo pusdsiapun
weoubls e Bupnppul ‘voddng [BUOISSBJOId SBIIAIBS  SUIPIYD
uiym  alssymasid (w1go'03) Jo spuadsiepun jau Bumesyo ale
aiay] ‘sapuedea o} anp s}abpng Aed jsuiebe spuadsiapun Buijesyo
aWOS YIM ‘wopQ 03 Hodsuel) pue WEeR03 Jo siopiaocid [Buisixe
0} syatuAed uiyum sainssaid 0} anp st siyl (1SVYAD) wea) poddng
synpy Bunox pue s,uaip|iyD dy} 0} Salelal YoIym wego 03 Jo ainssaid
Jayun; e st assy) ‘podas Buuoyuow 186png 7 yYluol oy Buuapisuod
uaym jauigen Aq panoisdde se amasal Aousbunuod ay) woiy wogL 03
j0 uoilesoje ue jo Aem Aq pajebyiw Ajped usaq sey puadsiano
SIy| "97IAIBS BY} JO BAJE SIU} UIYIM SHSU A3y ssasppe 0} yels Aojdep
Sselppe 0} 3JIAI8S Ul a19ymas|e spuadsiapun]o} paau ay} 0} aNp SI YdIym ‘wea) JUsWssassy @ AiNg ay) uiyim sisod
asn 0} syuawysnipe Juswubieal 126png puswwooay |[Aed Aousbe uo wey) 03 Jo puadsiano pajoafosd paonpal e sl 218y |SZL'D vL0 24 ] 166t yoddng jeuoissajoid
(w3) (wr3) (w3) (w3)
6 YIuon wnyng 196png
paiinbay uonoy aosueLeA Jofey jo asne) soueLE asueUeA perosfoig pesiey LTIV ETS

ZXipusddy

AHVYWWNS - 0L HLNOW

Page 234



(225°0)

(Li9°0)

L9¢e7elL

[44:X43

asudiajug
2 Apunwiwo) |ejoL

“M3IABI PUE JOJUOW 0} BNURUOTD

‘w/eo03 so
SSIUBLIEA JOUIW JAYIO "910Z UDIeN AQ a)IS Uo aq Woq |im ysiym Aenpd
S,Jyeuuo) ‘|00ysS asNoH WOISND pue U4 ‘SHIep 8yl UO S3WaYIs
10 JuawdojaAap Juaipadxa ay) papoddns sey aunypuadxs siy] -eoeds
BuiAI sa1epn Uim Juswaaiby jeba Bulyasy 19AQ ay) Jo juswdojpasp
ayl ywm piemioj anow 0} (dHVHS) swweiboid uonessusbey
pue Buisnoy oi1Bslens sy} sjqeus o) WSEQ03 JO ainypusdxy

¥80°0

[44 %]

¥61°0

¢.00

sawweiboiy
BuisnoH

abueys o) APy

“Jeak ayy Jnoybnoiyy
ale suoposfoid pue 3jelOA

Alybly aJe seale asay) Se Aj9SO0 JOjUOW O} BNURUOD

“(w/Z0°03) J0 sdURLEA JoUlW JBUIO (WO060°03) SMA
woyy Bupuny susping maN [BUOHIPPY "WOSE 0F 4O lleJuOYS pajabpng
Apisgns auag BuisnoH ‘(WEEE 03) SWayds uononpay xe| {Iounod
ay} Joj uoisiroid pajabpng ayy uo puadsispun pajoslold (wgs0'03)
sbuines Buyels ‘pajewnsa Aenur uey) saybly (wiezZ03) e spuels
Apusuno pund uopds|O) Xe] [|1Dunod) 3yl uo snidins psjedidnuy

(88£'0)

(6vv'0)

28101

LE9°0L

S)jauag g SANUBAdY

MBIABJ pue lojiuow 0} anunuod

(WQ00'03) S@oueLeA Joulw JayQ (weo 03) ABajens @ uoneiouabay
BuisnoH ul s)s09 Jo uogesijendes Jayun4 "s)el SWes sy} Je pasealou
10U aney sabieyd assym ‘JeaA yoea uonepyul yum aul ur Buiseaiou
sjobiie} awooul 0} anp sjPyew ul Wgy0'03F JO |{BIHOYS pajewnsy

¥S0°0

[41%Y

2950

0SS0

uonelsuabay

"M3IARJ PUE JO)UOW O} BNURUOD)

"(w200°03) Jo saoueLEA
Jjoulw JaylQ ‘8dussg Hoddng uonepowwosdy paseqg Ajunwiuiod
ay) jo 10adsal ul {wppy03) Jo sbunes ‘wgs 03 uswdinba aiedg|s)}
J0 Juswainoold ‘W90 03 Aq pajediofjue UBY) JaMO| SWOdU| 318098 L

1100

(ze0'0)

(811°0)

(980°0)

BuisnoH
pund j1ouno)

‘M3IADI PUB JOJUOW O} 2NURUOD

“(w100°03) S@oUBLEA JoUIW JBYIO (W9Z0'03)
puadsiapun JeaA-ul pieoquoums (wype0'03) uoisiacud  8oIMeS
sjoauuo) anysiy4 ayr uo puadsiopun (wey0'03) puadsiapun
[euonippe  sanua)  Aunwwo)  (Wpe003) UONEPOWWGCIdY
SS3PWOH Jo 1oadsas up paynuapl Buines ueak-ul  |euOnIpPY

(892°0)

(¥92°0)

W'l

G0L'L

EELITVELS
Buisnoy g Jawolsny

aspdiajug
2 Hlunwwo)

paiinbay uonoy

asueueA Jofely Jo asned)

(w3)
6 WuoW

soueLeA

(w3)
saueueA

(w3)
wnunQ

peyoefoid

(w3z)
18bpng

pasiAsy

LLITNETS

7 Xipuaddy

AYVINNNS - 0L HLNOW

Page 235



‘MBIAB] PUE J0)UOW O} BNURUOD

-abua|ieyd JusaWWLWod
juswa|dw) pue saouas g saliddng Jojuop

‘AIBuipioooe suopoalosd puswe pue
91/510¢ 1noybnouyy Ajasolo 1oxsew Bulohoa Joyuop

“Jaxoel|

Aousioyg pieog swwelbold ybnoiyl papodey

“J9xoeRl )

Aousioiyyg pleog swwesbolrd ybnoiyy pauoday

Jusiwabuele Juswabeuew mau pue s|jam UoloBIIXa

‘GL/L0/LE
woyy pasead yaym sajeoyiua) uondwaxg AAaT ayl Jo jlemeipyim syl
o} anp me| ul abueys e o) anp spuny |euoiippe Bunsanbal 10joENUOD
a)sem pooy 8yl "8lsep poo4 anH JN o} Bunejal aseaoul Jo 4OLJ

‘UdIBN ISLE
ay} 0} ybnouyl yeH3 Jo sabeuuo) Juswieal) 9)Sem pajewss Ul asealou]
pue aseyoind wawdinba pue s}soo Buiylop aAnosjold ‘SIS DHH
playuaalo) je sipaoys Buipeo| Jo any Joy w0 03 JO SIS0I |BuolippyY

'910Z Auenuer [pun payusals) Je saoey bunsodwos
ayr Buisn aq jou |m Asy) se (196pnq wpQQ03 Isulebe |epuoys
ws003) 0D adysybiguag wouy isodwod Joj 9L-GL0Z Ul WOLO03
J0 anp awooul Jeak ued "WOGE 03 Sonjea efes ajdAo-al) Bunenjon))
yum pouad ajnejoa e 0} anp jaxuew Bulphoas ayy ul Buinaiyose Jepun

"WGZO 03 UIg a1sem puodas 1oj abieyd Jo uononposul pue woso 03
slaueluoo a)sem 1oj adas Auaalep Jo uonejuawaldwl pakelaq

"wpg | 03 Jo Aouaioe pajabpng au) uo
Jlejuoys pajoasfoid 210} B Ul Jnsal [Im SaYS Jull4 pue Aen) s,yeuuo) e
saw Buesado mau Jo uononpoiul pajaadxa uey) Jale| ay) o) sabueyo
‘uonippe u| "anuad Buydhoss sdoH Jo ainsojo pasodoid ay) 0) uoieiRl
U] UaYEUapUN UONEB)NSU0D pue pasapisucd Buiaq ase suondo Jayung

‘wgoL o3
18 pajewn)sa mou Si uoljoeixa seb Jo sjaAa] Bunenionyy pue umopyealq

uoija8ljod
a1seM g [esodsig
9ISE - @oUBWIONad

mau |elsujepesbdn 0} juswisaaul 1oy [BRUSOd[uswdinba Bumojoy ssuilbus seb woi ssjes ANouloLe padnpay (€8s o 0060 iyl 2159 9 sa01Mag Aug||iouy
uoneypodsuel]
B USISIVING
(w3z) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 LHuon wnpno 18bpng
pasinbay uonoy asueuep Jofel jo asned soUBLIEA aJueliBA perefold pesiney -LITN T

Z xipusddy

AYVYNNNS - 0L HLNOW

Page 236



uopepodsues]

168'0 806°0 8¥£°6¢ 0y 82 ® 9UBDS)}ANS |BI0)
SaouUBLIEA JBYJ0
‘MalAal 0} anuuo) ‘ajuelleA ON|000°0 0000 16L°0 161°0 - YJomjaN AemybiH
‘Yote ISLE ay) 0} nunuod susaped Jayjesm Juauno
‘saJnBiyy soueusuieW Jajum UM (W9 03F) Jo puadsiepun [enuajod e si
Buuojuow ayy ul papodas Apuaund adjueuBA ON|alay) ‘9L0Z Asenigad Jo pus ay) o) dn saluim abelaae mojaq ayl o) eng
‘safiieyoal Je)s [BUOHIPPE PUB YIOM P3aje|al Jajuim Oju
*51807) @akojdw g sonuopy [uomsuesy Buimojjoy suonesado YIOAA PUNOIS) 1O} JUSWHWWIOD PaInpay
"w60°03 Jo Aouaidlye sy) ul jlejuoys
Jayoes] [pelewnsa ue ul ynsal M yoiym gLoz Aenuep 1s| aq o) psjedionue
fousiolyg preog awwesbold ybnosyy pspoday|mou si spiepuels bBuisues|d peonpas syl jo uonejuswadwl syl
Joyoel | ‘WOE0'03 Jo llejpoys au JIoMIaN
fousioyg pieog swwesbold ybnosyy pauodayle ur Buginsas aoimas Bumno sselb jo uonesieula)xa |y sy w Aed|020'0 8500 292 vov L g ABajeng sAemybiH
sagueuep
Jayoel] Jayjo - sansibo
Aousioyg plreog swwelbold ybnosyy pauoday "saoueueA JouN[(e50'0)  [(090°0)  |0ES'8 0658 '’ uojjepodsues ).
*S3[014aA Jo abesn Jualoye 210w pue 199|4 - Sa0IAIBS
"M3IA3) 0} @nunuos) [ssoud (any Bulonpas o) anp ‘s)s00 9Ny [enuue ul uoganpal pajosioid|{260°0) (6£0°0) 62l'V 808'% 2aInosay B sonsibo
S32UBLEA
“Jayoel) 18410 - @2uewiopad
Aouspoiyg preog swweibold ybnosyy papoday "saouBLEA JOUIN|(G00°0) (0L0°0) 6810 6620 g S92IMBG AuBjliDUY
Juswaliouy
g Bunped
‘AjBuipsoooe suonoafosd *Aluno) ay) ssouoe sabieyo Buped Jes jo uojeyuawajdw) - 3ouBULIOHad
puswe pue Aj@soo awoou] Bupued Jed Joyuop|ayr ur sAejap Bumoljoy sjesodosd Buluueld ssauisng wod) |jejHouS|{660°0 6600 S/10 900 9 S92IAI9S Aug||Iouy
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 Wuow wnpno 196png
paiinbay uonoy aosueuep Jolep Jo asned soueueA asuBLIEA pejosfoid pesinoy ELITNETS

Z Xipuaddy

AHVAINNS - 0L HINOW

Page 237



juswiuosAUg

(444 Lo LES'S 0Zy's g Bujuueyd |ejol

*9)qissod a1aym aAowalaonpal SaduUBLEA JBUIO0 JO

pue ainjpuadxs paRIWIWOD Jojuow O} 8NUNUoD ‘oljojutod ay) ssoioe abuajjeys Juswywwod panunuod|(zyo o) (6t0°0) 2£0°¢ 180°¢ 2)ebai66y oljojuod

S9oUBUEBA

J3410 jo a)ebalbby

‘M3JAB) 0] BNuURUoD ‘oljofuod sy ssoioe abua|ieyd Juswnwwod panuuod|(y Lo '0) (0L0°0) €zZL0 £EL0 - Juawdoanag
*S3I0UBIOIYD
Buluuejd4 ssauisng ul psjosye) pue gLoZz ‘ludy Joy pesodosd

-paJopuow |Ajjeuibuo sem siy] |ig (sslem) Buluuelq syl Japun GLOZ “J8qojoQ (un Juswaalouy

Aj@solp 8q | sjpA9] awodu] 884 Buwueld|es) Aq pasealou) Buiaq jou ses) uonedlddy Buluueld woly |lepIoys|6ZL 0 ovL 0 1000 (gcL0) 9 jonuo) buluueld

a|qissod a1aym aaowalfaonpal ‘ainjipuadxa pajosfoid aininy o anjeA/laAs| sy} SOUBLEA JBYIO0 JO

pue ainypusdxe PaRIWIWOD JOJUOW O} aNupUOD|BudNpal Ul |NYSSa0aNS Usaq sey abuajieyd JusWNWWOD ‘0L pousd W|(8L0°0) (2£0°0) st S8yl a)ebaibby - ssauisng
*/1/910¢ Wolj aseand |im '891u9s 3y} uiyum Bulurews.

Buipuny |ejo) se wawubieal Jabpng |enuajod ybnouyyjjabiey awodul ayy pue GLOZ Jaqwaedsg ul Buipue DED Weyxaim elaq

19618} Qwoou| Juels) aonpas o} sAem alebpsaaulupm diysseuped ayy ul Bunynsas ‘Buipung weln yYy43Q PIINPIY |00 00 010 9210 Q Y)esH [ewiuy

‘suorjosfoud SaoueLBA

a|qissod a1aym anotlal/aonpal(awosul pajepdn pue ainjpusdxs pajosfosd aimny JO anjeAsaAs| ay) 18410 jo ajebalbby

pue ainjpuadxa PpapIUWOD Jojuow O} 3nunuo)|budnpal ul NISse2aNs usag sey abus|ieyd uBWHWWOD ‘0l pouad V|/00°0 1200 0.0 £89°0 - AQlunwwo)
-ajeudoidde se jJuswwuwod ‘uomisod Buinoidwi ybiis e ajedipul pus Jeak

awoaoui Jsnipe pue papiroid SaoIAISS JO 19A8| JOJUO |jeroueuy 0) suonoafoid ay) pue paal@dal $8a8y Jo |9A3] 3y} ‘0L pouad 1V|(z00°0) (L10°0) (600°0) 2000 Buisuaoy

‘ajeudoidde se juaw)wwod uapiepn

awoodul }snipe pue papinoid S92IAISS JO [19AS] JOHUON ‘uomisod Buioueuy yas ay) ul ||ejuoysS |eNua10d|8L00 €100 9500 £v0°0 5oQ jonuo) 1s8d

JUBWIUOIIAUT

g Buuue|d

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
nb 6 Yjuoly wnyno 189bpng
paiinbay uonoy asueueA Jofep jo asne) ooUBLIEA ajuelep pejosfoid posiAey CRITNETS

Z xipuaddy

AYVNWNS - 0L HINOW

Page 238



0000 0000 €LT'v8 £LT V8 sjooyag 2101
“"M8iAB) 0] anujuo) ‘aouele/ ON|000°0 0000 0€6'€ 0E6'E S30IAIBG UOISN|du|
uoneanp3 buinuuo)
"MBIABI 0} anupuo) ‘aduelieA ON|000°0 0000 vyl SE vl GE 3 6LF) ‘Aepuodag
uoeonpy siea
‘MBIA8) 0} anuijuo) ‘souelieA ON|000°0 0000 665 v 665 v Ane3 g Aewud
sjooyas
yinop
(too'0)  |zoo0 6z121 Jx4% 4" =9 uoneanpg |E10L
"01joJU0d UINOA pue uoneanp3 wea| uojeuwlou]
"MaIAB] 0) anunuo) lypm ainponasey juswabeueyy Jowag e Bumojoy sbuines Aouedep|(/+0°0) (6£0°0) €510 2610 yuawabeuepy jooyss
*01jOjHOd YINOA pue uonesnp3 aouewliopsd
‘MaiAl 0} anuUNUoD) [yum ainonisay Juswabeueyy Jowas B Bumojoy sbuines Aouedep |(6£0°0) (9£0°0) 0LE0 9vE 0 9 BuluoIssILWwo)
‘MBiAal 0} snupjuo) ‘saoueneA Jouln|(z00 o) (€00°0) €eEY’L 9ev’L S30IAJ3S UINOA
"M3lAR) O} anuiuo) ‘adueleA ON(000°0 0000 9610 9610 s|ooyos AImuad IsLz
(uoisinoid g Buuue|d
‘MBIAR) 0} BNuUuUoD "SWIejo 8oueInsu| Jo} papodal sBulaes sapn|ouy - SSOUBMEA JOUIN|{($20°0) (9€0°0) 2y 0 8050 |00Yyos) $Sa22Y
‘puBWSp Jo AljIgeloipaidun pue syjuswaseld
1500 ybiy Joj jenuajod By} pue 82IAIBS AU} JO 8JMBU 3B|NBJOA By}
*M3IA21 0} aNUNUOD |0} anp AUoYIne ay) 0} Ysu Jo eale ue ase sluawsodeld Auno) Jo INO|60L'0 LEL0 G6SL vov L $30IAI9S UOISN|DU]
uoneanp3 Buinunuo)
"M3}AB) O} Bnunyuo) ‘'Sa0uUBLBA JOUIN| L0070 0000 LLL'L LLL'L 3 61| ‘Aiepuodag
uoneonp3y siesA
"MBIAB) 0} anunuo) "S80uBLRA JOUIN|(S00°0) (510°0) £68°0 8980 Aue3 g Aewud
YIno, g uopeanpg
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
uo winyn abpn
pasinbay uopoy ajueueA iofey Jo asned Mo____um_._h\‘, 8oueUBA umuowmonhun_ homﬂoﬂ EL]TNET

Z Xipusddy

AYVWWNNS - 0} HLNOW

Page 239



€EL0 €vZ 0 856'8 SLL8 95UBUIBAOS) [8}0 )
JuaLINoal aq o} pajoadxa jou s puadsianQ ‘Sa0oUBLEBA JOUIN|820°0 8200 vSl'Yy (Y AR 1901
Juawabeuepy
|uaLINoal aq o) pajoadxa Jou s puadsianQ ‘saoueUeA JOUIN|Z10°0 100 8810 vi1°0 Splooay
‘Jua.INdal 3q 0} pajoadxa jou s| puadsiapun ‘saoueuep Jouln|(2£0°0) (2£00) €02°0 ovL0 poddng ssauisng
‘Wg 0’03 JO SadueLeA JoulWw Os|e pue 91/G102 Ulyim Wyl L 03
‘JuaLINDaI 8q 0} Pa}Dadxa Jou si puadsiaAQ|jo ASUSIOYS UE JO JUSWIASIYJE-ucU aYy) 0} anp S| puadsiano siyl|zZL0'0 8zL0 99z°0 8EL0 Juswaindoid
"Jua.Inoal aq 0} pajoadxa jou s) puadsiapun ‘saoueueA JOuN|(e00'0)  [(500°0)  [LL¥O gLyo UPNY [BUIBI|
*S3OUBLIEA JOUIW 0} anp st (W9zo'03)
Jeak|jo puadsispun uy 186png GL/pLOZ Bul uiyum paalbe sem yoiym
Xau N} Ul paAsiyoe aq 0} pajoadxa si Aousioe 8y (wol 103 jo Aousioye ue Bunaiyoe ul Aejep e 0} anp si puadsiaao ay1(860°0 $80°0 G66°L L6’ L S92IAI3S ofjeloowa(
‘JUa4iN23J 3q 0} pajdadxa Jou si puadsianQ ‘saouBUBA JOUIN|8LO0 L€0°0 1¥9°0 0L9°0 sa01nag |eba
AJUBUIIA0YH
S32IN0SIY
{ri10) |(roL'0) |SOS'¥ 609'¥ 73 9|doad jejoL
‘wiioo3
10 saoueLeA Joulw ale asay] (Wygl-03) JO spuadsiapun 80J0piom
‘Auo Jeak-ui aje spuadsiapun a2I0PUOAA “Jeak 1xau|lielodwal Aq yasyo Buiaqg si siyl "w8EN’ 03 JO IlBJHOYS B YUM paAs|yoe
finy Ut paAsiyoe aq o) pajdadxa ale sejoualoys ayl |Alened Buleq se pspodas Buieq si Aousioye 1e6png 91/510Z V[(660°0) (580°0) 182°¢C 99¢€°¢ goueuld ajelodiod
(W 10°03) 4O SaUBLEA JOUIW BJe BJdY |
(WwpG L 03) Jo spuadsiapun aoopliom Aqg Jasyo Buisqg ale spuadsiano
assyl ‘WOE0'03 JO 2ieMyoS pue w003 jo dowuag Builegsig R
"AlUO Jeak-u| ale spuadsiapun adIONUOAA “JEaA 1Xxau|aInso[osi] aY} U0 puadsiano Ue St 1oy} SIY) O) uolIppe u| "sigeAsiyoe
Iny Ul paAsIYde aq 0} pajdadxa ale saloualdlys 3yl flou se pauodas Buleq st wsoL'03 Jo Asuaiyd 186png 91/5102 V|(S10°0) (6100 vec'e £ve'e aoeyH
$921n0S3)Y g ajdoad
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 Yiuoy wnuno jabpng
pasinbay uonoy asueueA Jofepy Jo asned souBLIEA aouepeA pojosfoid pesiAey ERITNET

Z Xjpuaddy

AYVYWIANS - 0L HLNOW

Page 240



abueysn

(615°0) |(ivv0) |sOL'6 9v5°6 JeuopesiuefiQ [e10L
‘papJseme sjoenuod Buueald mau o} anp pajedionue awodu)
jeuonippe (WeL0'03) ‘1uesea Ajuaund s jey) i1sod Jspes] wea] sy}
woyy sbuines Aejes (W |0°03) "Sleaw |00Yyds ul xyeidn pasealdul Wwodj
"MalAaJ 0} anunuo) |1961e) awooul anoge pue JaAo pajediojue awoou) [euolippe (Wee0°03){(660°0)  |(621°0)  |S2SL $59'L S30IAJG SalIe
"M3IA3I 0} BNuUnUoD ‘aoueleA ON|000°0 000°0 0000 000°0 saomag Buuaauibug
(WgZL0'03) JO sadueLEeA Jouiw JBYlQ “Buuopuopy
Aojnjels uo puadssepun (wgzp'03) Buipun) aanewa)e ybnosy) jaw
usaq sey 8210 ANy s,yeuuos) Jo uojowap ay) o} buneas (wgL0'03)
‘/1/91 olufjo sjsoo pajosfoid "paynuapl usaq aaey Jebiey awoour pajebpng Aoueynsuo)
puadsiapun ay} Jo swos pJemioy Aues o} 1sanbay[ay) Jaao sasy aoueusuiepy R ubisag ul (wppz03) jeuonppe uy|(gzz'0) [(cle0n) [viee 629°C g ubisag Auadoid
(We00°03) JO SeouBLEA JOUIW JBYIO "SaAasal ybnoly) 1sw aq
o1 Buiob Alsnoinaid sem |[ejUoYS SIU) ‘Wep | 03 SIS adueld np zeo) ayl
WOJ SWODU} JUB) Ul |BJoYS B AQ JaSHO S| SIY| "Bale 819G SIU) UIyim
"M3IAR] 0} BNUNUOY |sases|al Yeys Buimolio) paaaiyoe (WGE | 03) JO SaIouaIdIYs BoJOPUOM|(b71L0)  |(L000)  |(118'0) (£18°0) sajejsg g uohen|ep
‘M3|ABJ 0} snunuo) ‘adueleA ON(000°0 0000 8100 8L0°0 sjassy Aunwwo)
(wggo 03F) Jo sbuines 1soo sayddns
‘malnal 0) anunuo) |y sesiwaid Aq jasyo ainssaud awooul uu 89] aPISIRC WOLO'03]910°0 5100 686’ 0/6'€ S301AI3G 2INS|aT]
"M3IAB1 0} aNUUOD ‘saoueleA Jouly|(1.00°0) (100°0) 6620 092°0 saAlyaly Ajunod
"M3|A31 0} SNUUOD) ‘saouBLR JOUIN|Z00 0 2000 9900 ¥90°0 201AI9G SWNasNy
S)juang
g 2Ny ‘sUy
"MBIABI 0} BNUIUOY ‘saouepeA Jouln|(sLo0)  [(zlo0)  [2ss'L ¥9.LL ' Saleiqi] dlqnd
abuey) jeuonesiuebig
(w3z) (w3) (w3) (w3)
asnbay uono 6 YJuo wnpno jabpng
paisinbay uonoy asueue Jofey Jo asned eoueLe 8JuBLIEA pepefoid DosIAGY ERITNETS

Z xipuaddy

ALYVNWNS - 0L HLINOW

Page 241



(vz10)  [(8z1°0) |606°C 180°¢ SBARNIAXT $9IUD [B10L
"SluawWaIodU| pajelal asuewlopad
10} painbas 196png syl o) 6Buneps (wzpQ03) Jo  puadsispun
‘Auo Jeak-ul agfue s1 a1ay) (wgzo'03) jo swuswaaiby Buipung 3100 ul uononpal

0) payoadxa ale (wgQl 03) Jo sbuines aakojdwa ay] {e osje pue (wgQl'03) 0 sbuines aclopom o) anp s| puadsiapun ayy |(y21 0) (821°0) 606°C 180°¢ SaAINDaXT JBIUD

SaAnNoaxXy Joyd

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 Yluon wnynQ 18bpng
paiinbay uonoy asueueA Joleyy Jo asne) souepep asueueA persfoig posiney EITNETS

Z Xipueddy

AYVWNINS - 0L HLNOW

Page 242



(zvz'h)  |(obrL)  |iveose LSY°'LST IVLIOL

aJuruUl4 djesodio)

(oc1'1)  [(vooL)  |egeze LEC'ET 3 |enua)g [ejo)
*M3IASI Japun daa) (WG 1L0°03) Jo SaoUBLEA JOUIN
"a)is YoIoApues - pi s|eanng Jsuuoy
‘Malnal Japun dea)i|o) uole@s ul wgGE 03 JO S)sod pajabpnqun ‘paNwil Swi / Yo SUQ
WOE0'03 Hels
Aousbe sso| 0} aNp PaAla2al AWOdU) JBMO) - sajeqal xiel (woeo 03)
sabieyn ueg sjelodiod o) uone@l ul Jeak ay) Jo ssauenb sauy)
uo abieyd ou paAIaday "adIO NPNY S\ UM MBIAS) Japun SI Sy}
‘malnal Japun daayt (wegn'03) 19bpnqg uey) Jamoj aq o) pajedidiue aJe saa4 Jpny [ewsalx3
(wegL 03)
"M3IAB] 0} anunuol) [1aAs|iun 104 maInay By Jo JNsal e se awodu) pajosfold uey) Jaybiy
“(471) pund Buian
"M3IA3J 0} anunuo) [uspuadapu| ay} 0} uoetal Ul (WOQE 03) SOIDUBIDIYS PayRuUap! Jo U0
Jead ul
‘suondo Jayjo Je Buoo) Ajualing [ajgeAsIyoeun PaiapISuod WQQE 0F JO ADUSIDINT 90JOPHOAA pPajewnsy
*M3IAR) 0} BNURUOD ‘WL E0"03 Jo puadsiano g1/510z pajosiosd s1auoio)
"MaIAal Japun daa)) ‘wg/ 103 puny uoisuad 0} uolNGIUOI Jo AUBA0D3I-19pun pa)aafold
‘suolnNquuod
‘suondo|jeuonippe jo0 S)s00  pajedidijue  ueyy Jamo| 0} anp (WZL603)
wawubiess Japisuon ‘suondQ Bupueuld ajesodio) (malney |euenioy uoisusd “(WGzZL'03) JesA juauns pue (WoyZ03)
‘ABajenig aoueuld wua] wnipaly jo Led se malnay[leak snonsid woly uoneyu| pJepuels UON pasnun JOo aoueleg
196pnq ay) ol Jjing s}S09 Isalajul woly sbulaes wia) poys ul Bunsal
‘pauueld uey) Jaje| si aunypuadxs |eyded se ‘Jeak [eioueul SIY} mouog
0} pasu ou S| aJay) ‘JaAaMOH ‘W09 03 Allewixoidde jo sotousidiye

‘uonebiyw ajqissodiul uoonpal e o} sajenbs siy) suonduwinsse jeuibuo e uo paseg ‘19s aoueuld

10} uomsod (Rsan0 Ajuepl |m WD 4O malAay|sem jebpng sy} Jaye pabueyd junowe Juawsplas ay | - bupueuld vHH|(9gL L) (y00°1) £eeee LEE'EC ajelodio] B [eSUBD

adueuld

ajesodio) @ jenua)

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 Uuo wnyno 196png
paisinbay uopoy asueueA Jofey jo asne) soueLEA esueuep pejosfold pesiney TN TS

Z xipusddy

AYYWAINS - 0L HLINOW

Page 243



Page 244



2015/16 Efficiencies Month 9 - Under or Over Achieved

Portfolio

People & Resources

Review of specialist finance functions to identify efficiencies in
process

Ensure continuation of grant maximisation opportunities
identified in 2014/15

Review of specialist human resources functions to identify
efficiencies in process

Total People & Resources

Governance
Procurement Supplier Charging

Central and Corporate Finance
Workforce efficiency proposal

Central Loans and Investment Review
Total Central & Corporate Finance

Social Services

Develop means testing approach for minor adaptations

Review model/costs contracts for catering

Rationalise the number of sites where In-House short term care
is provided

Develop a ‘progression’ model for Supported Living

Review commissioning with Action for Children

Regional approach to advocacy

Review and realign funding to voluntary sector

Total Social Services

Community & Enterprise

Close the personal answering service for main switchboard
telephone calls

Welfare Rights Team Review

Community Centres

Community Based Accommodation Support Service
Telecare Charging

Stopping sending remittance advices to Landlords
In-house bailiff service

Removal of Post Office as payment option

Review Single Person Discount

Total Community & Enterprise

Streetscene & Transportation

Introduce non-generic Streetscene roles (3 year plan)
Develop Energy Production at Landfill
Rationalise HRC Sites

Removing the Waste Containers delivery service
Introduce Charge for 2nd Garden Waste Bin

Car Parking Charges

Cancel Real Time Info System

Charge Maintenance of Bus Shelters

Review subsidised bus routes

Externalise grass cutting service

Reduced Street Lighting resource

Remove second grass cut for highway verges
Reduce Cleansing standards zero tolerance litter
Part night street lighting in residential areas
Winter Maintenance (Car Parks and standard)
Total Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment

Staffing & Management Restructure (incl. all vacancies)
Staffing & Collaboration

Animal & Pest Control

Increased Planning Fees (15% WG increase)

Increase in number of Planning Applications

Additional elements of charging (discharge of conditions)
Total Planning & Environment

Total 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies Underachieved
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies Achieved

. . (Under)/Over
Original Efficiency Revised Efficiency Achievement
2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
£(m) £(m}) £(m)
0.170 0.166 (0.004)
0.100 0.066 (0.034)
0.105 0.000 (0.105)
0.375 0.232 (0.143)
0.116 0.000 (0.116)
0.116 0.000 {0.116)
0.300 0.000 (0.300)
1.830 1.230 (0.600)
2.130 1.230 (0.900)
0.100 0.000 (0.100)
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.075 0.110 0.035
0.250 0.145 (0.105)
0.075 0.015 (0.060)
0.053 0.005 (0.048)
0.203 0.065 (0.138)
0.806 0.340 (0.466)
0.099 0.125 0.026
0.020 0.035 0.015
0.048 0.096 0.048
0.030 0.090 0.060
0.200 0.139 (0.061)
0.054 0.013 (0.041)
0.100 0.070 (0.030)
0.028 0.017 (0.011)
0.150 0.270 0.120
0.729 0.855 0.126
0.080 0.115 0.035
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.400 0.240 (0.160)
0.150 0.100 (0.050)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.400 0.290 (0.110)
0.020 0.025 0.005
0.005 0.000 (0.005)
0.075 0.050 (0.025)
0.075 0.025 (0.050)
0.050 0.038 (0.013)
0.030 0.025 (0.005)
0.150 0.060 (0.090)
0.020 0.030 0.010
0.150 0.170 0.020
1.705 1.193 (0.513)
0.295 0.207 (0.088)
0.024 0.040 0.016
0.030 0.007 (0.023)
0.135 0.050 (0.085)
0.060 0.030 (0.030)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.594 0.359 (0.235)
% £
100 12.874
17 2.246
83 10.628

Page 245

Appendix 3



Page 246



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2015

Less - Base Level

Total Reserves above base level available for
delegation to Cabinet

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve for the costs of the speed limit review

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve for the contribution to meet the
estimated increase in levy required to meet
past and future claim liabilities in relation to
the former Municipal Mutual Insurance
company

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve to meet the resource requirements
for specialist social work for child protection

Plus projected underspend as at Month 10

Total projected Contingency Reserve as at
31st March 2016

Page 247

£m £m

10.515

(5.769)

4.746

(0.210)

(0.800)

(0.100)

1.110

4,746



Page 248



{zgo0)  [(ze0'0) ZrLo $£2°0 : [ejoL
"S]S00 JOuIwW 0) sajejal 200°0F Buluiewsl ay| Ajuessadsuun Bumouniog (e1e60.668)
‘MaIAR] Japun daayy ploAe 0) 186png jejided ay) 0) UOKNGUIUOD JNC Ul BSEBIOUI UB 0} Sa)elal WE/L 03F(611°0 0810 (ge6°2L) {eoL'cl) S30UBLEA JBUIO
‘M3Inal Japun das “Apisqns Buisno o} Bupejes juswisnlpe jipne jsod e o} sajejas wezl 03|000°0 4430 [44 X0 0000 Apisang vyH
"pualeaA e ableyodal e aq ||IM SIU} 'S)S00 JOJOBIUOodqNS |[E JO MaIAal
B 0} anp We0| 03 0) Pasealdu] sABY DY WO} SHIoM Jojoenuodqns Jo sabieyoay
‘woe0 03
Aq puadsiano 0} }as aJe $a4jua0 Aunwwod pausjsuel ay) 0) bugejas s)sod AN
‘}s00
pajoadxaun ue Sem Udium WL G0 03 40 Junowe ay) ul abieyd e paalaoal aney pung
"MaiAB] Japun daay] [1oUnNo) Wol wYH ay) ol )ubnoig sanuas Ayunwwod ay) Joj sebieyo Buues|n|zeL 0 06L°0 2.0°L 288'0 S90IMSS plojpue
*S1S00 JoufW JBY)0 0} Sajejal wgp0 03 bulliewas ay]
*WQG0"03 1502 0) payosloid si wyH J0j Juswdinba Buppiom 216y
‘puadsiapun
(wge L 03) B pasieal sey Sa21ASS pue sjuswpedap SSOIOE SaUE|es JO uoinNgquIsIpay
*Sa0UBJaJuU0D pue Aoue)NSUCD 0} saje|al puadsiapun pajosiosd sy Jo (WOzZo 03)
"puadsiapun (wgeQ 03)
"M3IAR) Japun daoyy e Sasesjal 80IMeg uewApueH sy Buuaalap Joy uonoaloid sy jo |eaowsy |(Zz 1 0) {010} 182¢C e yoddng g asueuld
"S30UEBLIEA JOUIW 0} So)ejal (W80 03) buluiewal sy
1oenuo Bunuied [eo1194A0 ay) uo puadsiapun Jeak-ul ay) 0} sajeRl (W190°03)
‘sapes) asnoy-u; Buisn jo
jJINsal B S| YoIym SIo)oeuoD gns uo puadsiapun pajedionue ay) o} salefed (w0l 03)
'sy@am Buiulewsal ay)
Ul esealou) puads aas pinNoo yolum eaie ajijejon e st siyj ybnoyjje puadsiapun siyj o}
painguiuod sey Buuoyuow [ngaJed pue Jeak sej o) bunejas aleys Jyoud (Wego 03 V
‘M3jAal Japun daay ‘S[eUIS)BW SBI0)S 0) Sajeja. puadsiapun pajoaloid ayy jo (wpoz 03)[(£02°0) (62£°0) G108 ¥6€'8 aoueudjuRl B Slieday
*S3I0UaID1YS JouIWw Jay)o o} sajejas (Wi L0°03) Buiuiewsas ayy
‘M3IAB) Japun daay) ‘puadsiapun (WyGO'03) B paiINguUiuod aaey suonoalosd Aees|(y90°0) (590°0) 6951 pEO’L wswabeueyy a)e)sy
(w3) (w3) (w3) {w3)
pasinbay uopoy ajueleA JO asne) :HMM o souele LnRNo 196png ao|ale
A wu:m_..__m> HEA pajosfoid pasiaay nies

§ Xipuaddy

0l pouad - poday asueuep solfey ViH

Page 249



Page 250



Appendix 6

Carry Forward Requests 2015/16

COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE

Regeneration

An amount of £0.050m for investment costs relating to Town Centre projects which have been
delayed. This is the match funding element of European Union funding.

£0.036m for North Wales Economic Ambition Board (EAB) activity which has been delayed due to
resource availability.

An amount of £0.012m has been received from for private sponsorship which is to contribute to
Flintshire Business Week (FBW) 2016.

GOVERNANCE

ICT

Request to carry forward £0.042m for provision of Event and Log Management solutions.
Implementation has been delayed due to the need to implement Microsoft management system
software to maximise the functionality of the Event and Log Management solutions. This amount is
currently held in the service balances reserves.

EDUCATION & YOUTH

21% Century Schools

£0.080m for 21st Century Schools/School Modernisation which will be used to fund the condition
surveys on all schools needed for Band B schemes moving forward.

STREETSCENE & TRANSPORTATION

Car Parks
An amount of £0.054m for infrastructure costs at the County Hall car park and Flint Car Parks. Due to
delays in the implementation of Flintshire’s car parking strategy works have not been fully completed
this year.

Transportation

£0.170m for JMP who have been engaged to undertake a fundamental review of the transport service
provision to identify savings opportunities and efficiencies within the current operating arrangements.
Transportation savings already made in 2015/16 allow for this carry forward request to be made,
which relates to the JMP gain share payment for phase 2 of the implementation.

School Transport

£0.040m requested due to an early Easter this year which means the number of schools days will drop
in 2015/16 but increase in 2016/17. The carry forward balance will be required to cover the cost of
the additional days in the new financial year in addition to £0.090m already held for this purpose
within service balances reserves.

Page 251



Appendix 6

Speed Limit Review

£0.030m for advertisement and infrastructure works. A delay in the completion of the speed limit
review due to complex public objections impacting on project milestones. Five sites are committed to
being completed at the start of the 2016/17 financial year.

PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT

Pollution Control

£0.060m for investigatory works at former landfill sites that were intended to be completed by 31st
March 2016. One of the sites has complex constraints and works cannot begin on site until the summer
of 2016. The contract tenders have already been issued via a framework agreement in order for the
contract to be let and works to begin within the revised timescale.

Directorate Support

£0.017m for laptops to facilitate the move to agile working and to support asset rationalisation. These
will not be available until after the end of the financial year, however a commitment had been made
to purchase these out of the 2015/16 financial year.

ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE

Property Design & Consultancy

Request to roll forward £0.200m. This financial year Maintenance and Design have exceeded income
expectation, however next year there will potentially be a shortfall as more feasibility works have been
commissioned which are non-chargeable. The service is also being subject to a restructure resulting
in a new method of fee charging.

SOCIAL SERVICES

Development & Resources

£0.118m for project management staff to enable achievement of future business planning efficiencies.
A one-off budget was allocated to Social Services as a business plan investment in 2015/16, however
the project work has been delayed due to delays in the recruitment of staff.

Page 252



Agenda Item 11

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS — DECISIONS TAKEN

Organisational Change
e Community Asset Transfer of Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool, Connah’s
Quay
The transfer of Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool including the land shown on the
plan, to Cambrian Aquatics

e Community Asset Transfer of Argoed Community Centre Including
Library
The transfer of Argoed Community Centre and Library including the land shown
on the plan, to Café Isa.

e The Disposal of Land for Development of a use as a Medical Resource
Centre
The disposal of an area of the former Leas housing site in Flint Town Centre to
Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) for the development of a
Medical Resource Centre.

e The Disposal of Land for Development of a use as an Extra Care Facility
The disposal of an area of the former Leas housing site in Flint Town Centre to
Pennaf Housing Group for the development of an Extra Care facility.

Streetscene and Transportation
e Street Works Fees and Charges for 2016/17
The fees and charges levied for various licences and applications issued within
Street Works have been reviewed and the proposed charges for 2016/17 are
set out in the table in the delegated powers form.

Copies of the Delegated Powers reports are on deposit in the Team Manager’s
Room, Committee Services.

Page 253



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS
COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
APRIL 2016 TO SEPTEMBER 2016

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
April
Community and | 13 April 2016 Community and New Homes Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise To review the performance of for Housing
& Scrutiny New Homes
Oommittee
Q
@
NGommunity and | 13 April 2016 Community and Housing (Wales) Act 2014 -
%nterprise Overview Enterprise Homelessness
Scrutiny To review the implementation
Committee of the Housing (Wales) Act

2014 and how the Council

undertakes its new
homelessness prevention
statutory duty

Xauuy epuaby



Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Environment

development sites

To receive a report outlining
the process for new
development sites including
flood risk mitigation measures.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 13 April 2016 Community and Communities First Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise To update Members on areas for Economic
& Scrutiny applicable for Communities Development
Committee First funding, the most deprived
areas of Flintshire and
information on the
Communities 4 Work
. Programme.
O
gommunity and | 13 April 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational Cabinet Member
(E&nterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise) for Housing
N& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
gommittee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Community
& Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Environment 13 April 2016 Planning and Design of drainage for new Strategic Deputy Leader of

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 13 April 2016 Streetscene and Update on progress made to | Strategic Deputy Leader of
Overview & Scrutiny Transportation introduce an Integrated the Council and
Committee Transport Unit Cabinet Member
To provide Scrutiny with details for Environment
of the outcome of the
diagnostic work carried out to
identify savings within the
Integrated Transport Unit
nvironment 13 April 2016 Streetscene and Regional Rail issues Strategic Deputy Leader of
verview & Scrutiny Transportation To provide the committee with the Council and
chJommittee an update on regional ralil Cabinet Member
N issues for Environment
EEnvironment 13 April 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Overview & Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Corporate 14 April 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Emergency Planning Update | Operational Cabinet Member
Resources Overview The Committee to receive an for Corporate
& Scrutiny update from Emergency Management
Committee Planning




Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 14 April 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2015/16 (Month 10)
& Scrutiny To provide the latest revenue
Committee budget monitoring information
for 2015/16 for the Council
Fund and Housing Revenue
Account based on actual
income and expenditure as at
g-? month 10 and projected
(o) forward to year-end based on
® the most up to date information
8 available.
0
Corporate 14 April 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Presentation by Regional Operational Cabinet Member
Resources Overview Director of BT for Corporate
& Scrutiny To receive a presentation from Management
Committee Miss Alwen Williams, Regional
Director of BT
Corporate 14 April 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 19 April 2016 Chief Executive's The Improvement Plan 2016- | Strategic Leader of the
17 Council and
To review and agree the draft Cabinet Member
Improvement Plan prior to for Finance
contributions  for the final
version in June from Overview
and Scrutiny Committees.
ﬁabinet 19 April 2016 Chief Executive's Medium Term Financial Strategic Leader of the
(@] Strategy and the 2017/18 Council and
@ Council Fund Budget Cabinet Member
@ To provide the outline strategy for Finance
© for Business Plans and

Corporate Financing as part of
the revision of the Medium
Term Financial Strategy
(MTFS) and 2017/18 Council
Fund Budget




School Standards and
Reorganisation Act 2013 -
Ysgol Maes Edwin
Determination  of  statutory
proposal on school
organisational change: Ysgol
Maes Edwin

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 19 April 2016 Chief Executive's Independent Commission on | Strategic Leader of the
Local Government Finance Council and
To the Independent Cabinet Member
Commission through debate for Finance
and Support the Welsh Local
Government  Association in
advocating that the new Welsh
Government adopt the
g-? recommendations as a priority
0 post-election.
NSabinet 19 April 2016 Streetscene and Review of Waste Collection Strategic Cabinet Member
g Transportation and Household Recycling for Waste
Centre Policy Strategy, Public
To seek Cabinet approval to Protection and
progress the revised Waste Leisure
Collection and  Household
Waste Recycling Centre Policy
Cabinet 19 April 2016 Education and Youth School Modernisation - Strategic Cabinet Member

for Education




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 19 April 2016 Education and Youth School Modernisation - Strategic Cabinet Member
School Standards and for Education
Reorganisation Act 2013 -
Ysgol Llanfynydd
Determination  of  statutory
proposal on school
organisational change: Ysgol
Llanfynydd
19 April 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the

T9¢ GDE%
o.
3

2015/16 (Month 10)

To provide the latest revenue
budget monitoring information
for 2015/16 for the Council
Fund and Housing Revenue
Account based on actual
income and expenditure as at
month 10 and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 22 April 2016 Social Services The future of Residential Strategic Cabinet Member
Care Overview & Care, Specialist Nursing and for Social
Scrutiny Committee Domicilary Care in Flintshire Services
To consider the issues facing
the Council with regard to
Residential Care, Specialist
Nursing and Domicilary Care
QBocial & Health | 22 April 2016 Social Services Residential Care Review Strategic
are Overview & To receive a report on the
®crutiny Committee outcome of the Residential
N Care Review
[@))
"ocial & Health | 22 April 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Q3 Improvement
Care Overview & Plan Monitoring (Social &
Scrutiny Committee Health Care)
To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Social & Health | 22 April 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Social & Health Care)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




C

hange Overview &

Scrutiny Committee

Report
To provide the committee with
current information and to

enable them to discuss the
issues.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Organisational 26 April 2016 Organisational Change | Welsh Government — Operational Deputy Leader of
Change Overview & developing a national the Council and
Scrutiny Committee approach to Alternative Cabinet Member
delivery Models for Environment
To provide the committee with
current information and to
enable them to discuss the
issues.
rganisational 26 April 2016 Organisational Change | Welsh Government Library Operational Cabinet Member
ﬁhange Overview & Standards for Education
%crutiny Committee To provide the committee with
N current information and to
o)) enable them to discuss the
w issues.
Organisational 26 April 2016 Organisational Change | Theatr Clwyd — Progress Operational Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

T

26 April 2016

Chief Executive's

The Improvement Plan
2016/17 (Organisational
Change)

To enable consideration of the
areas of the draft Improvement
Plan 2016/17 relevant to the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Strategic

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance

Q

%rganisational

NOhange Overview &
crutiny Committee

26 April 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Organisational Change)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

Education and
Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

28 April 2016

Chief Executive's

The Improvement Plan
2016/17

To enable consideration of
areas of the draft Improvement
Plan 2016/17 relevant to the
Education & Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Education




Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Effectiveness and
Improvement Service (GWE)
To receive an update on
progress with the development
of the regional school
effectiveness and improvement
service, to include a
presentation from the Chief
Officer of GwWE.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Education and | 28 April 2016 Education and Youth Post 16 Education Centre Operational Cabinet Member
Youth Overview & (presentation) for Education
Scrutiny Committee To receive a presentation from
Mr. Alex Thomas, Headteacher
of the Post 16 Education
Centre on courses available at
the Centre
Education and | 28 April 2016 Education and Youth Learner Outcomes Operational
outh Overview & To provide Members with a
crutiny Committee summary of learner outcomes
-8 across primary and secondary
N schools
%ducation and | 28 April 2016 Education and Youth Regional School Strategic Cabinet Member

for Education




Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Education & Youth)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Education and | 28 April 2016 Education and Youth Recommendations from the Operational Cabinet Member
Youth Overview & School Transport Task & for Education
Scrutiny Committee Finish Group
To enable the Committee to
consider the recommendations
of the School Transport Task &
Finish Group and make
recommendations to Cabinet in
g-? relation to proposed changes to
0 the Integrated Transport Policy
NSducation and | 28 April 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Q3 Improvement
gouth Overview & Plan Monitoring (Education &
Scrutiny Committee Youth)
To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Education and | 28 April 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme

May




next Steps

Development of a Strategy and
approach to verifying
achievement of the Welsh
Housing Quality Standards.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 9 May 2016 Chief Executive's The Improvement Plan Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview 2016/17 (Community & for Housing
& Scrutiny Enterprise)
Committee To enable consideration of
areas of the draft Improvement
Plan 2016/17 relevant to the
Community & Enterprise
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
@ommunity and | 9 May 2016 Community and Strategic Housing and Strategic Cabinet Member
nterprise Overview Enterprise Regeneration Project for Housing
E Scrutiny (SHARP)
ommittee To seek Members support on
~ the first phase Housing
schemes, tenure and mix size
and funding arrangements
Community and | 9 May 2016 Community and The Welsh Housing Quality Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Standard (WHQS) - for Housing
& Scrutiny Verification in achieving and
Committee maintaining the Standard :




consider the draft Improvement
Plan 2016/17

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 9 May 2016 Finance Review of Fair Debt Policy Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview To review the impact of the Fair for Corporate
& Scrutiny Debt Policy previously Management
Committee approved by Cabinet.
Community and | 9 May 2016 Community and Forward Work Programme
Enterprise Overview Enterprise (Community & Enterprise)
K] Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
gommittee Programme of the Community
) & Enterprise Overview &
8 Scrutiny Committee.
0]
Flintshire County | 10 May 2016 Governance Schedule of Member
Council Remuneration
The purpose of this report is to
approve the Council's Schedule
of Member Remuneration for
the Council year 2016/17.
Corporate 12 May 2016 Chief Executive's The Improvement Plan Strategic Leader of the
Resources Overview 2016/17 (Corporate Council and
& Scrutiny Resources) Cabinet Member
Committee To enable the Committee to for Finance




Term Financial
2015-2018.

Strategy for

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 12 May 2016 Chief Executive's Flintshire Community Operational Cabinet Member
Resources Overview Endowment Fund for Corporate
& Scrutiny To note the annual report on Management
Committee the fund and be assured of
progress.
Corporate 12 May 2016 Chief Executive's Welsh Language Standards Cabinet Member
Resources Overview Advise members of the for Corporate
& Scrutiny proposed new Welsh Management
gommittee Language Standards for
(@] Flintshire and seek
@ endorsement of the Council's
8 approach.
O
Corporate 12 May 2016 Chief Executive's Medium Term Financial Leader of the
Resources Overview Strategy Council and
& Scrutiny To receive a verbal update on Cabinet Member
Committee the progress of the Medium for Finance




Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 12 May 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2015/16 (Month 11)
& Scrutiny To provide the latest revenue
Committee budget monitoring information
for 2015/16 for the Council
Fund and Housing Revenue
Account based on actual
income and expenditure as at
g-? month 11 and projected
(o) forward to year-end based on
® the most up to date information
™ available.
(@)
Corporate 12 May 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 May 2016 Community and The Welsh Housing Quality Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Standard (WHQS) - for Housing
Verification in achieving and
maintaining the standard :
next steps
Development of a Strategy and
approach to verifying
achievement of the Welsh
Housing Quality Standards.
gabinet 17 May 2016 Organisational Change | Alternative Delivery Models - | Strategic Clir Chris Bithell,
-8 Leisure and Libraries Clir Kevin Jones,
N To reconsider the Leisure and Clir Aaron
~ Libraries Business Plan Shotton
= following further work on
employee involvement and

consultation and the levels of
confidence amongst the
workforce




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 May 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2015/16 (Month 11) Council and
To provide the latest revenue Cabinet Member
budget monitoring information for Finance
for 2015/16 for the Council
Fund and Housing Revenue
Account based on actual
income and expenditure as at
g-? month 11 and projected
(o) forward to year-end based on
® the most up to date information
™ available.
N
Cabinet 17 May 2016 Community and Business Rates - Write Off Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise above £25,000 for Corporate
Approve the write off of a single Management
business rate debt above
£25,000
Environment 18 May 2016 Chief Executive's The Improvement Plan Strategic Deputy Leader of

Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

2016/17 (Environment)

To enable consideration of
areas of the draft Improvement
Plan 2016/17 relevant to the
Environment Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment,
Cabinet Member
for Waste
Strategy, Public
Protection and
Leisure




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 18 May 2016 Streetscene and Update on North Wales Strategic Leader of the
Overview & Scrutiny Transportation Waste Project Council and
Committee To receive a progress update Cabinet Member
every 6 months for Finance
Environment 18 May 2016 Streetscene and Review of Waste Collection Operational Cabinet Member
Overview & Scrutiny Transportation Policy for Waste
Committee To advise Scrutiny of the Strategy, Public
revised Waste Collection and Protection and
Household Waste Recycling Leisure
p-? Centre Policy
Sl
®nvironment 18 May 2016 Planning and Rogue Traders App Operational Cabinet Member
gverview & Scrutiny Environment To inform members of the for Waste
ommittee rogue traders app available to Strategy, Public
members of the public in Protection and
Flintshire Leisure
Environment 18 May 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme

Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

(Environment)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Social & Health Care)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 19 May 2016 Chief Executive's The Improvement Plan Strategic Cabinet Member
Care Overview & 2016/17 (Social & Health for Social
Scrutiny Committee Care) Services
To enable consideration of the
areas of the draft Improvement
Plan 2016/17 relevant to the
Social & Health Care Overview
. & Scrutiny Committee
J
gocial & Health | 19 May 2016 Social Services Comments, Compliments Operational Cabinet Member
@are Overview & and Complaints for Social
NScrutiny Committee To receive a report on the Services
E compliments, representations
and complaints received by
Social Services for the year
April 2015 — March
Social & Health | 19 May 2016 Social Services Annual Council Reporting Operational Cabinet Member
Care Overview & Framework for Social
Scrutiny Committee To consider the draft report Services
Social & Health | 19 May 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme




Reform and the cost to the
Council.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
June
Community and | 8 June 2016 Community and Purchase of Ex Council Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Stock for Housing
& Scrutiny To consider proposals and
Committee criteria for the repurchase of ex
council properties
Community and | 8 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Year End Reporting
§nterprise Overview and Data Submission,
Scrutiny Improvement Plan
®ommittee Monitoring & Chief Officer
™ Performance Reports
ol (Community & Enterprise)
To enable Members to fulffil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Community and | 8 June 2016 Community and Welfare Reform - Including Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Universal Credit for Housing
& Scrutiny To update Members on the
Committee impact and risks of Welfare




Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

and Data Submission,
Improvement Plan
Monitoring & Chief Officer
Performance Reports
(Education & Youth)

To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 8 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Community
& Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
5ducation and | 9 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
%outh Overview & (Education & Youth)
crutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
N Programme of the Education &
C\D] Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Education and | 9 June 2016 Education and Youth 2015/16 Year End Reporting




Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

and Data Submission,
Improvement Plan
Monitoring & Chief Officer
Performance Reports
(Organisational Change)

To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 9 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Betsi Cadwaladr University Cabinet Member
Care Overview & Health Board and Welsh for Social
Scrutiny Committee Ambulance Services
Service.(Presentation)
For the Committee to receive a
presentation from Betsi
Cadwaladr University Health
Board and Welsh Ambulance
Service
gducation and | 9 June 2016 Education and Youth Skills Shortage Operational Cabinet Member
(Youth Overview & To enable the Committee to for Education
%crutiny Committee review what measures schools
~ have in place to reduce the
~ skills shortage
Organisational 13 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Year End Reporting




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

13 June 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Organisational Change)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

Bnvironment
verview & Scrutiny
M ommittee

N
\l
00)

15 June 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

2015/16 Year End Reporting
and Data Submission,
Improvement Plan
Monitoring & Chief Officer
Performance Reports
(Environment)

To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

15 June 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Environment)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




Performance Reports
(Corporate Resources)

To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 16 June 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2015/16 (Month 12)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee latest revenue budget
monitoring  information  for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month (insert
T month no.) and projected
QD forward to year-end based on
‘8 the most up to date information
N available
1
®orporate 16 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Year End Reporting
Resources Overview and Data Submission,
& Scrutiny Improvement Plan
Committee Monitoring & Chief Officer




2015/16 (Month 12)

To provide the latest revenue
budget monitoring information
for 2015/16 for the Council
Fund and Housing Revenue
Account based on actual
income and expenditure as at
month 12 and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 16 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Gabinet 21 June 2016 Chief Executive's Year End Improvement Plan Cabinet Member
g Monitoring Report for Corporate
o)) To receive the 2015/16 Year Management
N End Improvement Plan
8 monitoring reports for the
period 1 April 2014 to 31 March
2016.
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




Environment

Maintenance Standards

To endorse the approach to the
maintenance of Flintshire’s
public footpaths and public
bridleways

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Planning and Food Service Plan for Operational Clir Kevin Jones
Environment Flintshire County Council
2016-17
To seek member approval for
the Food Service Plan 2016-
17.
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Community and Purchase of Ex Council Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Stock for Housing
To consider proposals and
;? criteria for the repurchase of ex
8 council property.
@abinet 21 June 2016 Planning and Publc Rights of Way Operational
= Environment Priorities
To endorse a hierarchical
approach to: processing
definitive map modification and
public path orders; public rights
of way maintenance; and
responding to complaints
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Planning and Public Rights of Way Operational




Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Social & Health Care)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 23 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme

Social & Health
Qare Overview &
Scrutiny Committee
D

23 June 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

2015/16 Year End Reporting
and Data Submission,
Improvement Plan
Monitoring & Chief Officer

Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

N Performance Reports (Social

% & Health Care)
To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

July

Education and | 7 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme

(Education & Youth)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




To inform members of the
results of the audit into the new
system for managing the use of
consultants.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Organisational 11 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Change Overview & (Organisational Change)
Scrutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Community and | 13 July 2016 Community and Strategic Housing and Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Regeneration Project for Housing
(@ Scrutiny (SHARP)
®Bommittee To review progress on the
% Strategic Housing and
w Regeneration Project (SHARP)
Audit Committee 13 July 2016 Governance CONSULTANCY FOLLOW UP




& Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Audit Committee 13 July 2016 Governance INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL
REPORT
To inform members of the
outcome of all audit work
carried out during 2015/16 and
to give the annual Internal
Audit opinion on the standard
of internal control, risk
g-? management and governance
o within the Council.
Naudit Committee 13 July 2016 Governance Internal Audit Progress
g Report
Audit Committee 13 July 2016 Governance Action Tracking
Audit Committee 13 July 2016 Governance Forward Work Programme
Community and | 13 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Community




Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 14 July 2016 Finance REVENUE BUDGET
Resources Overview MONITORING 2015/16
& Scrutiny (OUTTURN)
Committee To provide Members with the
latest revenue budget
monitoring  information  for
2014/15 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
T expenditure (subject to Audit)
E&orporate 14 July 2016 Chief Executive's LSB and Strategic Operational Leader of the
cPQesources Overview Partnerships Performance — Council and
% Scrutiny End of Year Report Cabinet Member
@Wommittee To provide a summary of for Finance
performance for 2015/16 and
an overview of priorities for the
Public Service Board.
Corporate 14 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 19 July 2016 Finance Capital Programme 2015/16
(Outturn)
To provide Members with the
outturn  capital programme
information for 2015/16.
Cabinet 19 July 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2015/16 (Outturn) Council and
1Y) To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
g latest revenue budget for Finance
[0 monitoring  information  for
N 2014/15 for the Council Fund
% and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure (subject to Audit)
Environment 19 July 2016 Planning and Renewable Energy Operational Deputy Leader of
Overview & Scrutiny Environment To receive a report outlining the Council and
Committee the developments to include Cabinet Member
the responses received for Environment
following consultation.
Environment 19 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme

Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

(Environment)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 21 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Social & Health Care)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

August

;?eptember

/8¢ 3b




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 The Improvement Plan 2016-17
	Enc. 1 for The Improvement Plan 2016-17
	Enc. 2 for The Improvement Plan 2016-17

	5 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016/17 - 2018/19 and the Council Fund Revenue Budget 2017/18
	6 Independent Commission on Local Government Finance in Wales
	Appendix 1 - Executive Summary of the Commission Report
	Appendix 2 - Council's written response to the Commission

	7 Proposed Review of the Waste Collection and Household Recycling Centre Services
	8 School Modernisation - School Standards and Reorganisation Act 2013 - Ysgol Llanfynydd
	Appendix 2 - Objection Report
	Appendix 3 - Estyn Response
	Appendix 4 - Response from Ysgol Parc y Llan, Treuddyn Governors
	Appendix 1 - Llanfynydd Compliance Statement

	9 School Modernisation - School Standards and Reorganisation Act 2013 - Ysgol Maes Edwin
	Appendix 1 - Pie Chart showing where pupils reside
	Appendix 2 - Compliance Statement
	Appendix 3 - Objection Report
	Appendix 4 - Estyn Response

	10 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 10)
	Enc. 1 for REVENUE BUDGE MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 10)

	11 EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS
	 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

